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Table of ContentsA PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION ITEM 1. Financial Statements FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
(Unaudited) A (Dollars in thousands, except share and per share data) A September 30, 2024 A A December 31, 2023 A ASSETSA A A A A A Cash and due from banks A $ 249,569 A A §
124,442 A Securities available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost of $1,011,849A and $1,037,990, respectively) A A 886,816 A A A 887,730 A Securities held to maturity, at amortized cost
(net of allowance for credit losses of $3A and $4, respectlvely) (fair value of $112,613A and $137 030, respectlvely) A A 121,279 A A A 148,156 A Loans held for sale A A 2,495 A A A
1,370 A Loans (net of allowance for credit losses of $44,678A and $51,082, respectively) A A 4,358,311 A A A 4,411,057 A Company owned life insurance A A 165,424 A A A 161,363 A
Premises and equipment, net A A 40,788 A A A 39,902 A Goodwill and other intangible assets, net A A 60,867 ‘AAA 72,504 A Other assets A A 270,768 A A A 314,357 A Total assets
A $6,156,317 A A $6,160,881 A LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS&€™ EQUITYA A A A A A Deposits: A A A A A A Noninterest-bearing demand A $ 978,660 A A $ 1,010,614 A
Interest-bearing demand A A 793,996 A A A 713,158 A ‘Savings and money market A A 2,027,181 A A A 2,084,444 A Time deposits A A 1,506,764 A A A 1,404,696 A Total deposits A
A 5,306,601 A A A 5,212,912 A Short-term borrowings A A 55,000A A A 185,000 A Long-term borrowings, net of issuance costs of $235A and $468, respectively A A 124,765A A A
124,532 A Other liabilities A A 169,609 A A A 183,641 A Total liabilities A A 5,655,975 A A A 5,706,085 A Shareholdersa€™ equity: A A A A A A Series A 3% preferred stock,
$100A par value; 1, 533A shares authorized; 1,435A shares issued A A 143A A A 143 A Series B-1 8.48% preferred stock, $100A par value; 200,000A shares authorized; 171,486A shares
issued A A 17,149 A A A 17,149 A Total preferred equltyA A 17,292 A A A 17,292 A Common stock, $0.01A . par value; 50,000, 000A shares authorized; 16,099,556A shares issued A A
161 A A A 161 A Additional paid-in capital A A 125,112 A A A 125,841 A Retained earnings A A 477,861 A A A 451,687 A Accumulated other comprehensive loss A A (102,029)A A
(119,941 ) Treasury stock, at cost 4€“ 625,242A and 692,150A shares, respectlvelyA A (18,055) A A (20,244 ) Total shareholdersa€™ equity A A 500,342 A A A 454,796 A Total liabilities
and shareholdersa€™ equity A $ 6,156,317 A A $ 6,160,881 A A See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 3 Table of ContentsA FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited) A (In thousands, except per share amounts) A Three months ended September 30, A A Nine months ended September
30,A A A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A Interestincome:A A A A AAA A A A A A Interest and fees on loans A $71,218 A A $ 68,273 A A $212,227A A $189,423 A
Interest and dividends on investment securities A A 6,086 A A A 5,703 A A A 18,582 A A A 17,637 A Other interest income A A 607A A A 724 A A A 4,303A A A 2,526 A Total
interest income A A 77,911 A A A 74,700 A A A 235,112 A A A 209,586 A Interest expense: A A A A A AAAA A A A DepositsA A 34,803A A A 29,217A A A 105,114A A A
72,565 A Short-term borrowings A A 858 A A A 2,235A A A 3,345A A A 6,596 A Long-term borrowings A A 1,569 A A A 1,571 A A A 4, 697A A A 4,596 A Total interest expense A
37,230 A A A 33,023A A A 113,156 A A A 83,757 A Net interest income A A 40,681 A A A 41,677A A A 121,956 A A 25,829 A Pr0v1310n (benefit) for credit losses A A 3,104
A A A9G6A A A (311)A A 8410 A Net interest income after provision (benefit) for credit losses A A 37,577 A A A 40,711 A A 122,267 A A A 117,419 A Noninterest income: A A
AAAAAAAAA A Service charges on deposits A A 1,103A A A 1,207A A A 3,159 A A A 3,457 A Insurance income A A 3A A A 1,678A A A 2,141 A A A 5,093 A Card
interchange income A A 1,900A A A 2,094A A A 5810A A A 6,140 A Investment advisory A A 2,797 A A A 2,544 A A A 8,158 A A A 8,286 A Company owned life insurance A A

1A Loan servicing A A 88A A A 135A A A 421A
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1,404 A A A 1,027A A A 4,062A A A 2,974 A Investments in limited partnershlpsA A 400A A A391A A A 1,545A A A 1,11

A A 395 A Income from derivative instruments, net A A 212 A A A 219A A A 763A A A 1,418 A Net gain on sale of loans held for sal A 220A A A 115A A A 432A A A 349A
Net gam (loss) on other assets A A 138A A A (1)A A 13,633 A A A 31 A Net loss on tax credit investments A A (170)A A (333)A A (139 A

A A A 4370A A A 3,667 A Total noninterest income A A 9,440 A A A 10,486 A A A 44,355 A A A 32,876 A Noninterest . expense: A AAA
benefits A A 15,879 A A A 18,160 A A A 48,967 A A A 54,047 A Occupancy and equipment A A 3,370 A A A 3,791 A A A 10,570 A 11,059 A Professional services A A 1,965 A
AA1076A A A 6131A A A 3,844A Computer and data processingA A 5353A A A 5107A A A 16,081 A A A 14,548 A Supplies and postage A A 519A A A 455A A A 1,431A
A A 1,418 A FDIC assessments A A 1,092 A A A 1,232 A A A 3,733 A A A 3,586 A Advertising and promotions A A 371 A A A 744 A A A 1,108 A A A 1,556 A Amortization of
intangibles A A 112A A A 225A A A 443 A A A 689 A Restructuring recoveries A A 4€” A A A (55)A A 4€” A A A (74 ) Deposit-related charged-off items A A 410A A A 188A A
A 19,987 A A A 978 A Other A A 3,398 A A A 3,812A A A 11,051 A A A 10,527 A Total noninterest expense A A 32,469 A A A 34,735 A A A 119,502 A A A 102,178 A Income
before income taxes A A 14,548 A A A 16,462 A A A 47,120 A A A 48,117 A Income tax expenseA A 1,082A A A 2,440A A A 5955A A A 7,633 A Netincome A $ 13,466 A A $
14,022 A A $41,165A A $ 40,484 A Preferred stock dividends A A 365A A A 365A A A 1,094A A A 1,094 A Net income available to common shareholders A $ 13,101 A A $ 13,657
A A $40,071 A A $39,390 A Earnings per common share (Note 2): AAAAAAAAA A A A Basic A $085A A $089A A $2.60A A $2.56A DilutedA $0.84A A $0.88A A $
2.57A A $2.55A Cash dividends declared per common share A $ 0.30A A $0.30A A $0.90A A $0.90 A A See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 4 Table of
ContentsA FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Consolidated Statements of Comprehenswe Income (Unaudlted) A (Dollars in thousands) A Three months ended September
30, A A Nine months ended September 30,A A A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A Netincome A $ 13,466 A A $ 14,022 A A $ 41,165 A A $ 40,484 A Other comprehensive income
(loss), netof tax: A A A A AAAA A A A A Securities available for sale and transferred securities A A 25,430 A A A (27,445 )A A 18,795 A A A (25,459) Hedging derivative
instruments A A (1,851 )A A 385A A A (1,381 )A A 1,126 A Pension and post-retirement obhgatlonsA A 166 A A A 143A A A 498A A A 431 A Total other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax A A 23,745A A A (26,917)A A 17,912 A A A (23,902 ) Comprehensive income (loss) A $ 37,211 A A $(12,895)A $ 59,077 A A $ 16,582 A A See accompanying notes
to the consolidated financial statements. 5 Table of ContentsA FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholdersa€™ Equity
(Unaudited) Three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 A (Dollars in thousands, except per share data) A PreferredEquity A A CommonStock A A AdditionalPaid-inCapital
AA RetainedEarnings A A AccumulatedOtherComprehensweLossA A TreasuryStock A A TotalShareholdersa€™ EqultyA Balance at December 31, 2023 A $ 17,292 A $ 161 AAs
125,841 A A $ 451, 687A A s (119, 941)A $ (20,244 )A $ 454, 796 A Comprehensive (loss) income: A A A A A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Net income
A A ae”AAA2070AAAa"AAAac”"AAARA?2, O70A Other comprehensive income, net of tax A A a€”A A A ac”A A A ae”A A A (6,323) AA
Purchases of common stock for treasuryA A ae” A A a€”A A A a€”A A A a€”A A A (393) A

A
A A A ae” A A 93 ) Share-based compensation plans: A A A A A A A A
A A A A A A Share-based compensation A A 4€” A A A ae” A AAS69A AAa€"AAAGAAA 569 A Restricted stock units released A A é€'
3 €A A A a€”A A A 1,783A A A a€” A Cas A
AAA
A A a€”
8,854

)A A (45) OtherA A 1,345A A A 1,410
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A (1)AAae"A A A& A A A (1)Series B-1 8.48% Preferreda€“$2.12A
.30A per share A A a€” A
18,11

a€”A A A ae"A A A (363)A A a€”A A
at June 30, 2024 A $17,292A A $161AA
A AAAAAA NetincomeA A a€” A
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ae” AAAa€"AAA(4638)AAa€"AAAA A
A $469,399A A $(125,774) A $( $ 467,667 A Comprehensive income (loss): A A A A A A A
A A A 13,466 A A A a€”A A A ae” A | 13,466 A Other comprehensive loss, net of taxA A a€” A
urchases of common stock for treasury A "AAAac"AAAa€"AAAMAAAGAAACQ
A A A A A A A Share-based compensation A A 46" A A A 4€”A A A 494A A A a€"A A A &€"AAA A Restricted stock units released A A a€”
A A (B6)A Aac”AAAae"AAABGAAAae A a h dividends declared: A A A A A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Series A 3% Preferred-$0.75A per share A A
a€” A A A a€” A A A ae” AAA(l)AAa€ A A A ae” (1)SerlesB1848%Preferred$212AperAAAshareAAa€ A A A ae”A A A ag” AAA(364)AAa€ A A A ae”
A A A (364 ) Common-$0.30A per share A A a€” A A A a€” A A A a€e”A A A (4639)A A a€”A A A 4€” A A A (4,639 ) Balance at September 30, 2024 A $ 17,292 A A $161A A $
125,112 A A $477,861 A A $(102,029)A $(18,055)A $ 500,342 A A Continued on next page A See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 6 Table of ContentsA
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholdersa€™ Equity (Unaudited) (Contmued) Three and nine months ended September 30,
2024 and 2023 A (Dollars in thousands, except per share data) A PreferredEquity A A CommonStock A A AdditionalPaid- -inCapital AA RetainedEarnings A A
AccumulatedOtherComprehensweLoss A A TreasuryStockA A TotalShareholdersa€'“EqmtyA Balance at December 31, 2022 A $ 17,292 A A $ 161 A A $ 126 636 A A $ 421,340A A $
(137,487 ) A $ (22,337 ) A $ 405,605 A Comprehensive income (loss)) A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A A NetincomeA A a€” A A A \ A A 46" A A A 12,089A A

A a€” A A A 4€” A A A 12,089 A Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax A A 4€” A A A 46" A A A a¢”A A A ae”A A A 10,115A A A ae” A A 10,115 A Purchases of
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c mmonstockfortreasuryA Aae"AAAae"AAAGae"AAAae”AAAae”AAA (561)A A (561) Share-based compensationplans:A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
A A A Share- based compensatlonA A ae”A AA ae”A AA551AAAa”AAAae”A A A a€”A A A 551 A Restricted stock units released A A a€” A A A a€” A A A (1,711)A
A ae”A A A ae”A A A 1,711 A A A a€” A Cash dividendsdeclared:: A A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Series A 3% Preferreda€“$0. 75A per share A A a€” A A A a€”
AAAa"AAA (l)A A a€”A A A 4€”A A A (1) Series B-1 8.48% Preferredd€“$2.12A perAAAshare A A a¢”A A A 4¢"A A A 4€"A A A (364)A A a€”A A A a¢"A A A (364
)Commona€ $0. 30ApershareA A a€”A AAac”AAAae”"AAA (4611)A A a€”A A A a€”A A A (4,611)Bala nce at March 31, 2023 A $ 17,292 A A $161A A $ 125,476 A A $
428,453 A A $(127,372)A $(21,187) A $ 422,823 A Comprehensive income (loss:A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAANetincomeA A 4€"A A A a€"A A A a€”A A
A 14373A A A a€”A A A a€” A A A 14,373 A Other comprehensive loss, net of tax A A 4€”A A A a¢”A A A a¢”A A A 4€"A A A (7,100)A A 4€” A A A (7,100 ) Purchases of
common stock for treasury A A 46" A A A a6”A A A a€” A A A ae”A A A a€”A A A (2)A A (2) Share-based compensation plans: A A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
A Share-based compensation A A 4€”A A A a€”A A A 657A A A a¢” a€”A A A a€” A A A 657 A Restricted stock awards released A A 46" A A A 4" A A A (9)A A ae”A
A A ae”A AA9A A A a€” A Restricted stock awards issued A A a€"A A A a€”A A A (590)A A 46" A A A a€”A A A 590A A A a€” A StockawardsA A a€”A A A a€”A A A
(77)A A a€”A A A a€”A A A 174 A A A 97 A Cash dividends declared: A A A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A Series A 3% Preferreda€“$0.75A per share A A a€” A A
A a€”A A A ae”AAA (I)A A a€”A AAae”AAA (1) Series B-1 8.48% Preferreda€” $2.12 AperAAAShareA A a€”A A A ae”A A A ae”A A A (363)A A a€” A A A a€”A A
A (363 ) Common&€“$0.30A per share A A a€”A A A 46" A A A 4¢"A A A (4611)A A a¢”A A A a€” A A A (4,611 ) Balance at June 30, 2023 A $ 17,292 A A $ 161 A A $ 125,457
A A $437,851 A A $(134,472)A $ (20,416 ) A $ 425,873 A Comprehensive income (loss): A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAANetincomeA A a€"A A A 4€"A A A
a€”A A A 14,022A A A a€”A A A a€” A A A 14,022 A Other comprehensive loss, net of tax A A 4€” A A A 4€”A A A a€”A A A a€”A A A (26,917)A A a€”A A A (26,917)
Shareb sed compensation plans: A A A A A A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAA Share-based compensationA A a€”A A A &€”A A A 721A A A a¢"A A A 4€”A A A ae”"A A
A 721 A Cash dividends declared: A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Series A 3% Preferreda€”$0.75A per share A A 4€”A A A a€”A A A a¢”A A A (1)A A & A
A A a€” A A A (1) Series B-1 8.48% Preferreda€“$2.12A perAA Ashare A A 4€”A A A a¢"A A A 4¢"A A A (364)A A a¢"A A A 4" A A A (364 ) Commoné&€“$0.30A per share A_

Aac”A AAae"AAAae”AAA 4618)A A a€”A A A 4€”A A A (4,618 ) Balance at September 30, 2023 A $ 17, 292 AA$161A A $126,178 A A $446,890 A A $(161,389)

$ (20,416 ) A $ 408,716 A A See accompanymg notes to the consolidated financial statements. 7 Table of ContentsA FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudlted) A (Dollars in thousands) A Nine months ended September 30, A A A 2024 A A 2023 A Cash flows from operating activities: A AAAAA Net
income A $ 41,165 A A $ 40,484 A Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: A A A A A A Deprematmn and amortization A A 5,719 A A A 6,080 A
Net amortization (accretion) of premiums (discounts) on securities A A 2,014 A A A (2,681 ) (Benefit) provision for credit losses A A (311)A A 8,410 A Share-based compensation A A
1,809 A A A 1,929 A Deferred income tax expense (benefit) A A 1,004A A A ( 86 ) Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale A A 34,491 A A A 12,983 A Originations of loans held for
sale A A (35,184)A A (13,957 ) Income on company owned life insurance A A \ (4,062) A A (2,974 ) Net gain on sale of loans held for sale A A (432)A A (349) Net gain on sale of assets
of sub51d1aryA A (13,658) A A a€” A Net loss (gain) on other assets A A 25 A A A (31 ) Non-cash restructuring recoveries against assets A A ae”A A A (74 ) Decrease (increase) in other
assets A A 31,113A A A (26,976 ) (Decrease) increase in other liabilities A A (13,672 )A A 36,205 A Net cash provided by ~operating activities A A 50,111 A A A 58,563 A Cash flows
from investing activities: A A A A A A Purchases of investment securities: A A A A A A Available for sale A A (131 401)A A a€” A Held to rnaturltyA A (1,059)A A (1,638) Proceeds
from principal payments, maturities and calls on investment securities: A A A A A A Available for sale securities A A 155,734 A A A 68,317 A Held to maturity A A 27,772 A A A 36,702
A Net decrease (increase) in loans A A 53,242 A A A (385,040 ) Net proceeds from company owned life insurance A A 1A A A 255A Proceeds from sale of assets of subsidiary A A
27,000 A A A a4€” A Purchases of premises and equipment A A 4571)A A (1,739) Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities A A 126,718 A A A (283,143 ) Cash flows from
financing activities: A A A A A A Net increase in deposits A A 93,689 A A A 386,549 A Net decrease in short-term borrowings A A (130,000 ) A A (135,000 ) Proceeds from long-term
borrowings A A a€” A A A 50,000 A Purchases of common stock for treasuryA A (422)A A (563 ) Cash dividends paid to common and preferred shareholders A A (14,969 )A A (14,761)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities A A (51,702 ) A A 286,225 A Net increase in cash and cash equivalents A A 125,127 A A A 61,645 A Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of period A A 124,442 A A A 130,466 A Cash and cash equivalents, end of period A $ 249,569 A A $ 192,111 A A See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements. 8 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (1.) BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESNature of OperationsFinancial Institutions, Inc. (the &€ceCompanya€) is a financial holding company organized in 1931 under the laws of
New York State (a4€ceNew Yorka€). The Company provides diversified financial services through its subsidiaries, Five Star Bank (the &€ceBanka€) and Courier Capital, LLC (d€ceCourier
Capitala€). The Company offers a broad array of deposit, lending and other financial services to individuals, municipalities and businesses in Western and Central New York through its wholly
owned New York chartered banking subsidiary, the Bank. The Bank also has commercial loan production offices in Ellicott City (Baltimore), Maryland and Syracuse, New York, and indirect
lending network relationships with franchised automobile dealers in the Capital District of New York. Effective January 1, 2024, the Company exited the Pennsylvania automobile market to align
our focus more fully around its core Upstate New York market. Courier Capital provides customized investment management, investment consulting and retirement plan services to individuals,
businesses, institutions, foundations and retirement plans. The Companya€™s Banking-as-a-Service (a&€ceBaaSa€) business has offered banking capabilities to non-bank financial service
providers and other financial technology firms, or FinTechs, allowing them to provide banking services to their end users. On September 16, 2024, the Company issued a press release
announcing its intent to begin an orderly wind down of its Baa$S offerings, following a careful review by the Companya€™s executive management and Board of Directors undertaken in
conjunction with its annual strategic planning process.On April 1, 2024, the Company announced and closed the sale of the assets of its former subsidiary SDN Insurance Agency, LLC
(&€0eSDNa€), which provided a broad range of insurance services to personal and business clients, to NFP Property & Casualty Services, Inc., a subsidiary of NFP Corp. The sale generated $27
million in proceeds, or a pre-tax gain of $13.7 million, after selling costs, which was recorded to net gain (loss) on other assets on the Companya€™s statement of income. The all-cash
transaction value represented approximately four times our 2023 insurance revenue. Following the sale of the assets of SDN, the Company changed the name of the entity to Five Star Advisors
LLC and expects to utilize it to serve as a conduit to refer insurance business to NFP.Basis of PresentationThe consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The accounting and reporting policies conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (4€eGAAPA€). Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in conformity with GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to
such rules and regulations. However, in the opinion of management, the accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments of a normal and recurring nature necessary for a
fair presentation of the consolidated statements of financial condition, income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholdersa€™ equity and cash flows for the periods indicated and contain
adequate disclosures to make the information presented not misleading. These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Companya€™s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. The results of operations for any interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results which may be expected for the entire year or any other
period.ReclassificationsCertain reclassifications of previously reported amounts have been made to conform to the current yeara€™s presentation. Such reclassifications did not impact net
income or shareholdersa€™ equity as previously reported.Use of EstimatesThe preparation of these financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates relate to the
determination of the allowance for credit losses, the carrying value of goodwill and deferred tax assets, and assumptions used in the defined benefit pension plan accounting.Cash Flow
ReportingSupplemental cash flow information is summarized as follows for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands): A A A 2024 A A 2023A Supplemental
information: A A A A A A Cash paid for interest A $ 121,197 A A $ 95,913 A Cash paid for income taxes A A 3,526 A A A 6,298 A Noncash investing and financing activities: AAAA
A A Real estate and other assets acquired in settlement of loans A A 181 A A A 163 A Accrued and declared unpaid dividends A A 5,004 A A A 4,983 A A 9 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (1.) BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)Fraudulent Activityln early March 2024, the Company experienced charge-offs associated with fraudulent activity pertaining to deposit transactions conducted over the
course of several business days by an in-market business customer of the Bank, which resulted in an $18.2 million pre-tax loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. The fraud
exposure arose from non-contractual, external fraud, and was treated as an operational loss, recorded in deposit-related charged-off items, in noninterest expense for the first quarter of 2024,
with a small recovery of $143 thousand being recorded for the second quarter of 2024. The Bank is working with the appropriate law enforcement authorities in connection with this matter and
is aggressively pursuing all legal recourse available to recover additional funds and minimize the loss. However, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to recover any further
offset to the deposit loss. The ultimate financial impact could be lower and will depend, in part, on the Banka€™s success in its efforts to recover the funds. Recent Accounting
PronouncementsIn March 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-02, Investments &€” Equity Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323): Accounting for Investments in Tax Credit Structures Using
the Proportional Amortization Method. The ASU allows for entities to consistently account for tax credit equity investments utilizing the proportional amortization method across all types of tax
credits when certain requirements are met. The election of proportional amortization method must be made on a programmatic basis rather than an individual investment basis. For previously
held tax credit investments, the amendments will be applied either on a modified retrospective basis or a retrospective basis. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2023, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Companya€™s
consolidated financial statements.Standards Not Yet EffectiveIn November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment
Disclosures. The amendments expand the disclosure requirements of segment expenses, as well as adding disclosure of the title and position of the chief operation decision maker &4€CODMa€
and an explanation of how the CODM uses the reported measures of segment profit or loss in assessing segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources is also required. The
amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The
adoption of this guidance may require additional disclosure in the Companya€™s financial statement related to segments.In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Tax (Topic
740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. The amendments expand the disclosure requirements of income taxes, primarily related to the income tax rate reconciliation and income taxes
paid. The guidance also eliminates certain existing disclosure requirements related to uncertain tax positions and unrecognized deferred income tax liabilities. The amendments are effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2025. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of this guidance is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company&€™s consolidated financial statements. 10 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated
Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (2.) EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE (3€0cEPS4€)The followmg table presents a reconciliation of the _earnings and shares used i in calculatmg basic and
diluted EPS (in thousands, except per share amounts).A A A Three months ended September 30, A A Nine months ended September 30, A A A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A Net
income available to common shareholders A $ 13,101 A A $ 13,657 A A $40,071 A A $39,390 A Welghted average common shares outstandmg AAAAAAAAA A A A Total shares
issued A A 16,100 A A A 16,100 A A A 16,100 A A A 16,100 A Unvested restricted stock awards A A (10 YA A (11 )A A (10)A A (8) Treasury shares A A (626)A A (698) A

(653) A A (721) Total basic weighted average common shares outstanding A A 15,464 A A A 15391 A A A 15,437A A A 15,371 A Incremental shares from assumed: A A A A A A A
A A A A A Vesting of restricted stock awards A A 172A A A 71A A A 145A A A 72 A Total diluted weighted average common shares outstanding A A 15,636 A A A 15,462A A A
2.

A
A

15,582 A A A 15,443 A Basic earnings per common share A $085A A $0.89A A $260A A $2.56A Diluted earnings per common share A $084A A $0.88A A $257A A $2.55A
A For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, no average shares were excluded from the computation of diluted EPS because the effect would be antidilutive. A A 11
Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudlted)A (3.) INVESTMENT SECURITIESThe amortlzed cost and fair
value of investment securities are summarized below (in thousands):A A A Amortized A A Unrealized A A Unrealized A A FairA A A CostA A Gains A A Losses A A Value A September

30,2024A A AAAAAAAAA A Securities available forsale: A A A AAAAAAA A A US. Government agency and government sponsored enterprises A $ 24,535 A A §$ &€”

A $1,947A A $ 22,588 A Mortgage-backed securities: A A A A AAAAAAA A Federal National Mortgage Association A A 421,611A A A 4A A A 49,964A A A 371,651 A
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation A A 374,630 A A A 549 A A A 50,573 A A A 324,606 A Government National Mortgage Association A A 120,796 A A A 221 A A A 19,415A
A A 101,602 A Collateralized mortgage obligations: AAAAAAAAAA A A Federal National Mortgage Association A A 10,131 A A A a¢”A A A 1,927A A A 8, 204A Federal

Home Loan Mortgage CorporatlonA A 37,123 A A A 562 A A A 3,607A A A 34,078 A Government National Mortgage Association A A 14367A A A 631A A A a€”A A A 14,998 A
Privately issued A A a€” A A A 382A A A a€”A A A 382 A Total mortgage-backed securities A A 978,658 A A A 2,349 A A A 125,486 A A A 855,521 A Other debt securities A A
8,656 A A A51A A A a€”A A A 8,707 A Total available for sale securities A $ 1,011,849 A A $2,400A A $127, 433 A A $ 886,816 A Securities held to maturity: AAAAAAAA
A A A A U.S. Government agency and government sponsored enterprises A $16,626 A A $a€”A A $213A A $16,413 A State and political subdivisions A A 48,472A A A 17A A A
4,284 A A A 44,205 A Mortgage-backed securities: AAAAAAAAAAA A Federal National Mortgage Association A A 5,284 A A A a€” A A A 379 A A A 4,905 A Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation A A 7,407 A A A &€” A 1,086 A A A 6,321 A Government National Mortgage Association A A 18,810 A A A 4€”A A A 1,440A A A 17,370 A
Collateralized mortgage obligations: A A A A A A A A A Federal National Mortgage Association A A 9,556 A A A 46€” A A A 538 A A A 9,018 A Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation A A 11,971 A A A a€ 561 3,156 A A A a6”A A A 185A A A 2,971 A Total mortgage-backed
securities A A 56,184 A $17A A $8686A A $112,613 A Allowance for credit losses a€“
secuntlesA A @3 )A A A December 31,2023 A A A AAAAAAAAA Securities available
,535A A $a€”A A $2,724 A A $ 21,811 A Mortgage-backed securities: A

388,199 A Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation A A 402,399 A A
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11,410 A Government National Mortgage Association A

,189 51,995 A Total held to maturlty securities A A 121,282
Total held to maturity securities, net A $ 121,279A A A A A A A

.S. Government agencies and government sponsored enterprises A $2

Federal National Mortgage Association A A 449,418 A A A a€” A A A 61,219 A
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665 A A A 343,222 A Government National Mortgage Association A A 126,417A A A A A 21,409 A A A 105,260 A Collateralized mortgage obligations: AAA
A A A Fe deral National Mortgage Association A A 10,954 A A A a€” A A A 2,343A A 11 A Federal Home Loan Mortgage CorporatlonA A 19,766 A A A a€” A A
,186 A 15,580 A Government National Mortgage Association A A 4,501 A A A 221 A A A a6” A A A 4,722 A Privately issued A A a€” A 325A A A a€”A A A 325A
mortgage- -backed securities A A 1,013,455A A A 1,286 A A A 148,822 A A A 865,919 A Total available for sale securities A $ 1,037,990 A A $1,286 A A $151,546 A A $ 887,730
A 12 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (3.) INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Continued)A A
mortlzedA A Unrealized A A Unrealized A A FairA A A CostA A Gains A A Losses A A Value A December 31, 2023 (continued) A A A A A AAAAA A A Securities held to
urity: A A AAAAAAAAA A US. Government agencies and government sponsored enterprises A $16,513 A A $a€”A A $530A A $ 15,983 A State and political subdivisions
68,854 A A A 34A A A 5,106 A A A 63,782 A Mortgage -backed securities: A A A AAAAAAAA A Federal National Mortgage Association A A 5, 729 A A A ae”A A A 467
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A 5,262 A Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation A A 7,648 A A A 4€”A A A 1,269A A A 6,379 A Government National Mortgage Association A A 20,223 A A A a€”"A A A
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Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation A A 14,196 A A A 4€” A A A 968 A A A 13,228 A Government National Mortgage Association A A 3565A A A a€”A A A270A A A 3,295
A Total mortgage-backed securities A A 62,793 A A A 4€”A A A 5,528 A A A 57,265 A Total held to maturity securities A A 148,160A A $34A A $11,164 A A $ 137,030 A
Allowance for credit losses 4€“ securities A A (4)A A A A A A A A A Total held to maturity securities, net A $ 148,156 A A A A A A A A A A A The Company elected to exclude
accrued interest receivable (4€eAIRA€) from the amortized cost basis of debt securities disclosed throughout this footnote. For available for sale (a4€0eAFS&€) debt securities, AIR totaled $2.1
million as of both September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023. For held to maturity (&4€ceHTMa€) debt securities, AIR totaled $719 thousand and $571 thousand as of September 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively. AIR is included in other assets on the Companya€™s consolidated statements of financial condition.For the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023,
the provision for credit losses for HTM investment securities was less than $1 thousand in each period. The provision for credit losses for HTM investment securities was $1 thousand in the nine
months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023.Investment securities with a total fair value of $862.3 million and $845.2 million at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, were
pledged as collateral to secure public deposits and for other purposes required or permitted by law.There were no sales of securities available for sale for the nine months ended September 30,
2024 and 2023.The scheduled maturities of securities available for sale and securities held to maturity at September 30, 2024 are shown below (in thousands). Actual expected maturities may
differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations. A A A Amortized A A FairA A A Cost A A Value A Debt securities available for sale: A A
A A A A Dueinone year or less A $16 A A $16 A Due from one to five years A A 91,628 A A A 85,664 A Due after five years through ten years A A 87,217A A A 80,109 A Due after
ten years A A 832,988 A A A 721,027 A Total available for sale securities A $ 1,011,849 A A $ 886,816 A Debt securities held to maturity: A A A A A A Dueinone year or less A $
18,896 A A $ 18,771 A Due from one to five years A A 21,975 A A A 21,257 A Due after five years through ten years A A 22,940 A A A 21,487 A Due after tenyearsA A 57,471 A A A
51,098 A Total held to maturity securities A $121,282A A $112,613A A 13 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements (Unaudited)A (3.) INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Continued)Unrealized losses on investment securities for which an allowance for credit losses has not been recorded and the fair
value of the related securities, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, were as follows (in
thousands) :A A A Lessthan 12 months A A 12 months or longerA A Total A A A Fair A A Unrealized A A Fair A A Unrealized A A Faer A Unrealized A A A Value A A Losses A A
Value A A Losses A A Value A A Losses A September 30,2024A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A Securities available forsal: A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
U.S. Government agencies and government A A A sponsored enterprises A $ 4€” A A $a€” A A $22,588A A $1,947 A A $22,588A A $1,947 A Mortgage-backed securities: AAAAA
AAAAAAAAAAAA A Federal National Mortgage Association A A ae”A A 4€” A A A 371,447A A A 49,964 A A A 371,447 A A A 49,964 A Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation A A a€” A A A a€” A A A 301,234A A A 50,573 A A A 301,234A A 50,573 A Government National Mortgage Association A A 15A A A a€”A A A 86,117A A A
A AAAAAAAAA A Federal National Mortgage Association A A a€” AAAaeAA
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19,415A A A 86,132 A A A 19,415 A Collateralized mortgage obligations: AAA AAA

A 8204A A A 1,927A A A 8, 204[\ A A 1,927 A Federal Home Loan Mortgage Co rporationAAAk”Q A A A ae”A A A 15010A A A 3,607A A A 15,010A A A 3,607 A Total
mortgage-backed securities A A 15 A A A a€” A A A 782,012A A A 125,486 A A A 782,027 A A A 125,486 A Total available for sale securities A A 15A A A 4€” A A A 804,600 A
A A 127,433A A A 804,615A A A 127,433 A Other debt securities A A a€”A A A 4" A A A a}e”AAAAAAAé{J A A A &” A A A 4€” A Total AFS debt securities with unrealized losses
A$15AA$a€"AA$804GOOAA$ 27,4 AA$804,615AA$12743 AAAAAA AAAAAAAAA AADeCember312023AAAAAAAAAAAAAA
A A A A Securities available for sale: A A A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAA US. Government agencies and government A A A sponsored enterprises A $ 4€” A A $4€” A A $
21,811A A $2,724 A A $21,811A A $ 2,724 A Mortgage-backed securities: A A A A AAAAAAAAAAAAA A Federal National Mortgage AssociationA A 8A A A 4" A A
A 388,191 A A A 61,219A A A 388,199 A A A 61,219 A Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation A A 4€”A A A a€”A A A 314,854 A A A 59,665A A A 314,854 A A A 59,665 A
Government National Mortgage Association A A 4€” A A A a€”A A A 86,475A A A 21,409A A A 86,475A A A 21,409 A Collateralized mortgage obligations: A A A AAAAAAA
A AAAAAA A Federal National Mortgage Association A A 4€”A A A a¢”A A A 8611 A A A 2,343A A A 8611 A A A 2,343 A Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporatio: onA A

a€” A A A a¢”A A A 15580 A A A 4,186A A A 15,580 A A A 4,186 A Total mortgage-backed securities A ABAAAae”AAAB813711A A A 148,822 A A A 813,719A A A
148,822 A Total available for sale securitiesA A 8 A A A a€” A A A 835,522 A A A 151,546 A A A 835,530 A A A 151,546 A Total AFS debt securities with unrealized losses A $ 8 A
$4a€”A A $835522A A $151,546 A A $835530A A $151,546 A A 14 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements (Unaudited)A (3.) INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Continued)The total number of AFS securitiesa€™ positions in the investment portfolio in an unrealized loss position was 185 at
September 30, 2024 and 201 at December 31, 2023, respectively. At September 30, 2024, the Company had a position in 183 investment securities with a fair value of $804.6 million and a total
unrealized loss of $127.4 million that had been in a continuous unrealized loss position for more than 12 months. At September 30, 2024, there were a total of two securitiesa€™ positions in the
Companya€™s investment portfolio with a fair value of $15 thousand and a total unrealized loss of less than $1 thousand that had been in a continuous unrealized loss position for less than 12
months. At December 31, 2023, the Company had a position in 198 investment securities with a fair value of $835.5 million and a total unrealized loss of $151.5 million that had been in a
continuous unrealized loss position for more than 12 months. At December 31, 2023, there were a total of three securitiesd€™ positions in the Companya€™s investment portfolio with a fair
value of $8 thousand and a total unrealized loss of less than $1 thousand that had been in a continuous unrealized loss position for less than 12 months. The unrealized loss on investment
securities was predominantly caused by changes in market interest rates subsequent to purchase. The fair value of the Companya€™s portfolio fluctuates as market interest rates
change.Securities Available for SaleAs of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, no allowance for credit losses had been recognized on AFS securities in an unrealized loss position as
management does not believe any of the securities were impaired due to reasons of credit quality. This is based upon our analysis of the underlying risk characteristics, including credit ratings,
and other qualitative factors related to our available for sale securities and in consideration of our historical credit loss experience and internal forecasts. The issuers of these securities
continue to make timely principal and interest payments under the contractual terms of the securities. Furthermore, the Company expects to recover the amortized cost basis of its investments
and more than likely will not need to sell before the recovery period for operating purposes, with no impairment identified. As the portfolio is managed from a liquidity, earnings, and risk
standpoint, sales from the AFS portfolio may be warranted based upon prevailing market factors. The unrealized losses are due to increases in market interest rates over the yields available at
the time the underlying securities were purchased. The fair value is expected to recover as the securities approach their maturity date or repricing date or if market yields for such investments
decline.Securities Held to MaturityThe Companya€™s HTM investment securities include debt securities that are issued by U.S. government agencies or U.S. government-sponsored
enterprises. These securities carry the explicit and/or implicit guarantee of the U.S. government, are widely recognized as a€cerisk free,a€ and have a long history of zero credit loss. In addition,
the Companya€™s HTM investment securities include debt securities that are issued by state and local government agencies, or municipal bonds.The Company monitors the credit quality of our
municipal bonds through the use of a credit rating agency or by ratings that are derived by an internal scoring model. The scoring methodology for the internally derived ratings is based on a
series of financial ratios for the municipality being reviewed as compared to typical industry figures. This information is used to determine the financial strengths and weaknesses of the
municipality, which is indicated with a numeric rating. This number is then converted into a letter rating to better match the system used by the credit rating agencies. As of September 30,
2024, $45.3 million of our municipal bonds were rated as an equivalent to Standard & Poora€™s A/AA/AAA, with $3.2 million internally rated to be the equivalent of Standard & Poora€™s
A/AA/AAA rating. Additionally, no municipal bonds were rated below investment grade. As of December 31, 2023, $64.6 million of our municipal bonds were rated as an equivalent to Standard
& Poora€™s A/AA/AAA, with $4.2 million internally rated to be the equivalent of Standard & Poora€™s A/AA/AAA rating, and no municipal bonds were rated below investment grade. As of
September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had no past due or nonaccrual held to maturity investment securities. 15 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudlted)A (4.) LOANS The Companya€™s loan portfolio consisted of the following as of the dates indicated (in thousands):A A A
PrincipalAmountOutstanding A A Net Deferred Loan (Fees)Costs A A Loans,Net A September 30,2024 A A’'/A A A A A A A Commercial business A $ 653,921 A A $598 A A $ 654,519
A Commercial mortgage - construction A A 535,124 A A A (1,618) A A 533,506 A Commercial mortgage - multifamily A A 468,064 A A A (537) A A 467,527 A Commercial mortgage -
non-owner occupled A A 815,369A A A (977)A A 814,392 A Commercial mortgage - owner occupled A A 290,221A A A (5 )A A 290,216 A Residential real estate loans A A 636,870
A A 11,371 A A A 648,241 A Residential real estate lines A A 72,926 A A A 3,277A A A 76,203 A Consumer indirect A A 846,903 A A A 27,748 A A A 874,651 A Other consumer
A 43,803A A A (69) A A 43,734 A Total A $ 4,363,201 A A $39,788 A A A 4,402,989 A Allowance for credit losses 4€“ loansA A A A A A A A (44,678 ) Total loans netA A A A
A A $ 4,358,311 A December 31, 2023A A A A A A A A A Commercial busmessA $ 734, 947 A A $ 753 A A $ 735,700 A Commercial mortgage - construction A A 495,198 A A A
(2,195 )A A 493,003 A Commercial mortgage - multlfamllyA A 452,778 A A A (623 )A A 452,155 A Commercial mortgage - non-owner occupledA A 789,631 A A A (1,116)A A
788,515 A Commercial mortgage - owner occupied A A 271,662 A A A (16)A A 271,646 A Residential real estate loans A A 637,173 A A A 12,649 A A A 649,822 A Residential real
estate lines A A 73,972 A A A 3,395A A A 77,367 A Consumer indirect A A 915,723 A A A 33,108 A A A 948,831 A Other consumer A A 45,167 A A A (67)A A 45,100 A Total A $
4,416,251 A A $ 45,888 A A A 4,462,139 A Allowance for credit losses 4€“loansA A A A A A A A (51,082 ) Total loans, netA A A A A A A $4,411,057 A A Loans held for sale (not
included above) were comprised entirely of residential real estate mortgages and totaled $2.5 million and $1.4 million as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.The
Company sells certain qualifying newly originated or refinanced residential real estate loans on the secondary market. Residential real estate loans serviced for others, which are not included in
the consolidated statements of financial condition, amounted to $276.8 million and $269.4 million as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. The Company elected to
exclude AIR from the amortized cost basis of loans disclosed throughout this footnote. As of both September 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023, AIR for loans totaled $20.8 million and is
included in other assets on the Company&€™s consolidated statements of financial condition. 16 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated
Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (4.) LOANS (Continued)Past Due Loans AglngThe Companya€ ™s recorded investment, by loan class, in current and nonaccrual loans, as well as an analy51s
of accruing delinquent loans is set forth as of the dates indicated (in thousands): :A A A 30-59 DaysPast Due A A 60-89 DaysPast Due A A Greater Than90 Days A A Total PastDue A A
Nonaccrual A A Current A A TotalLoans A A Nonaccrualwith no specificallowance A September 30, 2024 AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A A A Commercial
business A $ 7A A $6, 500 A A $ 8A A $6,515A A $5,752 A A $641,654 A A $653,921 A A $ 332 A Commercial mortgage - construction A A 52 A A A A a€”A A A 52
A A A 20280A A A 514,792 A A A 535,124 A A A 20,280 A Commercial mortgage - multlfamllyA a€”A AAac"AAAae”"AAAa€"AAATL 467,993A A A 468,064
A A A 71 A Commercial mortgage - non-owner occupled A A 334A A A a€”A A A ae” A 334 A 4903A A A 810,132A A A 815,369A A A ommercial mortgage -
owner occupied AAae”AAAae”"AAAae”"AAAae"AA 366 A A A 289,855A A A 290 221 A A 366 A Residential real estate loans A A 23 a€” A A A a€” A A

2,356 A A A 5790A A A 628,724 A A A 636,870 A 5,790 A Residential real estate lines A A 81 AAA49A A A a€”"AAA130AAA232AAAT72564AAA 72926A A
232 A Consumer indirect A A 7,284 A A A 1,998A A 0A A A 846,903 A A A 3,291 A Other consumer A A 236 A A A 11A A A 35
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$18951A A $40,699A A §4,3 A$ ,363,201 A A $
Asae”A A ga€"A A $341A A $5664A A $7289424 A
A 489,151 A A A 495,198A A A 5320A Commercial

AAA282AAA 14A A A 43507A A A 43,803A
34,958 A December 31,2023A A AAAAAAAA

$ 734,947 A A $ 341 A Commercial mortgage - constructio
mortgage - multifamily A A 4,036 A A A a€” A A A ae” A
A ae” A A A ag” AAA338AAA4651AA A 784,642
403 A A A 269,733A A A 271, 662A A A 403 A Residential re 94 A A A 6364A A A 628, 115A A A 637, 173 A A A 6,
A Residential real estate linesA A 163A A A 20A A A a€”A A A 183A A A 221 AAA 73,568 A A A 73,972 221 A Consumer indirect A A 16,128 A A A 3,204A A A
A AA19332A A A 3814A A A 892,577A A A 915,723 A A A 3,814 A Other consumer A A 122A A A 27A A A21A A A 170A A A 13A A A 44,984 A A A 45,167 A A
A Total loans, gross A $ 25,268 A A $4,058A A $21 A A $29,347A A $26,639A A $4,360,265A A $4,416,251 A A $ 21,316 A A There were $35 thousand and $21 thousand in
consumer overdrafts which were past due greater than 90 days as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023. Consumer overdrafts are overdrawn deposit accounts which have been
reclassified as loans but by their terms do not accrue interest.Interest income on nonaccrual loans, if recognized, is recorded using the cash basis method of accounting. There was no interest
income recognized on nonaccrual loans during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023. Estimated interest income of $519 thousand and $437 thousand for the nine months ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, would have been recorded if all such loans had been accruing interest according to their original contractual terms.Loan Modifications for
Borrowers Experiencing Financial DifficultyLoans may be modified when it is determined that a borrower is experiencing financial difficulty. Loan modifications may include principal
forgiveness, interest rate reduction, an other-than-insignificant payment delay, and term extensions, or a combination of these concessions. 17 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS,
INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (4.) LOANS (Continued)The following table presents the amortized cost basis of loans modified to borrowers
experiencing financial difficulty, disaggregated by loan class and type of concession granted as of September 30, 2024 (in thousands): A A A Term Extension A A A Amortized Cost Basis A A
% of Total Loans A Loan Type A A A A A A Commercial business A $ 4€” A A A 0.0 % Commercial mortgage - construction A A 4€” A A A 0.0 % Commercial mortgage - multifamily AA
4€” A A A 0.0 % Commercial mortgage - non-owner occupied A A a€” A A A 0.0 % Commercial mortgage - owner occupied A A 4€” A A A 0.0 % Residential real estate loans A A 1,736 A
A A 0.1 % Residential real estate lines A A 46€” A A A 0.0 % Consumer indirect A A 4€” A A A 0.0 % Other consumer A A 4€” A A A 0.0 % Total A $ 1,736 A A A 0.1 % The following
table describes the financial effect of the modifications made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty:A Term Extension Loan Type A Financial Effect Residential real estate loans A
Added a weighted average 10.0A years to the life of the loan, which reduced the monthly payment amount for the borrower. A The Company closely monitors the performance of loans that are
modified to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty to understand the effectiveness of its modification efforts. The following table depicts the performance of loans that have been modified in
the nine months ended September 30, 2024 (in thousands) A A A Payment Status (Amortized Cost Basis) A A A CurrentA A 30-89 Days Past Due A A 90+ Days Past Due A Loan Type A A
A AAAA A A Commercial businessA $ 4€” A A $4a€” A A $ 4€” A Commercial mortgage - construction A A a€”A A A a€” A A A 4€” A Commercial mortgage - multifamily A A ae”
A A A ae” A A A a€” A Commercial mortgage - non-owner occupied A A ae”A A A a€” A A A a€” A Commercial mortgage - owner occupied A A ae”AAA ac”A A A a€”A
Residential real estate loans A A 1,196 A A A 386 A A A 154 A Residential real estate lines A A 46" A A A 4€” A A A a4€” A Consumer indirect A A 4€” A A A a€” A A A a€” A Other
consumer A A 4€” A A A a€” A AA 4€” A Total A $ 1,196 A A $386A A $154A A 18 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated
Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (4.) LOANS (Continued)Collateral Dependent LoansManagement has determined that specific commercial loans on nonaccrual status, all loans that have had
their terms restructured when a borrower is experiencing financial difficulty, and other loans deemed appropriate by management where repayment is expected to be provided substantially
through the operation or sale of the collateral to be collateral dependent loans. The following table presents the amortized cost basis of collateral dependent loans by collateral type as of
September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 (in thousands): A A Collateraltype A A A A A A A A A Business assets A A Real property A A Total A A Specific Reserve A September 30,
2024A A AAAAAAAAA A Commercial business A $ 6,939A A $5000A A $11,939A A $2,321 A Commercial mortgage - construction A A a€”A A A 29,812 A A A 29 812
A A A a€” A Commercial mortgage - multlfamlly AAa”AAA70AAA70AAA 4" A Commercial mortgage - non-owner occupied A A 4€” A A A A A 24
A Commercial mortgage - owner occupied A A ae”A AA 745A A A 745A A A 4€” A Total A $6,939A A $53,415A A $60,354A A $2,345A A
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December 31,2023A A A AAAAAA A A A Commercial business A $8,698A A $5000A A $13,698A A $2,198 A Commercial mortgage - construction A A 4€”A A A 14,939 A
A A 14,939 A A A 4€” A Commercial mortgage - multifamily A A 4€” A A A 6, 1A64.A A A 6,164A A A 559 A Commercial mortgage - non-owner occupied A A a”A A A 4651AAA
4,651 A A A a€” A Commercial mortgage - owner occupied A A a€”A A A 821 A A A 821 A A A a€” A Total A $8,698A A $31,575A A $40,273A A $2,757 A Credit Quality
IndicatorsThe Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to service their debt such as: current financial information, historical
payment experience, credit documentation, public information, and current economic trends, among other factors such as the fair value of collateral. The Company analyzes commercial
business and commercial mortgage loans individually by classifying the loans as to credit risk. Risk ratings are updated any time the situation warrants. The Company uses the following
definitions for risk ratings:Special Mention: Loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves managementa€™s close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential
weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of the Companya€™ s credit position at some future date.Substandard: Loans classified as substandard are
inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that
jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.Doubtful: Loans classified as
doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard, with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently
existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable.Loans that do not meet the criteria above that are analyzed individually as part of the process described above are
considered a€ceuncriticizeda€ or pass-rated loans and are included in groups of homogeneous loans with similar risk and loss characteristics. 19 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS,
INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (4.) LOANS (Contmued)The following tables set forth the Companya€™s commercial loan portfoho o
categorized by internally assigned asset classification, as of the dates indicated (in thousands):A A A Term Loans Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year AAAAAAAAAAAA
2024 A A 2023 A A 2022 A A 2021 A A 2020 A A PriorA A RevolvingLoansAmortizedCost Basis A A RevolvingLoansConvertedto Term A A Total A September 30, 2024
A A A A Commercial Business: A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA UHCI‘IthlZedA $79428A
20,535A A $277,164 A A $a€” A A $619,567 A Special mentionA A 95A A A 5487A A A
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101, 858A A $83,380A A $
ecial mention 12,550 A
AAA210AAAa€”AAA3AAAa€”AA
,903 A Total Commercial Mortgage - Non-Owner Occupied A $
rrent period gross write-offs A $ 4€” A A $a€”A A $4&
AAAAAAAAAA A Commercial Mortgage - Owner Occupied A A A A A A
5 ,492 A $43908AA$55723AA$a€"AA$a€“A $ 287,236 A Speci
A 2,000 A Substandard A A 4€”A A A a€"A A A 224A A A a€"AAA379AAA 12AAA &€ AAA ae”
A a€”A A A365A A A a€”A A A a€” A A A 365 A Total Commercial Mortgage - Owner OccupledA $ 59,
44,605 A A ,328A A $a€”A A $4€” A A $290,216 A Current period gross write-offs A $ 46" A A $4€” A A $a€”A A $ A
A $ae”A A $ a€” A A $a€”A A 20 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consohdated Fmanmal Statements (Unaudite )A (4
(Continued)A A A Term Loans Amortized Cost Basis by Origination Year A A A A AAAAAARAAD2023AA 2022 A A 2021 A A AP A
RevolvingLoansAmortizedCost Basis A A RevolvingLoansConvertedto Term A A Total A December 31, 2023 A A
Commercial BusinessA AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A Uncriticized A $
64,648 A A $ 257,585 A A $a€”A A $706,421 A Special mention A A 7,532 A A A a€” A
Substandard A A 1,609A A A 11A A A 81AAAa”AAAae”"AA A 888A A
14A A A 39 A 1 A A a€” A A A 5,670 A Total Commercial Business
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Special mention A
AAAa€"AAA379AAA
Commercial Mortgage - Non-Owner OccupiedA
gross write-offs A $ 4€” A A $a€” A A $a€”A A
Commercial Mortgage - Owner OCCupled AAAA
26,571 A A $45,087A A $4€"A A $4€”A A § pecial mention A A a€” A A
Substandard A A a€” A A A &€~ A AAa"AAA4L19AAA G€"AAA 16A A A ae”
A 403A A A a€”A A A a€” A A A 403 A Total Commercial Mortgage Owner OccupledA $45,220A A $68,542A A $ 37,270 A A A $45,506 A A $a€”A
A $a€” A A $271,646 A Current period gross write-offs A $ae”A A $a€”A A $a€”A A $a€”A A $a€”A A $18A A $a€”A A $ €" A A $18A A 21 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (4.) LOANS (Continued)The Company utilizes payment status as a means of identifying and
reporting problem and potential problem retail loans. The Company considers nonaccrual loans and loans past due greater than 90 days and still accruing interest to be non-performing. The
following tables set forth the Company&€™s retail loan portfolio, categorized by performance status, as of the dates indicated (in thousands): A A Term Loans Amortized Cost Basis by
Origination YearA AAAAAAAAA A 2024A A 2023 A A 2022 A A 2021 A A 2020 A A PriorA A RevolvingLoansAmortizedCost Basis A A RevolvingLoansConvertedto TermA
A A A AAAAAAAAAAAA A Residential Real Estate LoansA A A A A A A A
A$76403AA$102516AA$237785AA$a€"AA$a€”AA A
A a€” A A A 5,790 A Total Residential Real Estate Loans A $ 36,2
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A $88A A $ 4€” A A $767 A AA 22 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL IN!
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€“ LoansThe following table sets forth the changes in the allowance for credit losses 4€“ loans for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands):A A A
mercial MortgageA A Residential Real EstateA A AAAAAAAAA A CommercialBusiness A A Construction A A Multi- famllyA A Non- OwnerOccupledA
cupied A A LoansA A Lines A A Consumerindirect A A OtherConsu: merA A T alA Three months ended September 30, 2002AAAAAAAAAAAAAA
A A A A Allowance for credit losses 4€“loans: AAA A A A A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Beginning balanceA $ 12 246
52A A $2,118A A $4,211A A $769A A ChargeoffsAA(40)AAé€ AAA@13)AAae"AAA “AAA(Q
17)AA(4652)RecovenesAA43AA AAAlAAASAAAa€"AA A Benefit
828)A A 1,425A A A 2081AAA A A 127A A A 2,391 A Endin
5 $833AA$11346AA$ 0A A
$ 13,102 A A $3710AA$ 009
a€"A A A (109)A A 46" A A
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AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Commercial Mortgage A A Residential Real EstateA A A A A A A AAAA A CommercialBusiness A A Construction A A
Multi-family A A Non-OwnerOccupied A A OwnerOccupied A A Loans A A Lines A A ConsumerIndirect A A OtherConsumer A A Total A Three months ended September 30, 2023 A A A
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA Alowance for credit losses a€“loans: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
Beginning balance A $ 13,418 A A $3,868 A A $4,260A A $6,407A A $2,291A A $4,646A A $710A A $13,306 A A $930A A $49,836 A Charge-offsA A (146)A A a€”A A
Aae"AAAae"AAAae”AAAa€"AAAa€"AAA (4848)A A (344)A A (5338) RecoveriesA A 114A A A 46"A A A a€"A A A B836A AABAAA4AAAGAA
A 2,565A A A 85A A A 3,740 A Provision A A (600)A A (255)A A (43)A (1,081)A A (142)A A (791)A A (173)A A 3,583A A A 894 A A A 1,392 A Ending balance A $
12,786 A A $3,613A A $4,217A A $6212A A $2235A A $3,859A A $537A A $14606A A $1,565A A $49,630 A Nine months ended September 30, 2023 A A A AAAAA
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A Beginning balance A A 12,585A A A 2,657A A A 3,409A A A 6,237A A A 2,109A A A 3301A A A 608A A A 14,238A
A A 269A A A 45413 A Charge-offsA A (263)A A a€”A A A a€”A A A a€”A A A (18)A A (102)A A (41)A A (12,477)A A (1,064)A A (13,965) Recoveries A A 322 A A A
é€”AAAé€”AAA887AAA89AAA35AAAa€’AAA8056AAA253AAA9642A Provision (benefit) A A 142A A A 956 A A A 808A A A (912)A A 55A A A
625A A A (30)A A 4,789A A A 2,107A A A 8,540 A Ending balance A $ 12,786 A A $3,613A A $4,217A A $6,212A A $2,235A A $3,859A A $537A A $14,606A A $

1,565A A $49,630 A AA 24 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (4.) LOANS (Continued)Risk
CharacteristicsLoans are pooled based on their homogeneous risk characteristics. The Company has divided its loan portfolio into segments, as the loans within each segment have similar
characteristics related to loan purpose, tenor, amortization, repayment source, payment frequency, collateral and recourse.Commercial business loans primarily consist of loans to small to mid-
sized businesses in our market area in a diverse range of industries. These loans are typically associated with higher credit risk and typically are made on the basis of the borrowera€™ s ability
to make repayment from the cash flow of the borrowera€™ s business. Further, the collateral securing the loans may depreciate over time, may be difficult to appraise and may fluctuate in
value. The credit risk related to commercial loans is largely influenced by general economic conditions, including inflation, and the resulting impact on a borrowera€™s operations or on the
value of underlying collateral, if any.Commercial mortgage loans generally have larger balances and involve a greater degree of risk than residential mortgage loans, potentially resulting in
higher losses on an individual customer basis. Loan repayment is often dependent on the successful operation and management of the properties, as well as on the collateral securing the loan.
Economic events, including inflation, influencing the ability of the tenants to pay rent at these properties, or conditions in the real estate market could have an adverse impact on the cash flows
generated by properties securing the Companya€™s commercial real estate loans and on the value of such properties. Beginning in the third quarter of 2024, the Company further
disaggregated the commercial mortgage loans into the following categories: construction, multifamily, non-owner occupied, and owner occupied based on the risk characteristics of the loans
and the Companya€™s methodology for monitoring and assessing credit risk.Residential real estate loans (comprised of conventional mortgages and home equity loans) and residential real
estate lines of credit (comprised of home equity lines of credit) are generally made based on the borrowera€™ s ability to make repayment from his or her employment and other income but are
secured by real property whose value tends to be more easily ascertainable. Credit risk for these types of loans is generally influenced by general economic conditions, the characteristics of
individual borrowers, and the nature of the loan collateral.Consumer indirect and other consumer loans may entail greater credit risk than residential mortgage loans and home equities,
particularly in the case of other consumer loans which are primarily unsecured or, in the case of some BaaS loans, secured by depreciable assets such as solar panels, and in the case of indirect
consumer loans, secured by depreciable assets such as automobiles. In such cases, any repossessed collateral for a defaulted consumer loan may not provide an adequate source of repayment of
the outstanding loan balance. In addition, consumer loan collections are dependent on the borrowerd€™s continuing financial stability, and thus are more likely to be affected by inflation and
adverse personal circumstances such as job loss, illness or personal bankruptcy, including the heightened risk that such circumstances may arise as a result of inflation. Furthermore, the
application of various federal and state laws, including bankruptcy and insolvency laws, may limit the amount which can be recovered on such loans. (5.) LEASESThe Company is obligated
under a number of non-cancellable operating lease agreements for land, buildings and equipment with terms, including renewal options reasonably certain to be exercised, extending through
2061. Two building leases were subleased with terms that extended through December 31, 2024.The following table represents the consolidated statements of financial condition classification
of the Company&€™s right of use assets and lease liabilities: AAAAA September 30, A A December 31, A A A Balance Sheet Location A 2024 A A 2023 A Operating Lease Right of Use
Assets: A A A A A A A A Gross carrying amount A Other assets A $ 39,342 A A $ 38,684 A Accumulated amortization A Other assets A A (8,511 YA A (7,160 ) Net book value A A A $
30,831 A A $31,524A A A AAA A A A A Operating Lease Liabilities: A A A A A A A A Right of use lease obligations A Other liabilities A $ 33,192 A A $ 33,788 A A The weighted
average remaining lease term for operating leases was 20.0 years at September 30, 2024 and the weighted-average discount rate used in the measurement of operating lease liabilities was
3.92%. The Company utilizes its incremental borrowing rate at lease inception, on a collateralized basis, over a similar term for the discount rate. 25 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudlted)A (5 ) LEASES (Contmued)The followmg table represents lease costs and other lease
information:A A A Three months ended September 30, A A Nine months ended September 30, A A A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A Leasecostss A AAAAAAAAAAA
Operatmg lease costs A $ 775A A $773A A $2,327A A $ 2,308 A Variable lease costs (1) A A 139A A A 113A A A 334A A A 324 A Sublease income A A (36)A A (29)A A
(103)A A (77 ) Netlease costs A $878 A A $857A A $2,558A A $2,555A A AAAAAAAAAAA A Otherinformation:A A AAAAAA A A A A Cash paid for amounts
included in the measurement of lease liabilities: A A A A A A AAA A A A Operating cash flows from operating leases A $ 775A A $769 A A $2,327 A A $ 2,212 A Right of use assets
obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities A $ 139 A A $932A A $334A A $2,167 A A (1)Variable lease costs primarily represent variable payments such as common area
maintenance, insurance, taxes and utilities.A Future minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases with initial or remaining terms of one year or more, are as follows at September
30, 2024 (in thousands):A Twelve months ended September 30, A A 2024 $ 755 A 2025 A 2,927 A 2026 A 2,775 A 2027 A 2,748 A 2028 A 2,464 A Thereafter A 37,256 A Total future
minimum operating lease payments A 48,925 A Amounts representing interest A (15,733 ) Present value of net future minimum operating lease payments $ 33,192 A A (6.) GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETSGoodwillThe carrying amount of goodwill totaled $58.1 million and $67.1 million as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. On April 1, 2024,
the Company announced and closed on the sale of the assets of its wholly owned subsidiary, SDN. The sale resulted in a $9.0 million reduction in the carrying amount of goodwill. Goodwill is not
amortized but, instead, is subject to impairment tests on at least an annual basis, and more frequently if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair
value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. The Company performs its annual goodwill impairment test as of October 1st. The Company did not identify an indication of goodwill
impairment for any of its reporting units during the quarter ended September 30, 2024. 26 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated
Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (6.) GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)Other Intangible AssetsThe Company has other intangible assets that are amortized,
consisting of core dep051t intangibles and other intangibles (primarily related to customer relationships). Gross carrying amount, accumulated amortization and net book value, were as follows
(in thousands): A A A September 30, A A A December 31,A A A 2024 A A 2023 A Core deposit intangibles: A A A A A A Gross carrying amount A $ 2,042 A A $2,042 A Accumulated
amortization A A (2,042 )A A (2,042 ) Net book value A $ 4€” A A $4€”A A A A A A A A Other intangibles: A A A A A A Gross carrying amount A $7,243A A $14,545 A
Accumulated amortization A A (4,497 ) A A (9,112 ) Net book value A $ 2,746 A A $ 5,433 A A Amortization expense for total other intangible assets was $112 thousand and $443 thousand
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and $225 thousand and $689 thousand for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023. The reduction of the net book value
in other intangible assets as of September 30, 2024, of $2.6 million was primarily the result of the sale of the assets of SDN.A As of September 30, 2024, the estimated amortization expense of
other 1ntang1b1e assets for the remainder of 2024 and each of the next five years is as follows (in thousands): A 2024 (remainder of year) $ 109 A 2025 A 415A 2026 A 379 A 2027 A 343 A
2028 A 308 A 2029 A 272 A Thereafter A 920 A Total $ 2,746 A A 27 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)A (7.) OTHER ASSETS AND OTHER LIABILITIESA summary of other assets and other liabilities as of the dates indicated are as follows (in thousands) A A A September 30,A A
December 31, A A A 2024 A A 2023 A Other Assets: A A A A A A Tax credit investments A $ 74,711 A A $ 68,253 A Net deferred tax asset A A 41,468 A A A 48,733 A Derivative
instruments A A 35,853 A A A 43,506 A Operating lease right of use assets A A 30,831 A A A 31,524 A Federal Home Loan Bank (4€eFHLB&€) and Federal Reserve Bank (a€0eFRBa€)
stock A A 16,186 A A A 17,406 A Accrued interest receivable A A 23,702 A A A 24,481 A Other A A 48,017 A A A 80,454 A Total other assets A $ 270,768 A A $ 314,357 A AA A A
September 30, A A December 31, A A A 2024 A A 2023 A Other Liabilities: A A A A A A Collateral on derivative instruments A $ 28,330 A A $ 40,350 A Derivative instruments A A
31,645A A A 37,521 A Operating lease right of use obligations A A 33,192 A A A 33,788 A Accrued interest expense A A 27,453 A A A 19,412 A Other A A 48,989 A A A 52,570 A
Total other liabilities A $ 169,609 A A $ 183,641 A A 28 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A
(8.) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENT AND HEDGING ACTIVITIESRisk Management Objective of Using DerivativesThe Company is exposed to certain risks arising from both its business operations
and economic conditions. The Company principally manages its exposures to a wide variety of business and operational risks through management of its core business activities. The Company
manages economic risks, including interest rate, liquidity and credit risk, primarily by managing the amount, sources, and duration of its assets and liabilities, and the use of derivative financial
instruments. Specifically, the Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage exposures that arise from business activities that result in the receipt or payment of future known
and uncertain cash amounts, the value of which are determined by interest rates. The Companya€™s derivative financial instruments are used to manage differences in the amount, timing, and
duration of the Companya€™s known or expected cash receipts and its known or expected cash payments.Cash Flow Hedges of Interest Rate RiskThe Companya€™s objectives in using interest
rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage its exposure to interest rate movements. To accomplish this objective, the Company uses interest rate caps and interest
rate swaps as part of its interest rate risk management strategy. Interest rate caps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable amounts from a counterparty if interest rates
rise above the strike rate on the contract in exchange for an up-front premium. Such derivatives were used to hedge the variable cash flows associated with short-term borrowings or brokered
CDs. Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable amounts from a counterparty in exchange for the Company making fixed-rate payments over the life of
the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount. The following table summarizes the terms of the Companya€™s outstanding interest rate swap agreements entered into to
manage its exposure to the variability in future cash flows at September 30, 2024 (dollars in thousands): Effective Date A Expiration Date A Notional Amount A A Pay Fixed Rate 4/11/2022 A
4/11/2027 A $ 50,000 A A 0.787% 1/24/2023 A 1/24/2026 A $ 30,000 A A 3.669% 5/5/2023 A 5/5/2026 A $ 25,000 A A 3.4615% For derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow
hedges of interest rate risk, the gain or loss on the derivative is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and subsequently reclassified into interest expense in the same
period(s) during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to derivatives will be reclassified to interest
expense as interest payments are made on the Companya€™s borrowings. During the next twelve months, the Company estimates that $1.7 million in accumulated other comprehensive loss
related to derivatives will be reclassified as an increase to interest expense.Interest Rate SwapsThe Company executes interest rate swaps with commercial banking customers to facilitate their
respective risk management strategies. These interest rate swaps are simultaneously hedged by offsetting interest rate swaps that the Company executes with a third party, such that the
Company minimizes its net risk exposure resulting from such transactions. As the interest rate swaps associated with this program do not meet hedge accounting requirements, changes in the
fair value of both the customer swaps and the offsetting swaps are recognized directly in earnings.Credit-risk-related Contingent FeaturesThe Company has agreements with certain of its
derivative counterparties that contain one or more of the following provisions: (a) if the Company defaults on any of its indebtedness, including a default where repayment of the indebtedness
has not been accelerated by the lender, the Company could also be declared in default on its derivative obligations, and (b) if the Company fails to maintain its status as a well-capitalized
institution, the counterparty could terminate the derivative positions and the Company would be required to settle its obligations under the agreements. 29 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (8.) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENT AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES (Continued)Mortgage
Banking DerivativesThe Company extends rate lock agreements to borrowers related to the origination of residential mortgage loans. To mitigate the interest rate risk inherent in these rate
lock agreements when the Company intends to sell the related loan, once originated, as well as closed residential mortgage loans held for sale, the Company enters into forward commitments to
sell individual residential mortgages. Rate lock agreements and forward commitments are considered derivatives and are recorded at fair value.Fair Values of Derivative Instruments on the
Balance SheetThe table below presents the notional amounts, respectwe fair values of the Companya€™s derivative financial instruments, as well as their classification on the balance sheet as
of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 (in thousands): A A A A A A A A Asset derivatives A A Liability derlvatlvesA A A Gross notionalamount A A A A Fairvalue A A A A
Fair value A A A September 30, 2024 A A December 31, 2023 A A Balance sheetline item A September 30, 2024 A A December 31, 2023 A A Balance sheetline item A September 30,
2024 A A December 31, 2023 A Derivatives designated as hedging instruments AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A A A Cash flow hedges A $ 105,000 A A $ 105,000 A A
Other assets A $ 4,097 A A $ 5,939 A A Other liabilities A $ 31A A $a€” A Total derivatives A $ 105,000 A A $105,000A A A A $4,097A A $ 5939A A A A $ 31A A $a€”A
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA A Interest rate swaps (1) A $1,130,680 A A $1,104,804 A A Other assets A $
31,597 A A $ 37,517 A A Other liabilities A $ 31,600 A A $ 37,519 A Credit contracts A A 81,878 A A A 81,211 A A Otherassets A A 4€” A A A a€” A A Other liabilities A A a€” A A
A ae” A Mortgage bankmgA A 16,376 A A A 5,292 A A OtherassetsA A 159A A A 50 A A Other liabilities A A 14 A A A 2 A Total derivatives A $ 1,228,934 A A $ 1,191,307 A A
A A $31,756 A A $37,567A A A A $31,614 AA $ 37,521 A A (1)The Company was holding collateral of $28.3 million and $40.4 million against its net obligations under these contracts at
September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.Effect of Derivative Instruments on the Income StatementThe table below presents the effect of the Company&€™s derivative financial
instruments on the income statement for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands): A A A A Gain (loss) recognlzed in income A A Gain (loss) recognlzed
inincome A A A Line item of gain (loss) A Three months ended September 30, A A Nine months ended September 30, A Undesignated derivatives A recognized in income A 2024 A A 2023
A A 2024 A A 2023 A Interest rate swaps A Income from derivative instruments, net A $ 212 A A $93A A $ 661 A A $ 1,219 A Credit contracts A Income from derivative instruments,
netA A a€”A A A 58A A A5A A A 109 A Mortgage banking A Income from derivative instruments, net A A 4€” A A A 68A A A 97A A A 90 A Total undesignated A A A $212A
A $219A A $763A A $1,418 A A A 30 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (9.)
SHAREHOLDERS&€™ EQUITYCommon StockThe changes in shares of common stock were as follows for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023: A AA ‘Outstanding / A
A Treasury A A Issued A 2024A A A A A A A A A Shares at December 31, 2023 A A 15,407,406 A A A 692,150 A A A 16,099,556 A Restricted stock units released A A 60,989 A A
A (60,989)A A a€” A Treasury stock purchasesA A (21,446 )A A 21,446 A A A a€” A Shares at March 31, 2024 A A 15,446,949 A A A 652,607 A A A 16,099,556 A Restricted stock
awards issued A A 22,011 A A A (22,011)A A a€” A Restricted stock forfeltedA A (1,000) A A 1,000A A A a4€” A Stock awards A A 4,141 A A A (4,141 )A A a€” A Restricted stock
units released A A 500 A A A (500) A A 4€” A Treasury stock purchases A A (206)A A 206 A A A 4" A Shares at June 30, 2024 A A 15,472,395A A A 627,161 A A A 16,099,556 A
Restricted stock units released A A 3,000 A A A (3,000)A A 4€” A Treasury stock purchases A A (1,081)A A 1,081 A A A 4" A Shares at September 30, 2024 A A 15,474,314 A A A
625,242 A A A 16,099,556 A A AAAAAAAAA202AAAAAAAA A Shares at December 31, 2022 A A 15,340,001 A A A 759,555 A A A 16,099,556 A Restricted stock
units released A A 58,188 A A A (58,188)A A a€” A Treasury stock purchases A A (22,710) A A 22,710 A A A a€” A Shares at March 31, 2023 A A 15,375,479 A A A 724,077A A A
16,099,556 A Restricted stock awards issued A A 20,185 A A A (20,185 YA A a4€” A Stock awards A A 5945A A A (5,945 )A A a€” A Restricted stock units released A A 296 A A A
(296 )A A a€” A Treasury stock purchases A A (105)A A 105A A A 4€” A Shares at June 30, 2023 A A 15,401,800 A A A 697,756 A A A 16,099,556 A Restricted stock awards



released A A 4€” A A A 4€” A A A 4€” A Treasury stock purchases A A 4€” A A A 4€” A A A 4€” A Shares at September 30, 2023 A A 15,401,800 A A A 697,756 A A A 16,099,556
A A Share Repurchase Programsin June 2022, the Companya€™s Board of Directors (the 4€ceBoard4a€) authorized a share repurchase program for up to 766,447 shares of common stock (the
4€022022 Share Repurchase Programa€). Repurchased shares are recorded in treasury stock, at cost, which includes any applicable transaction costs. As of September 30, 2024, no shares have
been repurchased under the 2022 Share Repurchase Program. A 31 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)A (10.) ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSSThe following tables present the components of other comprehensive (loss) income for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands):A A A Pre-taxAmount A A TaxEffect A A Net-of-taxAmount A Three months ended September 30, 2024 A A A A A A A A A Securities
available for sale and transferred securities: A A A A A A A A A Change in unrealized loss during the period A $ 34,176 A A $ 8,756 A A $ 25,420 A Reclassification adjustment for net
gains included in net income 1) A A 13A A A 3A A A 10A Total securities available for sale and transferred securities A A 34,189 A A 8,759 A A A 25,430A Hedging derivative
instruments: A A A A A A A A A Change in unrealized gain during the period A A (2,488)A A (637)A A (1,851 ) Pension obligations: A A A A A A A A A Amortization of prior
service credit included in income A A (134)A A (34)A A (100 ) Amortization of net actuarial loss included in income A A 358 A A A 92 A A A 266 A Total pension obligations A A 224
A A AB58A A A 166A Other comprehensive income A $31,925A A $8,180A A $ 23,745 A Nine months ended September 30, 2024 A AAAAAA A A Securities available for sale
and transferred securities: A AAAAAAA A Change in unrealized loss during the period A $ 25,228 A A $ 6,463 A A $ 18,765 A Reclass1flcat10n adjustment for net gains included in
net income (1) A A 40A A A 10A A A 30 A Total securities available for sale and transferred securities A A 25,268 A A A 6,473 A A A 18,795 A Hedging derivative instruments: A A
AAAAAAA Change in unrealized gain during the per10dA A (1,856)A A (475)A A (1,381 ) Pension obligations: A AAAAAAA A Amortization of prior service credit included
inincome A A (402)A A (103)A A (299 ) Amortization of net actuarial loss included in income A A 1,073 A A A 276 A A A 797 A Total pension obligations A A671A A A 173A A A
498 A Other comprehensive loss A $24,083A A $6,171 A A $17,912 A A (1) Includes amounts related to the amortization/accretion of unrealized net gains and losses related to the
Companya€™s reclassification of available for sale investment securities to the held to maturity category. The unrealized net gains/losses will be amortized/accreted over the remaining life of
the investment securities as an adjustment of yield. A 32 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudlted)A

(10.) ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (Contlnued)A A A Pre-taxAmount A A TaxEffect A A Net-of-taxAmount A Three months ended September 30,2023A A AAAA
A A A Securities available for sale and transferred securities: A A A A A A A AA Change in unrealized loss during the period A $(36,914 ) A $ (9,457 )A $ (27,457 ) Reclassification
adjustment for net gains included in net income (1) A A16A A A 4A A A 12 A Total securities available for sale and transferred securities A A (36,898 )A A (9,453 )A A (27,445)
Hedging derivative instruments: A A A’/A A A A A A Change in unrealized gain during the period A A 518 A’ A A 133 A A A 385 A Pension obligations: A A A AAAAAA
Amortization of prior service credit included in income A A (123)A A 31) A A (92) Amortization of net actuarial loss included in income A A 316 A A A 81 A A A 235 A Total pension
obligations A A 193 A A A 50 A A A 143 A Other comprehensive loss A $ (36,187 ) A $ (9,270 ) A $ (26,917 ) Nine months ended September 30, 2023A A A A A A A A A Securities
available for sale and transferred securities: A A A A A A A A A Change in unrealized loss dunng the period A $ (34,279 )A $ (8,782 )A $ (25,497 ) Reclassification adjustment for net
gains included in net income (1) A A51A A A 13A A A 38A Total securities available for sale and transferred securities A A (34,228 )A A (8,769 )A A (25,459 ) Hedging derivative
instruments: A A A AAAAAA _Change in unrealized gain during the period A A 1,514A A A 388A A A 1,126 A Pension obligations: A AAAAAAA A Amortization of prior
service credit included in income A A (368 )A A (94)A A (274 ) Amortization of net actuarial loss included in income A A 948 A A A 243 A A A 705 A Total pension obligations A A 580
A A A 149A A A 431 A Other comprehensive income A $ (32,134 ) A $(8,232) A $ (23,902 ) A (1) Includes amounts related to the amortization/accretion of unrealized net gains and losses
related to the Companya€™s reclassification of available for sale investment securities to the held to maturity category. The unrealized net gains/losses will be amortized/accreted over the
remaining life of the investment securities as an adjustment of yield. 33 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)A (10.) ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (Continued)Activity in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2024 and 2023 was as follows (in thousands):A A A HedgingDerivativeInstruments A A SecuritiesAvailablefor Sale andTransferredSecurities A A Pension andPost-
retlrementObhgatlonsA A AccumulatedOtherComprehensive(Loss) Income A Three months ended September 30, 2024 A A A A A A A A A A A A Balance at beginning of period A $
4,381 A A $(118,541)A $(11,614)A $(125,774) Other comprehenswe (loss) income before reclassifications A A (1,851 )A A 25,420A A A a€” A A A 23,569 A Amounts reclassified

from accumulated other comprehensive income A A 46” A A A 10A A A 166 A A A 176 A Net current period other comprehensive (loss) income AA AA (1,851)A A 25,430 A A A 166 A
A A 23,745 A Balance at end of per10d A $2,530A A $(93,111)A $(11,448)A $ (102,029 ) Nine months ended September 30,2024A A AAAA AAAA A‘ A Bg alance at begmmng
of period A $3911A A $(111,906)A $(11,946)A $ (119 941 ) Other comprehenswe (loss) income before reclassifications A A (1,381 )A A 18,765A A A "§ A A A 17?’84 A Amounts
reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income A A a€”A A A 30A A A 498A A A 528 A Net current period other comprehensive (loss) income A A (1,381)A A 18,795 A
A A 498 A A A 17,912 A Balance at end of period A $ 2,530 A A $(93,111) A $(11,448)A $ (102,029 ) Three months ended September 30, 2023A A A A A A A A A A A A Balance
at beginning of period A $ 5,476 A A $ (126,648 ) A $ (13,300) A $ (134,472 ) Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications A A 385A A A (27,457 )A A a€” A A A (27,072

A
) Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehenswe income A A a€”A A A 12A A A 143A A A 155 A Net current period other comprehensive income ( 0ss) A A 385AAA
(27,445)A A 143A A A (26,917 ) Balance at end of period A $ 5,861 A A $ (154,093) A $ (13,157 ) A $ (161,389 ) Nine months ended September 30,2023A A A AAAAAAAAA
Balance at beginning of period A $4,735A A $(128,634)A $(13,588)A $ (137 487 ) Other comprehenswe income (loss) before reclassifications A A 1,126 A A A (25,497 )A A a€” A A
A (24,371 )Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehenswe income A A a€”A A A 38A A A 431 A A A 469 A Net current period other comprehensive income (loss) A A
1,126 A A A (25,459)A A 431 A A A (23,902 ) Balance at end of period A $ 5,861 A A $ (154,093 ) A $ (13,157 ) A $ (161,389 ) AA 34 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS,
INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudu:ed)A (10.) ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (Continued)The following table presents the
amounts reclassified out of each component of accumulated other comprehenswe (loss) income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands): A Details
About Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income Components A Amount Reclassified fromAccumulated OtherComprehensive(Loss) Income A A Affected Line Item in theConsolidated
Statement of Income A A Three months ended  September 30, A A AAA?2024A A 2023A A A Amortization of unrealized holding gain on investment securities transferred from available
for sale to held to rnatuntyA $(13)A $(16) A Interestincome A A (13 YA A (16)A Total before taxA A 3A A A 4A A Income tax expenseA A (10)A A (12) A Net of tax
Amortization of pension and post-retirement items: A AAAA A A A Prior service credit (1) A 134 A A A 123 A A Salaries and employee benefits Net actuarial losses (1) A A (358 ) A
A (316 ) A Salaries and employee benefits A A (224)A A (193 ) A Total beforetax A A 58 A A A 50 A A Income tax benefit A A (166 )A A (143 ) A Net of tax Total reclassified for the
period A $ (176)A $ (155) A A A A Nine months ended A A A A A September 30, A_ A A A A 2024 A A 2023 A A A Amortization of unrealized holding gainsA A A on investment
securities transferred fromA A A available for sale to held to maturity A $ (40) A $ (51 ) A Interestincome A A (40)A A (51) A Total before tax A A 10 A A A 13 A A Income tax expense
A A (30)A A (38 ) A Net of tax Amortization of pension and post-retirement items: A A A A A A A A Prior service credit (1) A A 402 A A A 368 A A Salaries and employee benefits Net
actuarial losses (1) A A (1,073) A A (948 ) A Salaries and employee benefits A A (671 )A A (580 ) A Total before tax A A 173 A A A 149 A A Income tax benefit A A (498)A A (431)
A Net of tax Total reclassified for the period A $(528)A $(469)A A A (1) These items are included in the computation of net periodic pension expense. See Note 12 4€“ Employee Benefit
Plans for additional information. (11.) SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANSThe Company maintains certain share-based compensation plans, approved by the Companya€™ s shareholders,
which are administered by the Management Development and Compensation Committee (the 4€0eMD&C Committeea€) of the Board. The share-based compensation plans were established to
allow for the granting of compensation awards to attract, motivate and retain employees, executive officers and non-employee directors who contribute to the long-term growth and profitability
of the Company and to give such persons a proprietary interest in the Company, thereby enhancing their personal interest in the Companya€™ s success. 35 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (11.) SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)The Company granted restricted
stock awards (a€0eRSAsa€) restricted stock unit award (4€0eRSUsé&€), and performance-based restricted stock units (a€0ePSUsa€) durmg the nine months ended September 30, 2024 as follows:
A A Number ofA A A Underlying Shares A A Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value A RSAs A A 22,011 A A $17.49A RSUsA A 132,047A A $15.56 A PSUsA A 54,754 A A $ 15.59
A The grant date for the RSAs granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was equal to the closing market price of our common stock on the date of grant. The grant-date fair
value for the RSUs and PSUs granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was equal to the closing market price of our common stock on the date of grant reduced by the present
value of the dividends expected to be paid on the underlying shares.Fifty percent of the RSAs granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 vested on the grant date. The
remaining RSAs will vest the day before the Companya€™s next annual meeting. The RSUs and PSUs granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 will generally vest on the third
anniversary of the grant date assuming the recipienta€™s continuous service to the Company.The Company amortizes the expense related to share-based compensation awards over the vesting
period. Share-based compensation expense is recorded as a component of salaries and employee benefits in the consolidated statements of income for awards granted to management and as a
component of other noninterest expense for awards granted to directors. The share-based compensatlon expense included in the consolidated statements of income, is as follows (in
thousands): A A A Three months ended September 30, A A Nine months ended _September 30, A A A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A Salaries and employee benefits A $450A A $
679 A A $ 1,485 A A $ 1,642 A Other noninterest expense A A 44A A A 42A A A 324 A A A 287 A Total share-based compensat1on expense A $494A A $721A A $1,809A A §
1,929A A AAAAAAAAAA A A Income tax benefit realized for compensation costs A s$ae”A A $a€”A A $4a€”A A $438A AAt September 30, 2024, there was $3.6 million of
unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested restricted stock awards and restricted stock units that is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.94 years. 36
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in a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan for certain employees who meet participation requirements. The components of the Company&€™s net periodic benefit expense for its pension
obhgatlons were as follows (in thousands) A A A Three months ended September 30, A A Nine months ended September 30,A A A 2024 A A 2023A A 2024 A A 2023 A Service cost A $
490 A A $ 447 A A $1,472 A A $ 1,342 A Interest cost on projected benefit obhgatmnA A 861A A A 85A A A 2,583A A A 2,565 A Expected return on plan assets A A (1,004)A A
(878 )A A (3,013)A A (2,634 ) Amortization of unrecognized prior service credit A A (134)A A (123)A A (402)A A (368 ) Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial loss A A 358 A A
A 316 A A A 1,073A A A 948 A Net periodic benefit expense A $ 571 A A $617A A $ 1,713 A A $ 1,853 A A The net periodic benefit expense is recorded as a component of salaries and
employee benefits in the consolidated statements of income. The Companya€™s funding policy is to contribute, at a minimum, an actuarially determined amount that will satisfy the minimum
funding requirements determined under the appropriate sections of the Internal Revenue Code. The Company has no minimum required contribution for the 2024 fiscal year. (13.)
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIESFinancial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet RiskThe Company has financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk established in the normal course
of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying
degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk extending beyond amounts recognized in the financial statements.The Companya€™ s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by
the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved with extending loans to customers. The
Company uses the same credit underwriting policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as for on-balance sheet instruments.Off-balance sheet commitments consist of the
following (in thousands):A A A September 30, 2024 A A December 31, 2023 A Commitments to extend credit A $ 1,238,685 A A $ 1,200,617 A Standby letters of credit A A 18,334 A A A
13,498 A A Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the agreement. Commitments generally have
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses which may require payment of a fee. Commitments may expire without being drawn upon; therefore, the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each customera€™ s creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if any, is based on
managementa€™s credit evaluation of the borrower. Standby letters of credit are conditional lending commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer to a
third party. These standby letters of credit are primarily issued to support private borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved in issuing standby letters of credit is essentially the same as
that involved in extending loan facilities to customers.Unfunded CommitmentsAt September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the allowance for credit losses for unfunded commitments totaled
$3.8 million and $3.6 million, respectively, and was included in other liabilities on the Companya€’“s consolidated statements of financial condition. The credit loss (beneflt) for unfunded
commitments was as follows (in thousands):A A A Three months ended September 30, A A Nine months ended September 30, A A A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A Credit loss
(benefit) for unfunded commitments A $ 713 A A $(426)A $186A A $(129)A 37 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements (Unaudited)A (13.) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)Contingent Liabilities and LitigationIn the ordinary course of business, there are various threatened and
pending legal proceedings against the Company. Management believes that the aggregate liability, if any, arising from such litigation, except for the matter described below, would not have a
material adverse effect on the Companya€™s consolidated financial statements.As previously disclosed in the Companya€™s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023
as filed with the SEC on March 13, 2024 and as disclosed in Part II, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the Company is party to an action filed against it on May 16, 2017 by Matthew
L. Chipego, Charlene Mowry, Constance C. Churchill and Joseph W. Ewing in the Court of Common Pleas in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Plaintiffs sought and were granted class certification to
represent classes of consumers in New York and Pennsylvania seeking to recover statutory damages, interest and declaratory relief. The plaintiffs specifically claim that the notices the Bank
sent to defaulting consumers after their vehicles were repossessed did not comply with the relevant portions of the Uniform Commercial Code in New York and Pennsylvania. The Company
disputes and believes it has meritorious defenses against these claims and plans to vigorously defend itself.On September 30, 2021, the Court granted plaintiffsa€™ motion for class certification
and certified four different classes (two classes of New York consumers and two classes of Pennsylvania consumers). There are approximately 5,200 members in the New York classes and 300
members in the Pennsylvania classes. On September 26, 2022, the lower Court denied the plaintiffsa€™ motion for partial summary judgment for most of the relief they seek and found that
there were questions of fact as to whether the members of the class had purchased the subject vehicles for 4€ceconsumer usea€ within the meaning of the relevant statutes. The Court also
denied the Companya€™s motion for partial summary judgment and seeking an offset in the form of recoupment reducing any liability that may be imposed against the Company by the amounts
that the borrowers owe for failing to repay their motor vehicle loans, determining that the Court could not enter a judgment on recoupment &€“ which is a set off from liability 4€“ without first
determining whether there was liability. During the July 11, 2024 pretrial conference, the Court instructed the parties to engage in further settlement of non-binding mediation discussions and
set a September 11, 2024 deadline to file motions in limine and a bench trial to commence on May 5, 2025.All depositions and document productions have been completed. Plaintiff did not file a
Motion in Limine by September 11, 2024. Plaintiffs however filed a motion for partial judgment on October 8, 2024 asserting that the recoupment claims were barred because they were too
distinct from the underlying claims. The Company intends to file an opposition against the motion for partial summary judgment with the Court by the November 7, 2024 deadline. The parties
continue to discuss potential candidates to serve as a mediator in response to the Courta€™s instruction that they explore further settlement or mediation discussions.The Company has not
accrued a contingent liability for this matter at this time because, given its defenses, it is unable to conclude whether a liability is probable to occur nor is it able to currently reasonably
estimate the amount of potential loss.If the Company settles these claims or the action is not resolved in its favor, the Company may suffer reputational damage and incur legal costs,
settlements or judgments that exceed the amounts covered by its insurer. The Company can provide no assurances that its insurer will cover the full legal costs, settlements or judgments it



incurs. If the Company is unsuccessful in defending itself from these claims or if its insurer does not cover the full amount of legal costs it incurs, the result may materially adversely affect the
Companya€™s business, results of operations and financial condition. 38 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)A (14.) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTSDetermination of Fair Value 4€“ Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring and Nonrecurring BasisValuation HierarchyThe fair value of
an asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell that asset or paid to transfer that liability in an orderly transaction occurring in the principal market (or most advantageous market
in the absence of a principal market) for such asset or liability. Accounting Standards Codification (&€0eASCa€) Topic 820, a€ceFair Value Measurements and Disclosures,a€ establishes a fair
value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. There have
been no changes in the valuation techniques used during the current period. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:a€¢Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.4€¢Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly. These might include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (such as interest rates, volatilities, prepayment speeds, credit risks, etc.) or inputs that are derived principally
from or corroborated by market data by correlation or other means.a€¢Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for determining the fair values of assets or liabilities that reflect an entitya€™s own
assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities.Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recorded as of the end of the
reporting period.In general, fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where available. If such quoted market prices are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed models
that primarily use, as inputs, observable market-based parameters. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that financial instruments are recorded at fair value. These adjustments may
include amounts to reflect counterparty credit quality and the Companya€™s creditworthiness, among other things, as well as unobservable parameters. Any such valuation adjustments are
applied consistently over time. The Companya€™s valuation methodologies may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair
values. While management believes the Companya€™s valuation methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions
to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date. Furthermore, the reported fair value amounts have not been
comprehensively revalued since the presentation dates, and therefore, estimates of fair value after the balance sheet date may differ significantly from the amounts presented herein. A more
detailed description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation
hierarchy, is set forth below.Securities available for sale: Securities classified as available for sale are reported at fair value utilizing Level 2 inputs. The Company obtains fair value
measurements from an independent pricing service. The fair value measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flows, the U.S. Treasury yield
curve, live trading levels, trade execution data, market consensus prepayment speeds, credit information and the bonda€™ s terms and conditions, among other things.Derivative instruments:
The fair value of derivative instruments is determined using quoted secondary market prices for similar financial instruments and are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.A 39 Table
of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (14.) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)Loans held for
sale: The fair value of loans held for sale is determined using quoted secondary market prices and investor commitments. Loans held for sale are classified as Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy.Collateral dependent loans: Fair value of collateral dependent loans with specific allocations of the allowance for credit losses 4€“ loans is measured based on the value of the
collateral securing these loans and is classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Collateral may be real estate and/or business assets including equipment, inventory and/or accounts
receivable and collateral value is determined based on appraisals performed by qualified licensed appraisers hired by the Company. These appraisals may utilize a single valuation approach or a
combination of approaches including comparable sales and the income approach. Appraised and reported values may be discounted based on managementa€ ™s historical knowledge, changes
in market conditions from the time of valuation, and/or managementa€™s expertise and knowledge of the client and the clienta€™s business. Such discounts are typically significant and result
in a Level 3 classification of the inputs for determining fair value. Collateral dependent loans are reviewed and evaluated on at least a quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted
accordingly, based on the same factors identified above.Long-lived assets held for sale: The fair value of the long-lived assets held for sale was based on estimated market prices from
independently prepared current appraisals and are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.Loan servicing rights: Loan servicing rights do not trade in an active market with readily
observable market data. As a result, the Company estimates the fair value of loan servicing rights by using a discounted cash flow model to calculate the present value of estimated future net
servicing income. The assumptions used in the discounted cash flow model are those that management believes market participants would use in estimating future net servicing income,
including estimates of loan prepayment rates, servicing costs, ancillary income, impound account balances, and discount rates. The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement of the Companya€™s loan servicing rights are the constant prepayment rates and weighted average discount rate. Significant increases (decreases) in any of those inputs in
isolation could result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement. Although the constant prepayment rate and the discount rate are not directly interrelated, they will generally
move in opposite directions. Loan servicing rights are classified as Level 3 measurements due to the use of significant unobservable inputs, as well as significant management judgment and
estimation.Other real estate owned (foreclosed assets): Nonrecurring adjustments to certain commercial and residential real estate properties classified as other real estate owned are
measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value, less costs to sell. Fair values are generally based on third party appraisals of the property, resulting in a Level 3 classification. The
appraisals are sometimes further discounted based on managementa€™ s historical knowledge, changes in market conditions from the time of valuation, and/or managementa€™s expertise and
knowledge of the client and clienta€™s business. Such discounts are typically significant and result in a Level 3 classification of the inputs for determining fair value. In cases where the
carrying amount exceeds the fair value, less costs to sell, an impairment loss is recognized.Commitments to extend credit and letters of credit: Commitments to extend credit and fund letters of
credit are principally at current interest rates, and, therefore, the carrying amount approximates fair value. The fair value of commitments is not material. 40 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL
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following tables present for each of the fair-value hierarchy levels the Companya€™s assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring basis as of the dates indicated (in
thousands) A AA QuotedPncesm ActiveMarkets forldenticalAssets orLiabilities(Level 1) A A SlgnlflcantOtherObservableInputs(Level 2)A A S1gn1f10antUnobservablelnputs(Level 3) A A
Total A September 30, 2024 A A A AAAAAAA A A Measured ona recurring basis: A AAA A A A AAA A A Securities available forsale: A A A AAAAAAAAATUS.

Government agency and government sponsored e terprlsesA $a€” A A $22,588A A $a€”A A $22,588A Mortgage-backed securities A A a€”A A A 855521A A A a€”AAA
855,521 A Otherassets: A A A AAAAAA A A A Other debt securities A A a€” A A A 8,707 A ‘AAAE"AA A a€”A Hedging derivative instruments A A 8€” A A A 4,097A A A
a€” A A A 4,097 A Other liabilities: A A AAAAAAAA A A Hedging derivative instruments A A a€”A A A 31 A A A a¢” A A A 31 A Fair value adjusted through comprehensive
income A $ ae” A A $890,944 A A $a€” A A $882,237 A Otherassets: A AAAAAAAA A A A Derivative instruments 46" interest rate swaps A A 4€” A A A 31,597 A A A a¢”
A A A 31,597 A Derivative instruments 4€“ mor gage banking A A 4€” A A A 159A A A a€”A A A 159 A Other liabilities: A A A A AAA A A A A A Derivative instruments a€“
interest rate swaps A A a€”A A A (31,600)A A a€” A A A (31,600 ) Derivative instruments 4€“ mortgage banking A A a€”AAA (14) A A A (14) Fair value adjusted through
net income A $4€”A A $142A A $4€”A A $ 142 A Measured on a nonrecurring basis: A A AAAAAAAAAATLoans:AAAAA A Loans held for sale A $ a€”

A $2,495A A $a€”A A $ 2,495 A Collateral dependent loans A A 4€”A A A a€”A A A 58,000 A A A 58,009 A Other assets: A A A A AAA Long-lived assets held
forsaleA A a€”A A A ae”A A A 629A A A 629 A Loan servicing rights A A 46" A A A a4€”A A A 1,430A A A 1,430 A Other real estate owned A A 4€” A A A a€”A A A 109A
A A 109A Total A $4€”A A $2,495A A $60,177A A $ 62,672 A A There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the nine months ended September 30, 2024. There were no
liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis during the nine months ended September 30, 2024.A 41 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes
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SignificantOtherObservableInputs(Level 2) AA SignificantUnobservablelnputs(Level 3) A A Total A December31,2023A A AAAAAAAAAA Measured on a recurring basis: AA
A AAAAAAAA A Securities available forsale: A A A A AAA A A A A A U.S. Government agencies and government sponsored enterprises A $ 4€” A A $ 21,811 A A $ a€” A A
$ 21,811 A Mortgage-backed securities A A 4€” A A A 865,919A A A 46" A A A 865,919 A Otherassets: A A AAAAAAA A A A Hedging derivative instruments A A 4€” A A
5939A A A a€”A A A 5,939 A Fair value adJusted through comprehenswe income A $ 4€” A A $893,660A A $4a€” A A $893,669 A OtherassetssA A AAAAAAAAAA
Derivative instruments a€“ interest rate products A $ a€” A A $ 37,517 A A $4€” A A $37,517 A Derivative instruments 4€“ mortgage banking A A 4€”A A A 50A A A a€”A A A 50
A Other liabilities: A AAA A A A A A A A A Derivative instruments a€“ interest rate products A A a€”A A A (37,519)A A a€” A A A (37,519 ) Derivative instruments a€“ mortgage
banklng AAae”"AAA(Q2 l a€” A A (2) Fair value adjusted through net income A $a€” A A $46 A A $a€”A A $46 A Measured on a nonrecurring basis:A A A A AA A A

A A
A A A Loans:A AAAAA A A A A A A Loans held forsale A $ 4€” A A $1,370 A A $a€” A A $ 1,370 A Collateral dependent loans A A 4€” A A A 4€”A A A 37,516 A A A
37,516 A Otherassets:A A AAAAAAAAAA Long-lived assets held for sale A Aae”A AAae”AAA629A A A 629A Loan servicing rights A Aae”A AAae”A A A 1,382
A A A 1,382 A Otherreal estate owned A A a€” A A A a€” A A A 142 A A A 142 A Total A $a€”A A $1,370 A A $39,669A A $41,039A A The following table presents additional
quantitative information about assets measured at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring basis for which the Company has utilized Level 3 inputs to determine fair value as of September
30, 2024 (dollars in thousands). A Asset A FairValue A A Valuation Technique A Unobservable Input A Unobservable InputValue or Range Collateral dependent loans A $ 58,009 A A
Appraisal of collateral (1) A Appraisal adjustments (2) A 30.9%(3)A / 0A - 77.36% Loan servicing rights A $1,430 A A Discounted cash flow A Discount rate A 10.4% (3)A A A A A A A
Constant prepayment rate A 12.5%A (3) Long-lived assets held for sale A $ 629 A A Appraisal of collateral (1) A Appraisal adjustments (2) A 27.9% Other real estate owned A $ 109 A A
Appraisal of collateral (1) A Appraisal adjustments (2) A 39.0A - 47.7% A (1) Fair value is generally determined through independent appraisals of the underlying collateral, which generally
include various Level 3 inputs which are not identifiable.(2) Appraisals may be adjusted by management for qualitative factors such as economic conditions and estimated liquidation expenses.
(3) Weighted averages.A 42 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (14.) FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)Changes in Level 3 Fair Value MeasurementsThere were no assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as
of or during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023.Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial InstrumentsThe assumptions used below are expected to approximate those that
market participants would use in valuing these financial instruments.Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on available market information and judgments about the
financial instrument, including estimates of timing, amount of expected future cash flows and the credit standing of the issuer. Such estimates do not consider the tax impact of the realization of
unrealized gains or losses. In some cases, the fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets. In addition, the disclosed fair value may not be realized in the
immediate settlement of the financial instrument. Care should be exercised in deriving conclusions about our business, its value or financial position based on the fair value information of
financial instruments presented below.The estimated fair value approximates carrying value for cash and cash equivalents, Federal Home Loan Bank (a€0ceFHLB4a€) and Federal Reserve Bank
(&€eFRBA&€) stock, accrued interest receivable, non-maturity deposits, short-term borrowings and accrued interest payable. Fair value estimates for other financial instruments not included
elsewhere in this disclosure are discussed below.Securities held to maturity: The fair value of the Companya€™s investment securities held to maturity is primarily measured using information
from a third-party pricing service. The fair value measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flows, the U.S. Treasury yield curve, live trading
levels, trade execution data, market consensus prepayment speeds, credit information and the bonda€™s terms and conditions, among other things.Loans: The fair value of the Companya€™s
loans was estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using the current interest rates at which similar loans would be made for the same remaining maturities. Loans were first
segregated by type, such as commercial, residential mortgage, and consumer, and were then further segmented into fixed and variable rate and loan quality categories. Expected future cash
flows were projected based on contractual cash flows, adjusted for estimated prepayments.Time deposits: The fair value of time deposits was estimated using a discounted cash flow approach
that applies prevailing market interest rates for similar maturity instruments. The fair values of the Companya€™ s time deposit liabilities do not take into consideration the value of the
Companya€™s long-term relationships with depositors, which may have significant value.Long-term borrowings: Long-term borrowings consist of $75 million of subordinated notes and $50
million of long-term borrowings from the FHLB. The subordinated notes are publicly traded and are valued based on market prices, which are characterized as Level 2 liabilities in the fair value
hierarchy. The FHLB borrowings are valued using discounted cash flows based on current market rates for borrowings with similar remaining maturities and are characterized as Level 2
liabilities in the fair value hierarchy. 43 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) A (14.) FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (Continued)The following table presents (in thousands) the carrying amount, estimated fair value, and placement in the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Companya€™s financial instruments as of the dates indicated.A A A Level in A September 30, 2024 A A December 31, 2023 A A A Fair Value A A A A Estimated A A A A A Estimated
A A A Measurement A Carrying A A Fair A A Carrying A A Fair A A A Hierarchy A Amount A A Value A A Amount A A Value A Financialassets: A A AAAAAAAAAAAA
Cash and cash equivalents A Level 1 A $ 249,569 A A $ 249,569 A A $ 124,442 A A $ 124,442 A Securities available for sale A Level 2A A 886,816 A A A 886,816 A A A 887,730A A
A 887,730 A Securities held to maturity, net A Level2A A 121,279 A A A 112,613A A A 148,156 A A A 137,030 A Loans held for sale A Level2A A 2,495A A A 2,495A A A 1,370
A A A 1,370 A Loans A Level 2A A 4,300,302 A A A 4,153,946 A A A 4,373,541 A A A 4,143,918 A Loans (1) A Level 3A A 58,009A A A 58,009A A A 37,516 A A A 37,516 A
Long-lived assets held for sale A Level 3A A 629 A A A 629A A A 629A A A 629 A Accrued interest receivable A Level 1 A A 23,702 A A A 23,702 A A A 24,481 A A A 24,481 A
Derivative instruments 4€“ cash flow hedges A Level 2A A 4,097 A A A 4,097A A A 5939A A A 5,939 A Derivative instruments 4€“ interest rate products A Level 2A A 31,597 A A A
31,597 A A A 37,517 A A A 37,517 A Derivative instruments 4€" mortgage banking A Level 2A A 159A A A 159A A A 50A A A 50 A FHLB and FRB stock A Level2A A 16,186 A
A A 16,186 A A A 17,406 A A A 17,406 A Financial liabilities: A A A A AAAAAAAAA A Non-maturity deposits A Level 1 A A 3,799,837 A A A 3,799,837 A A A 3,808,216 A
A A 3,808,216 A Time deposits A Level 2A A 1,506,764 A A A 1,505,625 A A A 1,404,696 A A A 1,398,352 A Short-term borrowings A Level 1A A 55,000A A A 55,000A A A

185,000 A A A 185,000 A Long-term borrowings A Level2 A A 124,765A A A 130,209A A A 124,532 A A A 128,363 A Accrued interest payable A Level 1 A A 27,453 A A A 27,453

A A A 19,412A A A 19,412 A Derivative instruments 4€“ cash flow hedges A Level2 A A 31 A A A 31A A A ae” A A A a€” A Derivative instruments 4€" interest rate products A Level
2A A 31,600A A A 31,600A A A 37,519A A A 37,519 A Derivative instruments 4€“ mortgage banking A Level2A A 14A A A 14A A A 2A A A 2 A A (1) Comprised of collateral
dependent loans. 44 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (15.) SEGMENT REPORTINGThe
Company has one reportable segment, Banking, which includes all the Companya€™s retail and commercial banking operations. This reportable segment has been identified and organized
based on the nature of the underlying products and services applicable to the segment, the type of customers to whom those products and services are offered and the distribution channel
through which those products and services are made available.All other segments that do not meet the quantitative threshold for separate reporting have been grouped as 4€ceAll Other,a€
which include the activities of SDN and Courier Capital for the period ending December 31, 2023. On April 1, 2024, the Company announced and closed on the sale of the assets of its wholly
owned subsidiary, SDN. See Note 1. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for further details on the sale of SDN. Courier Capital is our investment advisor and
wealth management firm that offers customized investment management, financial planning and consulting services to individuals and families, businesses, institutions, non-profits and
retirement plans. Also included in 4€ceAll Othera€ are Holding Company amounts, which are the primary differences between segment amounts and consolidated totals, along with amounts to



eliminate balances and transactions between segments. The following tables present information regarding our business segments as of and for the periods indicated (in thousands). A A A R
BankmgA A All Other A A ConsolidatedTotals A September 30, 2024A AAAAAAAA Goodwill A $48,536A A $9,585A A $ 58,121 A Other mtanglble assets, netA A 4€”A A A
2,746 A A A 2,746 A Total assets A A 6,126,603 A A A 29,714 A A A 6,156,317A A A A AA A A A A A December 31, 2023 A A AAAAAAAA Goodwil A $48,536 A A $
18,535 A A $ 67,071 A Other intangible assets, net A A a€”A A A 5433 A A A 5433 A Total assets A A 6,117,748 A A A 43,133 A A A 6,160,881 A AA A A Banking A A All Other
A A ConsolidatedTotals A Three months ended September 30, 2024 A A A A A A A A A Net interest income (expense) A $41,741A A $(1, 6 )A $40,681 A Provision for credit losses
A A (:3'194 JA A §1€" AA A A (3, 104 ) Nonintgrest income A A 6,848A A A 2,592A A AA 9_440 A Noninterest expenseA A (29 940)A A (2,529)A A (32,469 ) Income before income
taxes A A 15,545A A A (997)A A 14,548 A Income tax expense (beneﬁt) A A (1,33 Q ) A A 254 A A A (1,082) Net income A $ 14,209 A A :§ (743 )A $ 13,466 A Nine months ended
37A A $ 3,181)A $ 121,956 A Benefit for credit losses A A 311 A A A 4€”A A A 311 A Noninterest

September 30,2024 A A A A A A A A A Net interest income (expense) A $ 125,1
income A A 21,333 A A A 23,022A A A 44,355 A Noninterest expense A A (110,075 )A (9,427 )A A (119,502 ) Income before income taxes A A 36,706 A A A 10,414 A A A 47,120
A Income tax expense A A (3,080)A A (2,875)A A (5,955) Net income A $ 33,626 A A $ 7,539 A A $41,165A A 45 Table of ContentsFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)A (15.) SEGMENT REPORTING (Contmued)A A A BankingA A All Other A A ConsolidatedTotals A Three months
ended September 30,2023A A A A A A A A A Net interest income (expense) A $ 42,738 A A $ (1,061 ) A $ 41,677 A Provision for credit losses A A (966 ) A A a€” A A A (966)
Noninterest income A A 6,649 A A A 3,837 A A A 10,486 A Noninterest expense A A (31,328) A A (3,407 ) A A (34,735 ) Income (loss) before income taxes A $ 17,093 A A $ (631)A $
16,462 A Income tax (expense) benefit A A (2,660)A A 220A A A (2 440 ) Net income (loss) A $ 14,433 A A $ (411)A $ 14 022 A Nlne months ended September 30, 2023 AAAAA
A A A A Net interest income (expense) A $ 129,010 A A $ (3,181 ) A $ 125,829 A Provision for credit losses A A (8,410)A A a€” A A A (8,410 ) Noninterest income A A 20,522 A A A
12,354 A A A 32,876 A Noninterest expense A A (91,072)A A (11,106 ) A A (102,178 ) Income (loss) before income taxes A $ 50,050 A A $ (1,933 ) A $ 48,117 A Income tax (expense)
benefit A A (8,169)A A 536 A A A (7,633 ) Netincome A $41,881A A $(1,397)A $40,484 A A A 46 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA A ITEM 2.
Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the more detailed and
comprehensive disclosures included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. In addition, please read this section in conjunction with our Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained herein. FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION Statements and financial analysis contained in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q that are based on other than historical data are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking
statements provide current expectations or forecasts of future events and include, among others: &€¢statements with respect to the beliefs, plans, objectives, goals, guidelines, expectations,
anticipations, and future financial condition, results of operations and performance of Financial Institutions, Inc. (the &€ceParenta€ or 4€eFI1a€) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
a€eCompany,a€ a€cewe,a€ a€ceoura€ or a€ceusa€); and a€¢statements preceded by, followed by or that include the words 4€cemay,a€ a€cecould,a€ a€ceshould,a€ a€cewould,a€ d€cebelieve,a€
4€cecontinue,a€ d€ceanticipate,a€ d€ceestimate,a€ a€oeexpect,a€ a€ceintend,a€ a€ceplan,a€ a€mtarget,a€ a€meprojectsa€ or similar expressions. These forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance, nor should they be relied upon as representing managementa€™s views as of any subsequent date. Forward-looking statements involve significant risks and
uncertainties and actual results may differ materially from those presented, either expressed or implied, in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 (the 4€ceForm 10-K&€), including, but not limited to, those presented in the Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations. Factors that might cause such material differences include, but are not limited to: &€¢Fluctuations in market interest rates may affect our interest margins and income, demand
for our products, defaults on loans, loan prepayments and the fair value of our financial instruments; &€ ¢Environmental, social and governance matters, and any related reporting obligations
may impact our business; 4€¢If we experience greater credit losses than anticipated, earnings may be adversely impacted; &4€¢We are subject to risks and losses resulting from fraudulent
activities that could adversely impact our financial performance and results of operations; a4€¢Geographic concentration in our loan portfolio may unfavorably impact our operations; &€¢Our
commercial business and mortgage loans increase our exposure to credit risks; &€¢Our indirect and consumer lending involves risk elements in addition to normal credit risk; &€¢Lack of
seasoning in portions of our loan portfolio could increase risk of credit defaults in the future; 4€¢We accept deposits that do not have a fixed term, and which may be withdrawn by the customer
at any time for any reason; 4€¢We are subject to environmental liability risk associated with our lending activities; 4€¢We operate in a highly competitive industry and market area; 4€¢Legal
and regulatory proceedings and related matters, such as the action brought by a class of consumers against us as described in Part I, Item 3, a€ceLegal Proceedings,a€ could adversely affect us
and the banking industry in general; 4€¢Any future FDIC insurance premium increases may adversely affect our earnings; a€¢We are highly regulated, and any adverse regulatory action may
result in additional costs, loss of business opportunities, and reputational damage; &€¢We are subject to the CRA and fair lending laws, and failure to comply with these laws could lead to
material penalties; &€¢The policies of the Federal Reserve have a significant impact on our earnings; a€¢Our investment advisory and wealth management operations are subject to risk related
to the regulation of the financial services industry and market volatility; &€¢We make certain assumptions and estimates in preparing our financial statements that may prove to be incorrect,
which could significantly impact the results of our operations, cash flows and financial condition, and we are subject to new or changing accounting rules and interpretations, and the failure by
us to correctly interpret or apply these evolving rules and interpretations could have a material adverse effect; &€¢The value of our goodwill and other intangible assets may decline in the
future; 4€¢We may be unable to successfully implement our growth strategies, including the integration and successful management of newly acquired businesses; 4€¢The introduction of new
products and services may subject us to increased regulation and regulatory scrutiny and may affect our reputation; 4€¢Acquisitions may disrupt our business and dilute shareholder value; &€
¢Our tax strategies and the value of our deferred tax assets and liabilities could adversely affect our operating results and regulatory capital ratios; 47 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA a€¢Liquidity is essential to our businesses; &€¢We rely on dividends from our subsidiaries for most of our revenue; a€¢If our risk management framework does
not effectively identify or mitigate our risks, we could suffer losses; a€¢We face competition in staying current with technological changes and banking alternatives to compete and meet
customer demands; &€¢We rely on other companies to provide key components of our business infrastructure; 4€¢A breach in security of our or third-party information systems, including the
occurrence of a cyber incident or a deficiency in cybersecurity, or a failure by us to comply with New York State cybersecurity regulations, may subject us to liability, result in a loss of customer
business or damage our brand image; a€¢The soundness of other financial institutions could adversely affect us; 4€¢We may need to raise additional capital in the future and such capital may
not be available on acceptable terms or at all; 4€¢We may not pay or may reduce the dividends on our common stock; 4€¢We may issue debt and equity securities or securities convertible into
equity securities, any of which may be senior to our common stock as to distributions and in liquidation, which could dilute our current shareholders or negatively affect the value of our
common stock; a€¢Our certificate of incorporation, our bylaws, and certain banking laws may have an anti-takeover effect; 4€¢The market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly
in response to a number of factors; &€¢We may not be able to attract and retain skilled people; &4€¢We use financial models for business planning purposes that may not adequately predict
future results; &€¢We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about or from customers and counterparties; a€¢Our business may be adversely affected by conditions in the
financial markets and economic conditions generally, including macroeconomic pressures such as inflation, supply chain issues, and geopolitical risks associated with international conflict; and
a€¢Severe weather, natural disasters, public health emergencies and pandemics, acts of war or terrorism, and other external events could significantly impact our business. We caution readers
not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date made, and advise readers that various factors, including those described above, could affect our
financial performance and could cause our actual results or circumstances for future periods to differ materially from those anticipated or projected. See also Item 1A, Risk Factors, in the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. Except as required by law, we do not undertake, and specifically disclaim any obligation to publicly release any revisions to
any forward-looking statements to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events or circumstances after the date of such statements. GENERAL The Parent is a financial holding
company headquartered in New York State, providing diversified financial services through its operating subsidiaries, Five Star Bank (the &€ceBanka€) and Courier Capital, LLC (4€ceCourier
Capitala€). The Company offers a broad array of deposit, lending and other financial services to individuals, municipalities and businesses in Western and Central New York through its wholly
owned New York-chartered banking subsidiary, the Bank. The Bank also has commercial loan production offices in Ellicott City (Baltimore), Maryland, and Syracuse, New York, serving the Mid-
Atlantic and Central New York regions. Our indirect lending network includes relationships with franchised automobile dealers in Western and Central New York, and the Capital District of
New York. Effective January 1, 2024, we exited the Pennsylvania automobile market to align our focus more fully around our core Upstate New York market. Courier Capital provides
customized investment advice, wealth management, investment consulting and retirement plan services to individuals, businesses, institutions, foundations and retirement plans. On April 1,
2024, the Company announced and closed the sale of the assets of its wholly owned subsidiary, SDN Insurance Agency, LLC (a4€0eSDN&€), which provided a broad range of insurance services to
personal and business clients, to NFP Property & Casualty Services, Inc. (4€eNFPa€), a subsidiary of NFP Corp. The sale generated $27 million in proceeds, or a pre-tax gain of $13.7 million,
after selling costs, of which $13.5 million was recognized in the second quarter of 2024. The all-cash transaction value represented approximately four times our 2023 insurance revenue.
Following the sale of the assets of SDN, we changed the name of the entity to Five Star Advisors LLC and expect to utilize it to serve as a conduit to refer insurance business to NFP. Our
primary sources of revenue are net interest income (interest earned on our loans and securities, net of interest paid on deposits and other funding sources) and noninterest income, particularly
investment advisory and financial services provided to customers or ancillary services tied to loans and deposits, fees and other revenue from insurance, prior to the sale of the assets of SDN.
Business volumes and pricing drive revenue potential, and tend to be influenced by overall economic factors, including market interest rates, business spending, consumer confidence, economic
growth, and competitive conditions within the marketplace. We are not able to predict market interest rate fluctuations with certainty and our asset/liability management strategy may not
prevent interest rate changes from having a material adverse effect on the results of our operations and financial condition. 48 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSISA Our business strategy has been to maintain a community bank philosophy, which consists of focusing on and understanding the individualized banking and other financial needs of
individuals, municipalities and businesses of the communities surrounding our primary service area. We believe this focus allows us to be more responsive to our customersa€™ needs and
provide a high level of personal service that differentiates us from larger competitors, resulting in long-standing and broad-based banking relationships. Our core customers are primarily small-
to medium-sized businesses, individuals and community organizations who prefer to build banking and wealth management relationships with a community bank that combines high quality,
competitively priced products and services with personalized service. Because of our identity and origin as a locally operated bank, we believe that our level of personal service provides a
competitive advantage over larger banks, which tend to consolidate decision-making authority outside local communities. A key aspect of our current business strategy is to foster a community-
oriented culture where our customers and employees establish long-standing and mutually beneficial relationships. We believe that we are well-positioned to be a strong competitor within our
market area because of our focus on community banking needs and customer service, our comprehensive suite of deposit, loan, and wealth management products typically found at larger
banks, our highly experienced management team and our strategically located banking centers. We prioritize customer acquisition through cost-effective, high-demand digital, virtual and
physical channels, while maintaining a community bank distinctiveness relative to larger banks and digital-only neobanks. We leverage the retail branch network and customer contact center to
build trust and credibility, provide personal financial education and advice, offer convenience, and bridge digital and physical channels. Our enhanced digital capabilities complement a
continued focus on a consistent customer experience and engagement across physical and virtual channels, including using branches to create deeper engagement and relationships with
customers, balancing customer engagement with efficiency opportunities (e.g., framing outreach to the customer contact center to teach customers how to use digital channels, in addition to
addressing the reason for the call), and maintaining and expanding our customer reach digitally, physically or virtually. By employing digital channels across our current products and services,
we deepen existing relationships and enter new geographies or market segments that would otherwise be prohibitively expensive targets using traditional approaches. Deepening our existing
digital capabilities allows us to capitalize on a shift in customer preferences away from physical branches. On September 16, 2024, we announced our intent to begin an orderly wind down of
our BaaS$ offerings, following a careful review by the Companya€™s executive management and Board of Directors undertaken in conjunction with its annual strategic planning process. We
have evolved to meet changing customer needs by offering complementary physical, digital and virtual channels. We focus on technology to provide solutions that fit our customersa€™
preferences for transacting business with us. Branches are staffed by certified personal bankers who are trained to meet a broad array of customer needs. Our digital banking capabilities,
interactive teller machine (4€eITMéa€) functionality and Customer Contact Center provide additional self-serve and phone options through which customer needs are met effectively. We will
continue to explore market expansion opportunities that complement current market areas as opportunities arise. Our primary focus will be on increasing the Banka€™ s market share within
existing markets, while taking advantage of potential growth opportunities within our noninterest income lines of business by acquiring businesses that can be incorporated into existing
operations. We believe our capital position remains strong enough to support an active merger and acquisition strategy and the expansion of our core financial service businesses. Consequently,
we continue to explore acquisition opportunities in these activities. When evaluating acquisition opportunities, we will balance the potential for earnings accretion with maintaining adequate
capital levels, which could result in our common stock being the predominant form of consideration and/or the need for us to raise capital. Conversations with potential strategic partners occur
on a regular basis. The evaluation of any potential opportunity will favor a transaction that complements our core competencies and strategic intent, with a lesser emphasis being placed on
geographic location or size. Additionally, we remain committed to maintaining a diversified revenue stream. Our senior management team has experience in acquisitions and post-acquisition
integration of operations and is prepared to act promptly should a potential opportunity arise but will remain disciplined with its approach. We believe this experience positions us to
successfully acquire and integrate additional financial services and banking businesses. Cannabis Banking The Marijuana Regulation and Taxation Act was signed into law on March 31, 2021,
legalizing the possession and sale of recreational marijuana in New York State for adults aged 21 or older and the state has issued adult-use cannabis cultivation, processing and retail
dispensary licenses. We have implemented a program to provide financial products and services to legal cannabis-related businesses and partner with other financial institutions who provide
such services. 49 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA Offering financial products and services to the cannabis industry presents a unique set of regulatory risks
due to the conflict between state and federal laws, as marijuana remains illegal at the federal level. In January 2018, the U.S. Department of Justice (the &4€eDQJa€) rescinded the a€ceCole
Memoéa€ and related memoranda which characterized the enforcement of the Controlled Substances Act against persons and entities complying with state regulatory systems permitting the
use, manufacture and sale of medical marijuana as an inefficient use of their prosecutorial resources and discretion. The impact of the DOJa€™s rescission of the Cole Memo and related
memoranda is unclear, but in the future may result in increased enforcement actions against the regulated cannabis industry generally. More recently, the United States Attorney General has
indicated that the DOJ, under his leadership, does not intend to pursue cases against parties who comply with the laws in states which have legalized and are effectively regulating marijuana.
However, enforcement policies and practices may be highly variable between political administrations. In addition, federal prosecutors have significant discretion and there can be no assurance
that the federal prosecutor for any district in which we operate will not choose to strictly enforce the federal laws governing cannabis. In the future, enforcement actions may be taken against
cannabis-related businesses or financial services providers that are viewed as aiding and abetting such activities. The Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (4€ceFinCEN&€) published
guidelines in 2014 for financial institutions servicing state-legal cannabis businesses. These guidelines were issued for the explicit purpose so a€cethat financial institutions can provide services
to marijuana-related businesses in a manner consistent with their obligations to know their customers and to report possible criminal activity.4€ The Bank has and will continue to follow this
and other FinCEN guidance in the areas of cannabis banking. EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW Recent Events On September 16, 2024, we announced our intent to begin an orderly wind down of our
BaasS offerings, following a careful review by the executive management and Board of Directors undertaken in conjunction with our annual strategic planning process. As of September 30, 2024,



deposits and loans related to the Banka€™s BaaS$ offerings totaled $103 million and $29 million, respectively. We continue to preliminarily target completion of the wind down sometime in
2025. Summary of 2024 Third Quarter Results Net income decreased $556 thousand to $13.5 million for the third quarter of 2024 compared to $14.0 million for the third quarter of 2023. Net
income available to common shareholders for the third quarter of 2024 was $13.1 million, or $0.84 per diluted share, compared with $13.7 million, or $0.88 per diluted share, for the third
quarter of 2023. Return on average common equity was 11.18% and return on average assets was 0.89% for the third quarter of 2024 compared to 13.15% and 0.92%, respectively, for the third
quarter of 2023. Third quarter 2024 results included $384 thousand of professional services expenses attributed to the deposit-related fraud event disclosed in March 2024 that occurred in the
first quarter of 2024. We continue to aggressively pursue our legal rights and seek any and all recovery avenues to minimize the fraud loss. Net interest income totaled $40.7 million in the third
quarter of 2024, a decrease of $1.0 million compared to $41.7 million in the third quarter of 2023. Average interest-earning assets for the third quarter of 2024 were $92.4 million lower than
the third quarter of 2023 due to an $83.5 million decrease in average investment securities, and a $13.2 million decrease in the average balance of Federal Reserve interest-earning cash,
partially offset by a $4.3 million increase in average loans. Average interest-bearing liabilities for the third quarter of 2024 were $27.2 million lower than the third quarter of 2023 due to a
$93.4 million decrease in average borrowings, a $75.2 million decrease in average interest-bearing demand deposits and a $48.3 million decrease in average time deposits, partially offset by a
$189.7 million increase in average savings and money market account deposits. Net interest margin was 2.89% for the third quarter of 2024 compared to 2.91% in the third quarter of 2023,
primarily due to higher funding costs amid the current high interest rate environment, offset by an increase in the average yield on interest-earning assets. The provision for credit losses was
$3.1 million in the third quarter of 2024 compared to a provision for credit losses of $1.0 million in the third quarter of 2023. The provision for credit losses for the third quarter of 2024 was
primarily driven by a combination of factors, including a slight increase in the national unemployment forecast and higher qualitative factors overall, partially offset by a lower loan balance. Net
charge-offs during the recent quarter were $1.7 million, representing 0.15% of average loans on an annualized basis, compared to $1.6 million, or an annualized 0.14% of average loans, in the
third quarter of 2023. See the a€ceAllowance for Credit Losses a€“ Loansa€ and a€ceNon-Performing Assets and Potential Problem Loansa€ sections of this Managementa€ ™s Discussion and
Analysis for further discussion regarding the provision for credit losses and net charge-offs. Noninterest income totaled $9.4 million in the third quarter of 2024, compared to $10.5 million in
the third quarter of 2023. The sale of the assets of our insurance subsidiary in April 2024 resulted in a decrease in insurance income of $1.7 million compared to the third quarter of 2023.
Partially offsetting this decrease were increases of $377 thousand in company owned life insurance income, due to the higher crediting rate and associated impact to cash surrender value
related to the surrender and redeploy strategy executed in the fourth quarter of 2023, and $253 thousand in investment advisory income largely due to market-driven increases in assets under
management. 50 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA Noninterest expense totaled $32.5 million in the third quarter of 2024, compared to $34.7 million in the
third quarter of 2023. The decrease in noninterest expense for the third quarter of 2024 was primarily attributable to a decrease in salaries and employee benefits expense of $2.3 million as a
result of the sale of the assets of our insurance subsidiary, and the previously disclosed fourth quarter 2023 leadership and organizational changes, which reduced salaries and wages expense,
$421 thousand in occupancy and equipment expense due in part to the timing of equipment purchases, and $414 thousand in other expenses. These decreases were partially offset by an $889
thousand increase in professional services expense, due primarily to legal expenses related to the previously disclosed deposit fraud-related event. The regulatory Tier 1 Capital Ratio and Total
Risk-Based Capital Ratio were 10.62%, and 12.95%, respectively, at September 30, 2024. See the 4€meLiquidity and Capital Managementa€ section of this Managementa€™s Discussion and
Analysis for further discussion regarding regulatory capital and the Basel III capital rules. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS Net Interest Income and Net Interest Margin Net interest income is our
primary source of revenue, comprising approximately 81% and 73% of revenue during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively. Net interest income is the difference
between interest income on interest-earning assets, such as loans and investment securities, and interest expense on interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings used to fund interest-
earning and other assets or activities. Net interest income is affected by changes in interest rates and by the amount and composition of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities,
as well as the sensitivity of the balance sheet to changes in interest rates, including characteristics such as the fixed or variable nature of the financial instruments, contractual maturities and
repricing frequencies. A We use interest rate spread and net interest margin to measure and explain changes in net interest income. Interest rate spread is the difference between the yield on
interest-earning assets and the rate paid for interest-bearing liabilities that fund those assets. The net interest margin is expressed as the percentage of net interest income to average earning
assets. The net interest margin exceeds the interest rate spread because noninterest-bearing sources of funds (a€cenet free fundsa€), principally noninterest-bearing demand deposits and
shareholdersa€™ equity, also support earning assets. To compare tax-exempt asset yields to taxable yields, the yield on tax-exempt investment securities is computed on a taxable equivalent
basis. Net interest income, interest rate spread, and net interest margin are discussed on a taxable equivalent basis. The following table reconciles interest income per the consolidated
statements of income to interest income adjusted to a fully taxable equivalent basis (dollars in thousands): A A A Three months ended September 30, A A Nine months ended September 30,

A A A 2024A A 2023A A 2024 A A 2023 A Interest income per consolidated statements of income A $ 77,911 A A $ 74,700 A A $ 235,112 A A $ 209,586 A AdJustment to fully taxable
equivalent basisA A 65A A A 93A A A 232 A A A 327 A Interest income adjusted to a fully taxable equivalent basis A A 77,976 A A A 74,793 A A A 235,344 A A A 209,913 A
Interest expense per consolidated statements of income A A 37,230 A A A 33,023 A A A 113,156 A A A 83,757 A Net interest income on a taxable equivalent basis A $ 40,746 A A $
41,770 A A $ 122,188 A A $ 126,156 A A Analysis of Net Interest Income for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 Net interest income on a taxable equivalent basis for the
three months ended September 30, 2024, was $40.7 million, a decrease of $1.0 million versus the comparable quarter last year of $41.8 million. The decrease in net interest income was
primarily due to higher funding costs amid the current high interest rate environment. Our net interest margin for the third quarter of 2024 was 2.89%, 2-basis points lower than 2.91% for the
same period in 2023 due to higher funding costs as a result of the continued high interest rate environment, offset by an increase in the average yield on interest-earning assets. For the third
quarter of 2024, the average yield on average interest earning assets of 5.53% was 32-basis points higher than the third quarter of 2023 of 5.21% primarily due to an increase in market interest
rates. Average loan yields increased 27-basis points during the third quarter of 2024 to 6.42% from 6.15% for the third quarter of 2023, and the average yield on investment securities increased
26-basis points during the third quarter of 2024 to 2.14% from 1.88% for the third quarter of 2023. Overall, the average interest rate changes increased interest income by $3.8 million and
volume variance decreased interest income by $578 thousand during the third quarter of 2024, which collectively drove a favorable variance of $3.2 million. 51 Table of
ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA Average interest-earning assets were $5.61 billion for the third quarter of 2024 compared to $5.70 billion for the third quarter of
2023, a decrease of $92.4 million, or 2%, from the comparable quarter last year, with a decrease in average securities of $83.5 million from $1.23 billion for the third quarter of 2023 to $1.15
billion for the third quarter of 2024, and a $13.2 million decrease in average Federal Reserve interest-earning cash, partially offset by an increase in average loans of $4.3 million from $4.41
billion for the third quarter of 2023 to $4.42 billion for the third quarter of 2024. Average loans comprised 79% of average interest-earning assets during the third quarter of 2024 compared to
77% during the third quarter of 2023. The increase in average loans was primarily due to organic growth in commercial mortgages and stability in residential loans. Loans generally have
significantly higher yields compared to other interest-earning assets and, as such, have a more positive effect on the net interest margin. The average yield on average loans was 6.42% for the
third quarter of 2024, an increase of 27-basis points compared to 6.15% for the comparable quarter in 2023 due to the impact of the higher market interest rates. Interest rate changes on
average loans increased interest income by $2.9 million. Average investment securities represented 20% of average interest-earning assets during the third quarter of 2024 compared to 22%
during the third quarter of 2023. The decrease in average investment securities was primarily due to maturities of investment securities, and the use of cash to fund loan originations and
reduce short-term borrowings. For the third quarter of 2024, the average cost of average interest-bearing liabilities of 3.37% was 41-basis points higher than the third quarter of 2023. The
average cost of interest-bearing deposits of 3.34% was 50-basis points higher than the third quarter of 2023 due to the continued repricing of deposits at higher interest rates. The average cost
of total borrowings decreased 55-basis points to 3.80% in the third quarter of 2024, compared to 4.35% in the third quarter of 2023. The reduction in the cost of total borrowings was driven by
a wholesale mix shift, with a lower level of outstanding balances, and the benefit of the Banka€™ s cash flow hedging program. Average interest-bearing liabilities were $4.40 billion for the third
quarter of 2024, compared to $4.43 billion for the third quarter of 2023, a decrease of $27.2 million, or 1%, driven by the $93.7 million decrease in the average balance of short-term
borrowings, partially offset by a $66.2 million increase in average interest-bearing deposits. On average, interest-bearing deposits grew from $4.08 billion for the third quarter of 2023 to $4.15
billion for the current quarter while noninterest-bearing demand deposits (a principal component of net free funds) decreased $69.5 million to $953.0 million for the third quarter of 2024. The
increase in average interest-bearing deposits was due to growth in average non-public and public deposits, partially offset by decreases in average brokered and reciprocal deposits. For further
discussion of our reciprocal and brokered deposits, refer to the &€ceFunding Activities &€“ Depositsa€ section of this Managementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis. The decrease in noninterest-
bearing demand deposits was due to the interest rate environment driving customers to higher interest bearing accounts. Overall, interest-bearing deposit rate changes resulted in a $5.0
million increase in interest expense, and volume changes resulted in a $593 thousand increase in interest expense during the third quarter of 2024 as compared to the prior year quarter. A
decrease in average short-term borrowings decreased interest expense by $760 thousand, and a decrease in interest rates on short-term borrowings decreased interest expense by $619
thousand during the third quarter of 2024. Analysis of Net Interest Income for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 Net interest income on a taxable equivalent basis for the
nine months ended September 30, 2024, was $122.2 million, a decrease of $4.0 million versus the comparable period in 2023 of $126.2 million. The decrease in net interest income was
primarily due to higher funding costs amid the current high interest rate environment. Our net interest margin for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was 2.85%, 14-basis points lower
than 2.99% for the same period in 2023 due to higher funding costs as a result of the continued high interest rate environment, partially offset by an increase in the average yield on interest-
earning assets. For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the average yield on average interest earning assets of 5.49% was 51-basis points higher than the nine months ended
September 30, 2023 of 4.98%. The average yield on loans increased 49-basis points during the nine months ended September 30, 2024, to 6.39% from 5.90% for the comparable period last
year. The average yield on investment securities increased 25-basis points to 2.14% for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 compared to 1.89% for the nine months ended September
30, 2023. Overall, the impact of the interest rate increases in 2023 and 2024 has a positive impact on yields, increasing interest income by $18.0 million, while volume variances in average
interest-earning assets and average interest-bearing liabilities increased net interest income by $7.4 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2024. Average interest-earning assets
were $5.73 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 compared to $5.63 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, an increase of $98.9 million, or 2%, with average
loans up $150.2 million from $4.29 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 to $4.44 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, and a $40.7 million increase in average
Federal Reserve interest-earning cash, partially offset by a decrease in average investment securities of $92.0 million from $1.27 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 to $1.17
billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. Average investment securities represented 21% of average interest-earning assets during the nine months ended September 30, 2024
compared to 23% during the nine months ended September 30, 2023. The decrease in average investment securities was primarily due to maturities of investment securities, and the use of cash
to fund loan originations and reduce short-term borrowings. Loans comprised 78% of average interest-earning assets during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 compared to 76%
during the nine months ended September 30, 2023. The increase in average loans was primarily due to organic growth in commercial mortgages and residential real estate loans, partially offset
by a decrease in consumer indirect loans. Loans generally have significantly higher yields compared to other interest-earning assets and, as such, have a more positive effect on the net interest
margin. Higher interest rates on loans increased interest income by $15.4 million, and an increase in the volume of average loans resulted in a $7.4 million increase in interest income. 52 Table
of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the average cost of average interest-bearing liabilities of 3.34% was 77-basis
points higher than the average cost of 2.57% for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, with the average cost of average interest-bearing deposits of 3.31% increasing 89-basis points from
2.42% for the nine months ended September 30, 2023 due to the higher interest rate environment that began in 2023 and continued into 2024. Average interest-bearing liabilities of $4.52
billion in the nine months ended September 30, 2024 were $170.1 million, or 3.9%, higher than the nine months ended September 30, 2023. The increase was driven by an increase in average
interest-bearing deposits, partially offset by a decrease in total average borrowings. On average, interest-bearing deposits increased $238.3 million from $4.01 billion for the nine months ended
September 30, 2023 to $4.25 billion for the current period, while noninterest-bearing demand deposits (a principal component of net free funds) decreased $83.4 million to $955.4 million for
the nine months ended September 30, 2024 as compared to the prior year period. Total average borrowings decreased to $274.2 million for the current period, down $68.2 million from the nine
months ended September 30, 2023, as deposit growth enabled us to pay down short-term borrowings. The increase in average deposits was primarily due to growth in non-public, reciprocal,
and public deposits, partially offset by a decrease in brokered deposits. For further discussion of the reciprocal deposit programs, refer to the &€ceFunding Activities a&€“ Depositsa€ section of
this Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis. Overall, interest-bearing deposit rate changes resulted in a $27.1 million increase in interest expense and volume changes contributed $5.5
million during the nine months ended September 30, 2024, primarily due to the higher interest rate environment. 53 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA The
following tables set forth certain information relating to the consolidated balance sheets and reflects the average yields earned on interest-earning assets, as well as the average rates pai
interest-bearing liabilities for the periods indicated (dollars in thousands). Average balances were derived from daily balances. AAA Three months ended September 3 0,A A A 2024

a

A A Federal funds sold and interest- earning dep051ts A $ 49,476 A A $606 A A A 4.88%A $62,673A A $ 723A A A 458% Investment secuntles (1):
A AAA A Taxable A A 1,107,180 A A A 5841A A A 2.11A A A 1,166,649A A A 5350A 3 A Tax-exempt (2) A A 39,872A A A 310A
447 A A A 2.79 A Total investment securities A A 1,147,052 A A A A A A 5797A A A 1.88A Loans:A A A
A Commercial business A A 673,830 A A A 13,066 A A A 7.71A .44 A Commercial mortgage A A 2,092,905
1,977,978 A A A 33,336 A A A 6.69 A Residential real estate loan: AAA621,074A A A 5864A A A 3.78A Residenti
75,671 A A A 1,507A A A 791 A A A 75847A A A 1,444A A A A 13,829A A A
Other consumer A A 43,789A A A 770A A A 7.00A A A 34,086A A A 611A A A 7.11 A Total loans ( 4415 172A A A
A A A 6.15 A Total interest-earning assets A A 5,611,700 A A A 77, A A A A 1
AAAAAA G5088)A AAA A A Other noninterest-earning asse
6,073,653 A A A A A A A Interest- bearing liabilities: AAAAA
691,412 A A $1,833A A A 1.05% A $ 766,636 A A $1,607A A A0
2.51 A Time deposits A A 1,515,745A A A 17,987A A A 472A A A
A A A 4079873A A A 29,217A A A 2.84 A Short-term borrowings A A 1
124,717A A A 1,570A A A 5.03A A A 124,407A A A 1,571A A A 5.05A Total borrowing:
interest-bearing liabilities A A 4,399,939 A A A 37,230A A A 337A A A 4427,151A A A3

A A Other noninterest-bearing liabilities A A 182,20
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bearing liabilities A A A A A A A A 12754%A A A AAAA A 12884 %A (1) Investment securities are shown at amortized cost. (2) The interest on tax-exempt securities is calculated
on a tax-equivalent basis assuming a federal income tax rate of 21%. (3) Annualized. (4) Loans include net unearned income, net deferred loan fees and costs z}n(j non-accruing loans. Net
deferred loan fees (costs) included in interest income were as follows (in thousands): 54 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA A A Three months ended
September 30, A A 2024 A A 2023 A Commerc1a1 business A $ 135A A $ (29) Commercial mortgage A A 506 A A A 572 A Residential real estate loans A A (408 )A A (414)
Residential real estate lines A A (99 ) A (99) Consumer indirect A A (865 ) A A (997 ) Other consumer AA11AAA A §A Total A $ (720 YA $ (959 )A A A Nine months ended
September 30, A A AverageBalance A A Interest A A AverageRate (3) A A AverageBalance A A In terest A A AverageRate (3) A Interest-earning assets: A A A
AAAAAA eder: 06%A $72,977A A $ 2,526 A A A 4.63 % Investment securities
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A AAA ederal funds sold and interest-earning deposits A $ 113,656 A A $4,303A A A
A AAAAA TaxableA A 1,124,653 A A A 17,710A A A 2.10A A A 1,190,631
1,563 A A A 2.73 A Total investment securities A A 1,174,850 A A A 18,814
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Total A

A
esA A 75,880A A A 4463A A A 786A A A 76219A A A 4118A A A 7.22A
AA A 39,458 A A A 23 A Other consumer A A 46,615A A A 2,267A A A 650A A A 23,712A A
6 A A A 4,288,315 AAA 189,422 A A A 5.90 A Total interest-earning assets A A 5,727,054 A A A
A (48 922 ) A A A A A A Other noninterest-earnin
A A A A A Interest-bearing liabilities: A A A A
6,087 A 1.12%A $831,345A A $4,642A .75 % Savings and mo:
edepos1 1500238AAA52864AAA471AAA1484919AAA4 36
08,047 A 2.42 A Short-term borrowings A A 149,588 A A A 3,345 A
4 697A 21, 033A A A 4596 A A A 5.06 A Total borrowings A A 274,228A
A 6AA A 113156A A A 3.34A A A 4,350472A A A
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A A 342,425A A A 11,192A A A 437A

st-bearing demand deposits A A 955,428 A

A Shareholdersa€™ equity A A 462,680 A A A A A A A
1,075A A A A A A A Net interest income (tax-equivalent) A A A A $ 122 188A A A A A A A $126,156 A A A A Interestrate spreadA A A A AAA
A A A 241 %NetearnmgassetsA $1,206528A A AAAAAAG$1277652A AAAAAA Netmterestmargm(taxeqmvalent)A AAAAAAA28%AAAAAAAA-?29
% Ratio of average interest-earning assets to averageA A A interest-bearing liabilities A A A A A A A A 126.69% A A A A A A A A 129.37 % A (1) Investment securities are shown at
amortized cost. 55 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA (2) The interest on tax-exempt securities is calculated on a tax-equivalent basis assuming a Federal
income tax rate of 21%. (3) Annualized. (4) Loans include net unearned income, net deferred loan fees and costs and non-accruing loans. Net deferred loan fees (costs) included in interest
income were as follows (in thousands): A A Nine months ended September 30, A A A 2024 A A 2023 A Commercial business A $ 130 A A $ (33 ) Commercial mortgage A A 1654A A A
1,718 A Residential real estate loans A A (1,150 ) A A (1,215 ) Residential real estate lines A A (291 )A A (275) Consumer indirect A A (2,687 ) A A (3,158 ) Other consumer A A 32 A
A'A 12A TotalA $(2,312)A $ (2,951 ) A 56 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA The following table presents, on a tax-equivalent basis, the relative
contribution of changes in volumes and changes in rates to changes in net interest income for the periods indicated. The change in interest income not solely due to changes in volume or rate
has been allocated in proportion to the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each (in thousands). No out-of-period adjustments were included in the rate/volume analysis. A A A Three
months endedSeptember 30, 2024 vs. 2023A A Nine months endedSeptember 30, 2024 vs. 2023 A Increase (decrease) 1n A VolumeA A Rate A A Total A A VolumeA A Rat A Total
A Interestincome: A A A A A A
Investment securities: A A A A A
A (137)A A (565)A A 106 A A .
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,645 A Commerc1a1 mortgageA A 1,944A A A 148A A A2,
1,824 A A A 3,114 A Residential real estate lines A A
A
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A A363A A A 345A Consumer indirect A A A (1,589
A A (331)A A 830A TotalloansA A 48A A A 2,8
7A A A 18,014A A A 25431 A Interest expense: A A
395A A A 226A A A (640)A A 2,085 A AA 144

8 A

A
AAAAAAAADeposits:AAAAAAAAAAAAAA
and money market A A 1,286 A A A 2,649A A A 3,935A A A 5,
A (524)A A 1,949A A A 1,425A A A 43 A A A A A 10,828 A Total interest-bearing deposits A A 593 A A A 4,993A A A
2,549 A Short-term borrowings A A (764)A A (614 1,378)A A (1,838)A A (1,413)A A (3,251 ) Long-term borrowings A A 4
A (35)A A 101 A Total borrowings A A (760)A A (619)A A (1,379)A A (1,702) A A (1,448)A A (3,150 ) Total interest expense A A (167 )A A 4,374 A A A 4,207A A A 3,797A
A A 25,602A A A 29,399 A Net interest income A $ (411)A $ (613 YA $(1,024)A $3,620A A $(7, 588 )A $ (3,968 ) A Provision (Beneflt) for Credit Losses The table below presents
the composition of the provision (benefit) for credit losses for the periods indicated (dollars in thousands): A A Three months ended September 30, A A Nine months ended September 30, A
A A A 2024 A A 2023A A 2024A A 2023A A Prov1510n (heneﬁt) for credit losses 4€“ loans A $ 2,391 A A $ 1,392A A $ (496 )A $ 8,540 A A Credit loss provision (benefit) for
unfunded commitments A A 713 A A A (426)A A 186A A A (129) A Credit loss benefit for debt securitiesA A -A A A -A A A (1)A A (1)A Provision (benefit) for credit losses A $
3,104 A A $966A A $(311)A $8,410 A A The provision for credit losses in the third quarter of 2024 was driven by a combination of factors, including a slight increase in the national
unemployment forecast and higher qualitative factors overall, partially offset by lower loan balances. The benefit for credit losses for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was reflective
of the $4.9 million benefit for credit losses a€“ loans for the first quarter of 2024, which was driven by improvement in forecasted losses, positive trends in qualitative factors, including a
reduction in consumer indirect loan delinquencies during the period, and a reduction in total period-end loan balances. See the 4€ceAllowance for Credit Losses 4€“ Loansa€ and 4€ceNon-
Performing Assets and Potential Problem Loansa€ sections of this Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis for further discussion. 57 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSISA Noninterest Income The followmg table details the major categories of noninterest income for the periods presented (in thousands): A A A Three months ended September 30, A
A Nine months ended Septemher 30,A A A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A Service charges on dep051ts A $ 1,103A A $1,207A A $3,159A A $ 3,457 A Insurance income A A
3A A A 1,678A A A 2,141 A A A 5,093 A Card interchange income A A 1,900 A A A 2,094A A A 5810A A A 6,140 A Investment advisory A A 2,797 A A A 2,544 A A A 8,158 A
A A 8,286 ‘A Company owned life insurance A A 1,404 A A A 1,027 A A A 4,062 A A A 2,974 A Investments in limited partnerships A A 400A A A 391 A A A 1,545A A A 1,111 A
Loan servicing A A 88A A A 135A A A 421 A A A 395 A Income from derivative instruments, netA A 212 A A A 219A A A 763A A A 1,418 A Net gain on sale of loans held for sale
A A 220A A A 115A A A 432 A A A 349 A Net gain (loss) on other assets A A 138 A A A (1)A A 13,633A A A 31 A Netloss on tax credit investments A A (170)A A (333)A A
(139)A A (45)Other A A 1,345A A A 1,410 A A A 4,370 A A A 3,667 A Total noninterest income A $ 9,440 A A $ 10,486 A A $ 44,355A A $ 32,876 A A The April 1, 2024 sale of
the assets of our insurance subsidiary generated a pre-tax gain of $13.7 million, after selling costs, which was included in net gain (loss) on other assets for the first nine months of 2024. The
decrease in insurance income for the third quarter of 2024 and the first nine months of 2024 was reflective of the sale. Investment advisory income increased $253 thousand, or 10%, to $2.8
million for the third quarter of 2024 compared to $2.5 million for the third quarter of 2023, primarily due to a market-driven increase in assets under management in addition to business
development. For the first nine months of 2024, investment advisory income decreased $128 thousand, or 2%, to $8.2 million compared to $8.3 million for the first nine months of 2023. Income
from company owned life insurance increased $377 thousand, or 37%, to $1.4 million for the third quarter of 2024 compared to $1.0 million for the third quarter of 2023. For the first nine
months of 2024, income from company owned life insurance increased $1.1 million, or 37%, to $4.1 million compared to $3.0 million for the first nine months of 2023. The increase in both
periods was primarily due to the higher crediting rate and associated impact to cash surrender value recorded in the linked quarter related to the previously disclosed surrender and redeploy
strategy executed in the fourth quarter of 2023. Income from investments in limited partnerships of $400 thousand for the third quarter of 2024 was relatively flat compared to the third quarter
of 2023. For the first nine months of 2024, income from investments in limited partnerships increased $434 thousand, or 39%, to $1.5 million compared to $1.1 million for the first nine months
of 2023. We previously made several investments accounted for under the equity method. Income from these investments fluctuates based on the maturity and performance of the underlying
investments. Income from derivative instruments, net of $212 thousand for the third quarter of 2024 was relatively flat compared to the third quarter of 2023. For the first nine months of 2024,
income from derivative income from derivative instruments, net decreased $655 thousand, or 46%, to $763 thousand compared to $1.4 million for the first nine months of 2023. Income from
derivative instruments, net, is based on the number and value or interest rate swap transactions executed during the quarter combined with the impact of changes in the fair value of borrower-
facing trades. 58 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA Noninterest Expense The following table details the major categories of noninterest expense for the
periods presented (in thousands): A A A Three months ended September 30, A A Nine months ended September 30, A A A 2024 A A 2023A A 2024 A A 2023 A Salaries and employee
benefits A $ 15,879 A A $ 18,160 A A $ 48,967 A A $ 54,047 A Occupancy and equipment A A 3,370 A A A 3,791 A A A 10,570 A A A 11,059 A Professional services A A 1,965A A
A 1,076 A A A 6,131 A A A 3,844 A Computer and data processing A A 5,353 A A A 5,107 A AA 16,0814 A A 14,548 A Supplies and postage A A 519 A A A 455A A A 1,431 A A
A 1,418 A FDIC assessments A A 1,092A A A 1,232A A A 3,733 A A A 3,586 A Advertising and promotions A A 371 A A A 744A A A 1,108 A A A 1,556 A Amortization of
intangibles A A 112 A A A 225A A A 443 A A A 689 A Restructuring recoveries A A 4€” A A A (55)A A a€” A A A (74) Deposit-related charged-off items A A 410 A A A 188A A
A 19,987A A A 978 A Other A A 3,398A A A 3,812A A A 11,051 A A A 10,527 A Total noninterest expense A $ 32,469 A A $34,735A A $ 119,502 A A $ 102,178 A A Salaries and
employee benefits expense decreased $2.3 million, or 13%, to $15.9 million for the third quarter of 2024 compared to $18.2 million for the third quarter of 2023. For the first nine months of
2024, salaries and employee benefits expense decreased $5.1 million, or 9%, to $49.0 million compared to $54.0 million for the first nine months of 2023. The decrease in both periods was
driven in part by lower salaries and wages in the 2024 periods, as a result of the sale of the assets of SDN, as well as our previously disclosed leadership and organizational changes completed
in the fourth quarter of 2023. Professional services expense increased $889 thousand, or 83%, to $2.0 million for the third quarter of 2024 compared to $1.1 million for the third quarter of
2023. For the first nine months of 2024, professional services expense increased $2.3 million, or 59%, to $6.1 million compared to $3.8 million for the first nine months of 2023. The increases in
both periods were primarily due to higher legal expenses in 2024 attributed to the deposit-related fraud event, including $384 thousand and $1.4 million for the third quarter of 2024 and first
nine months of 2024, respectively. Computer and data processing expense increased $246 thousand, or 5%, to $5.4 million for the third quarter of 2024 compared to $5.1 million for the third
quarter of 2023. For the first nine months of 2024, computer and data processing expense increased $1.5 million, or 11%, to $16.1 million compared to $14.5 million for the first nine months of
2023. The increase during the 2024 periods was due in part to an increase in digital banking expense attributable to increased usage along with our strategic investments in data efficiency and
marketing technology. Advertising and promotions expense decreased $373 thousand, or 50%, to $371 thousand for the third quarter of 2024 compared to $744 thousand for the third quarter
of 2023. For the first nine months of 2024, advertising and promotions expense decreased $448 thousand, or 29%, to $1.1 million, compared to $1.6 million for the first nine months of 2023.
The decrease in both periods reflected higher advertising and promotions expense in the prior year periods related to the money market campaign. Deposit-related charged-off items expense
for the first nine months of 2024 included an $18.2 million loss associated with charge-offs associated with the deposit-related fraudulent activity we experienced in early March 2024, including
the $18.4 million recorded in the first quarter of 2024, partially offset by $143 thousand of recoveries recorded in the second quarter of 2024. Other expense decreased $414 thousand, or 11%,
to $3.4 million for the third quarter of 2024 compared to $3.8 million for the third quarter of 2023. For the first nine months of 2024, other expense increased $524 thousand, or 5%, to $11.1
million compared to $10.5 million for the first nine months of 2023. The increase for the first nine months of 2024 was primarily driven by an increase in New York State capital base franchise
tax accrual. Our efficiency ratio for the third quarter of 2024 and the first nine months of 2024 was 64.70% and 71.75%, respectively, compared with 66.47% and 64.25% for the third quarter of
2023 and the first nine months of 2023, respectively. The higher efficiency ratio for the first nine months of 2024 was reflective of the $18.2 million pre-tax loss in deposit-related charged-off
items and approximately $1.4 million of legal and consulting expenses, recorded in professional services expense, attributed to the deposit-related fraud event, partially offset by the $13.7
million gain on the sale of the assets of our insurance subsidiary. The efficiency ratio is calculated by dividing total noninterest expense by net revenue, defined as the sum of tax-equivalent net
interest income and noninterest income before net gains on investment securities. An increase in the efficiency ratio indicates that more resources are being utilized to generate the same
volume of income, while a decrease indicates a more efficient allocation of resources. The efficiency ratio, a banking industry financial measure, is not required by GAAP. However, the
efficiency ratio is used by management in its assessment of financial performance specifically as it relates to noninterest expense control. Management also believes such information is useful to
investors in evaluating Company performance. 59 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA Income Taxes For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024,
we recorded income tax expense of $1.1 million and $6.0 million, versus $2.4 million and $7.6 million for the same periods in the prior year. In the third quarter of 2024, we recognized federal
and state tax benefits related to tax credit investments placed in service and/or amortized during the period resulting in a reduction in income tax expense of $1.3 million, versus $731 thousand
for the same period in the prior year. The nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 also included related tax credit investment benefits of $3.4 million and $2.1 million, respectively.
Our effective tax rate for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 was 7.4% and 12.6%, versus 14.8% and 15.9%, respectively, for the same periods in the prior year. Effective tax
rates are typically impacted by items of income and expense that are not subject to federal or state taxation. Our effective tax rates reflect the impact of these items, which include, but are not
limited to, interest income from tax-exempt securities, earnings on company owned life insurance and the impact of tax credit investments. In addition, our effective tax rates for 2024 and 2023
reflect the New York State tax benefit generated by our real estate investment trust. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION INVESTING ACTIVITIES Investment Securities The following table
summarizes the composition of our investment securities portfolio as of the dates indicated (in thousands): A A A Investment Securities Portfolio Composition AAA September 30, 2024 A A
December 31, 2023 A A A Amortized A A Fair A A Amortized A A FairA A A CostA A Value A A Cost A A Value A Securities available for sale: A A AAAAAAAUS
Government agency and government-sponsored enterprise securities A $ 24,535 A A $22588A A $ 24,535 A A $21,811 A Mortgage-backed securities: AAAAAAA
Agency mortgage-backed securities A A 978,658 A A A 855,139 A A A 1,013,455A A A 865,594 A Non-Agency mortgage-backed securities A A 4€” A A A A ae” A A A 325
A Other debt securities A A 8,656 A A A 8 707A A A a€” A A A a€” A Total available for sale securities A A 1,011,849 A A A 886,816 A A A 1, ,037,99 887,730 A Securities
held to maturity: A A A A
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maturity securities A A 121,282 A A A 112,613A A A 148,160 A A A 137,030 A Allowance for credit losses 4€“ securities A A (3)A A A A A (4)A A A Total held to maturity
securities, net A A 121,279 A A A A A A 148,156 A A A A Total investment securities A $ 1,133,128 A A $ 999,429 A A $ 1,186,146 A A $ 1,024,760 A A Our available for sale
(&€eAFSa€) investment securities portfolio decreased $26.1 million from December 31, 2023 to September 30, 2024. The AFS portfolio had a net unrealized loss of $125.0 million at September
30, 2024 and $150.3 million at December 31, 2023, respectively. The decrease in the AFS portfolio balance was primarily due to maturities of investment securities, and the use of cash to fund
loan originations and reduce short-term borrowings in the first nine months of 2024. 60 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA Security Yields and Maturities
Schedule The following table sets forth certain information regarding the amortized cost (4€ceCosta€), weighted average yields (a€ceYielda€) and contractual maturities of our debt securities
portfolio as of September 30, 2024. In this table, Yield is defined as the book yield weighted against the ending book value. Mortgage-backed securities are included in maturity categories based
on their stated maturity date. Actual maturities may differ from the contractual maturities presented because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay certain investments. No tax-
equivalent adjustments were made to the weighted average yields (dollars in thousands). A A A Duein one year or less A A Due from one to five years A A Due after five years through ten
years A A Due after ten | years A A TotalA A A CostA A Yield A A CostA A Yield A A CostA A Yield A A CostA A Yield A A CostA A Yield A Avallable for sale debt securities: A A

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAUS. Government agencies and government-sponsored enterprises A $ 4€” A A A 4€” A A $15,000A A A 1.70 %
A $9535AAA1.90%A $4€"A A A a€” A A $24,535A A A 1.78 % Mortgage-backed securities A A 1GA A A301%AA 76628A A A 207%A A 69,026A A A 187%A A
832,988 A A A 2.06% A A 978,658 A A A 2.05 % Other debt securities A A 46" A A A a€”A A A 4€”A A A a6”A A A 8656A A A 7.25%A A a6”A A A a6”A A A 8656A A A
725%AAA16AAA3.01%AA91,628AAA2.01%AA87217AAA241%AA832988AAA206%AA1011849AAA209/H1dtomatuntydebtsecurmesAAA
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAUS. Government agencies and government-sponsored enterprises A $ 4€” A A A 4€” A A $10,000A A A 3.00%A $
6,626 A A A 3.48 %A $é€"AAAée"AA$16626AAA379%StateandpolmcalsubdmsmnsAA18896AAA245%AA8084AAA213%AAa€"AAAa€"AAA
21,492 A A A 245%A A 48,472 A A A 2.34 % Mortgage-backed securities A A 46" A A A 4€”A A A 3,891 A A A 260%A A 16,314A A A 226 %A A 35979A A A 280 %A A
56184AAA263%AA18896AAA;45%AA21975AAA295%AA22940AAA261%AA57471AAA267%AA121282AAA267%Totalmvestmentsecuntms

A $18912A A A 245%A $113,603A A A 219%A $110,157A A A 245%A $890,459A A A 2.10% A $1,133,131 A A A 2.15 % Impairment Assessment For AFS securities in an
unrealized loss position, we first assess whether (i) we intend to sell, or (ii) it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If
either case is affirmative, any previously recognized allowances are charged-off and the securitya€™s amortized cost is written down to fair value through income. If neither case is affirmative,
the security is evaluated to determine whether the decline in fair value has resulted from credit losses or other factors. In making this assessment, management considers the extent to which
fair value is less than amortized cost, any changes to the rating of the security by a rating agency and any adverse conditions specifically related to the security, among other factors. If this
assessment indicates that a credit loss exists, the present value of cash flows expected to be collected from the security are compared to the amortized cost basis of the security. If the present
value of cash flows expected to be collected is less than the amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists and an allowance for credit losses is recorded for the credit loss, limited by the amount that
the fair value is less than the amortized cost basis. Any impairment that has not been recorded through an allowance for credit losses is recognized in other comprehensive income. Adjustments
to the allowance are reported in our income statement as a component of credit loss expense. AFS securities are charged-off against the allowance or, in the absence of any allowance, written
down through income when deemed uncollectible by management or when either of the aforementioned criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met. For the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, no allowance for credit losses was recognized on AFS securities in an unrealized loss position as management does not believe any of the securities are
impaired due to reasons of credit quality. 61 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA LENDING ACTIVITIES Total loans were $4.40 billion at September 30, 2024, a
decrease of $59.2 million from $4.46 billion at December 31, 2023. The composition of our loan portfolio, excluding loans held for sale and including net unearned income and net deferred fees
and costs, is summarized as follows (dollars in thousands): A A A Loan Portfolio Composition A A A September 30, 2024 A A December 31, 2023 A A A Amount A A % ofTotal A A
Amount A A % ofTotal A Commercial business A $ 654,519 A A A 149%A $735700A A A 16.5 % Commercial mortgage - construction A A 533, 506 AAA 12.1 AAA 493,003 A A
A 11.0 A Commercial | mortgage - multifamily A A 467,527 A A A 10.6 A 452,155A A A 10.1 A Commercial mortgage - non-owner occupledA 814,392 A A A
788,515A A A 17.7 A Commercial mortgage - owner occupied A A 290, A A66A A A 271,646A A A 6.1 A Total commercial mortgage A A 2,105,641 A A A478A A A
2,005,319 A A A 44.9 A Total commercial A A 2,760,160 A A A 62.7 2,741,019 A A A 61.4 A Residential real estate loans A A 648,241 A A A 14.7A A A 649,822 A A A 14.6
A Residential real estate lines A A 76,203A A A 1.7A A A 77,367 A 7A Consumer indirect A A 874,651A A A 19.9A A A 948831 A A A 21.3A Other consumer A A 43,734
A AA1.0AAA 45100A A A 1.0A Total consumer A A 1,642,829 A A 373A A A 1,721,120 A A A 38.6 A Totalloans A A 4,402,989 A A A 100.0% A A 4,462,139A A A
100.0 % Less: Allowance for credit losses 4€“ loans A A 44,678 A A A A A A 51,082 A A A A Total loans, net A $ 4,358,311 A A A A A $4,411,057A A A A Total commercial loans of
$2.76 billion represented 63% of total loans as of September 30, 2024, compared to $2.74 billion, or 61% of total loans as of December 31, 2023. Commercial business loans of $654.5 million, or
15% of total loans, were down $81.2 million, or 11%, from December 31, 2023, and total commercial mortgage loans of $2.11 billion, or 48% of total loans, were up $100.3 million, or 5% from
December 31, 2023. The increase in commercial mortgage loans was attributable to increases in construction, multifamily, owner and non-owner occupied loans. As of September 30, 2024,
commercial real estate (4€0eCRE&€) loans made up approximately 66% of total commercial loans, and 41% of total loans, commercial and industrial loans approximated 30% of total commercial
loans, and 19% of total loans, and business banking unit loans were approximately 4% of total commercial loans and 3% of total loans. Our CRE committed credit exposure at September 30,
2024 related to approximately 42% multi-family, 18% office, 8% industrial property, 7% retail, 7% hospitality, and 6% home builder. Approximately 70% of our office exposure at September 30,
2024, or 12% of our total CRE exposure, related to Class B or medical office space. More than 70% of our office and 90% of our multifamily CRE loans have full or limited personal or corporate
recourse. Total consumer loans of $1.64 billion, or 37% of total loans at September 30, 2024, decreased $78.3 million from December 31, 2023. Consumer loans at September 30, 2024 were
comprised of residential real estate loans and lines of credit of $724.4 million, or 16% of total loans, consumer indirect loans of $874.7 million, or 20% of total loans, and other consumer loans of
$43.7 million, or 1% of total loans. During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, we originated $170.5 million in indirect automobile loans with a mix of approximately 25% new
automobile and 75% used automobile loans. This compares with the $238.2 million originated of indirect automobile loans with a mix of approximately 27% new automobile and 73% used
automobile loans for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. Origination volumes and the mix of new and used vehicles financed fluctuate depending on general market conditions.
Effective January 1, 2024, we exited the Pennsylvania automobile market to align our focus more fully around our core Upstate New York market, which includes a strong network of
approximately 375 new automobile dealers. Loans Held for Sale and Loans Serviced for Others Loans held for sale (not included in the loan portfolio composition table) were entirely comprised
of residential real estate loans and totaled $2.5 million and $1.4 million as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. We sell certain qualifying newly originated or refinanced
residential real estate loans on the secondary market. Residential real estate loans serviced for others, which are not included in the consolidated statements of financial condition, amounted to
$276.8 million and $269.4 million as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. 62 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA Allowance for Credit
Losses a€“ Loans The following table summarizes the activity in the allowance for credit losses 4€“ loans for the periods indicated (dollars in thousands). A A A Credit Loss 4€“ Loans Analysis
A A A A Three months ended September 30, A A Nine months ended September 30, A A A A 2024 A A 2023 A A 2024 A A 2023 A A Allowance for credit losses &4€“ loans, beginning of
perlodA $ 43,952 A A $49,836 A A $51,082A A $ 45, 413 A A Net charge-offs (recoveries): AAAAAAAAAAAA A Commercial business A A (3 )A A 32AA A (33)AA
(59) A Commercial mortgage - construction A A 4€” A A A 4€” A A A 4€” A A A a€” A A Commercial mortgage - multifamily A A 12A A A a€”A A A 13A A A 4€”A A Commercial
mortgage - non-owner occupied A A (1)A A (886)A A (3)A A (887)A Commercial mortgage - owner occupied A A (1)A A 86)A A (4)A A (71) A Residential real estate loans A
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A (1 YA A (4)A A 99A A A 67A A Residential real estate lines A A 4€” A A A 4€”A A A 4€”A A A 41 A A Consumer indirect A A 1,553 A A A

A Other consumer A A 106 A A A 259A A A 466 A A A 811 A A Total net charge-offs A A 1,665A A A 1,598 A A A 5908A A A 4,323 A A Provision (benefit) for credit losses
a€“ loansA A 2,391 A A A 1,392A A A (496)A A 8,540 A A Allowance for credit losses 4€“ loans, end ofpermdA $ 44,678 A A $ 49,6 OA A $44,678A A $49,630A A A A AAA
AAAAAAAA A Netloan charge-offs (recoveries) to average loans: AAAAAAAAAAAAA Commercial business A A 0. 00 % A AA 0.02 % A A -0.01%A A -001%A
Commercial mortgage - construction A A 0.00%A A 0.00%A A 000%A A 0.00%A Commercial mortgage - multifamily A A 0.01 % A A 0.00% A A 0.00% A A 0.00% A Commercial

mortgage - non-owner occupied A A 000%A A -046%A A 0.00%A A -0.16 % A Commercial mortgage - owner occupied A A 000%A A -013%A A 0.00%A A -0.04%A

Residential real estate loans A A 0.00 % A A 0.00% A A 0.02% A A 0.01 % A Residential real estate lines A A 0.00 % A A 0.00% A A 0.00% A A 0.07 % A Consumer indirect A A
0.70% A A 0.92%A A 0.79% A A 0.59 % A Other consumer A A 0.95% A A 3.00% A A 1.33%A A 457 %A TotalloansA A 0.15% A A 0.14%A A 0.18% A A 0.13%A A AA
AAAAAAAAAA A Allowance for credit losses 4€“ loans to total loans A A 1.01 %A A 1.12% A A 1.01 %A A 1.12 % A Allowance for credit losses 4€“ loans to nonaccrual loans A
A 110%A A 522% A A 192 % A A 522 % A Allowance for credit losses &€ loans to non-performing loans A A 110 % A A 521 % A A 192 % A A 521 % A Loans not analyzed for a
specific reserve are segmented into a€cepoolsa€ of loans based on their homogeneous risk characteristics, including purpose, tenor, amortization, repayment source, payment frequency,
collateral and recourse. Once loans have been segmented into pools, a loss rate is applied to the amortized cost basis. This is referred to as the a€cepooled loana€ component of the allowance
for credit losses estimate. Loans have historically been divided into six portfolio segments of loans including Commercial Loans/Lines, Commercial Mortgage, Indirect Loans, Direct Loans,
Residential Lines of Credit, and Residential Loans. Beginning in the third quarter of 2024, we further disaggregated the Commercial Mortgage loans into the following categories: Construction,
Multifamily, Non-Owner Occupied, and Owner Occupied based on the risk characteristics of the loans and our methodology for monitoring and assessing credit risk. The allowance for credit
losses for pooled loans estimate is based upon periodic review of the collectability of the loans quantitatively correlating historical loan experience with reasonable and supportable forecasts
using forward looking information. Adjustments to the quantitative evaluation may be made for differences in current or expected qualitative risk characteristics such as changes in
underwriting standards, delinquency level, regulatory environment, economic condition, Company management and the status of portfolio administration including our Loan Review function.
We establish a specific reserve for individually evaluated loans which do not share similar risk characteristics with the loans included in the forecasted allowance for credit losses. These
individually evaluated loans are removed from the pooling approach discussed above for the forecasted allowance for credit losses, and include nonaccrual loans, and other loans deemed
appropriate by management, collectively referred to as collateral dependent loans. See Note 4., Loans, of the notes to the consolidated financial statements for further details on collateral
dependent loans. 63 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA Assessing the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses &€ loans involves substantial uncertainties
and is based upon managementa€™s evaluation of the amounts required to meet estimated charge-offs in the loan portfolio after weighing a variety of factors, including the risk profile of our
loan products and customers. The adequacy of the allowance for credit losses &€“ loans is subject to ongoing management review. While management evaluates currently available information
in establishing the allowance for credit losses a€“ loans, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the
evaluations. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review a financial institutiond€™s allowance for credit losses &€“ loans. Such
agencies may require the financial institution to increase the allowance based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination. Net charge-offs of $1.7
million for the third quarter of 2024 represented 0.15% of average loans on an annualized basis compared to net charge-offs of $1.6 million, or 0.14% of average loans for the third quarter of
2023. The allowance for credit losses a€“ loans was $44.7 million at September 30, 2024, compared with $49.6 million at September 30, 2023. The ratio of the allowance for credit losses &€“
loans to total loans was 1.01% at September 30, 2024 and 1.12% at September 30, 2023. The ratio of allowance for credit losses 4€“ loans to non-performing loans was 110% at September 30,
2024, compared with 521% at September 30, 2023. The increase in non-performing loans at September 30, 2024, compared to September 30, 2023 was largely related to two separate and
distinct commercial real estate loan relationships in our Upstate New York market, one of which was placed on nonaccrual during the third quarter of 2024, and the other in the fourth quarter
of 2023. The following table sets forth the allocation of the allowance for credit losses a€“ loans by loan category as of the dates indicated (dollars in thousands). The allocation is made for
analytical purposes and is not necessarily indicative of the categories in which actual losses may occur. The total allowance is available to absorb losses from any segment of the loan portfolio.
A A Allowance for Credit Losses 4€“ Loans by Loan Category AAA September 30, 2024 A A December 31,2023A A A AAA Percentage AAAAA Percentage A A A CreditA A of
loans byA A Credit A A of loans byA A A LossA A categorytoA A LossA A category to A A A Allowance A A total loansA A Allowance A A total loans A Commercial business A $
8,475A A A 149%A $ 13,102 A A A 16.5 % Commercial mortgage - construction A A 5,402 A A A 12.1A A A 3,710 A A A 11.0 A Commercial mortgage - InultlfamllyA A 2,609A A
A 10.6 A A A 4,009A A A 10.1 A Commercial mortgage - non-owner occupledA A 7478 A A A 185A A A 6,074A A A 17.7 A Commercial mortgage - owner occupledA A 4200A A
A 6.6A A A 2,0656A A A 6.1 A Residential real estate loans A A 3,795A A A 14.7A A A 5286A A A 14.6 A Residential real estate linesA A 833A A A 1.7A A A 764A A A 1.7
A Consumer indirect A A 11,346 A A A 19.9A A A 14,099 A A A 21.3 A Other consumer A A 540 A A A 1.0A A A 1,973A A A 1.0A Total A $44,678 A A A 100.0 % A $ 51,082
A A A 100.0 % A 64 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA Non-Performing Assets and Potential Problem Loans The table below summarizes our non-performing
assets at the dates 1ndlcated (dollars in thousands). A A A Non- Performlng Assets A A A September 30, 2024 A A December 31, 2023 A Nonaccrual loans: A A A A A A Commercial
business A $ 5,752 A A $ 5,664 A Commercial mortgage - construction A A 20,280 A A A 5,320 A Commercial mortgage - multifamily A A 71 A A A 189 A Commercial mortgage - non-
owner occupied A A 4,903 A A A 4,651 A Commercial mortgage - owner occupied A A 366 A A A 403 A Residential real estate loans A A 5,790 A A A 6,364 A Residential real estate
linesA A 232 A A A 221 A Consumer indirect A A 3,291 A A A 3,814 A Other consumer A A 14 A A A 13 A Total nonaccrual loans A A 40,699 A A A 26,639 A Accruing loans 90
days or more delinquent A A 43 A A A 21 A Total non-performing loans A A 40,742 A A A 26,660 A Foreclosed assets A A 109 A A A 142 A Total non-performing assets A $ 40,851 A
A $26,802A A A AAA A A Nonaccrual loans to total loans A A 0.92 % A A 0.60 % Non-performing loans to total loans A A 0.93 % A A 0.60 % Non-performing assets to total assets A
A 0.66% A A 0.44 % A A Non-performing assets include non-performing loans and foreclosed assets. Non-performing assets at September 30, 2024 were $40.9 million, an increase of $14.0
million from the $26.8 million balance at December 31, 2023. The primary component of non-performing assets is non-performing loans, which were $40.7 million or 0.93% of total loans at
September 30, 2024 and $26.7 million or 0.60% of total loans at December 31, 2023. The increase in non-performing loans at September 30, 2024 as compared to December 31, 2023 was
largely related to a commercial mortgage - construction relationship that was placed on nonaccrual during the third quarter of 2024. Approximately $1.2 million, or 3%, of the $40.7 million in
non-performing loans as of September 30, 2024 were current with respect to payment of principal and interest but were classified as non-accruing because repayment in full of principal and/or
interest was uncertain. Foreclosed assets consist of real property formerly pledged as collateral for loans, which we have acquired through foreclosure proceedings or acceptance of a deed in
lieu of foreclosure. We had $109 thousand and $142 thousand of properties representing foreclosed asset holdings at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. Potential
problem loans are loans that are currently performing, but information known about possible credit problems of the borrowers causes us to have concern as to the ability of such borrowers to
comply with the present loan payment terms and may result in disclosure of such loans as non-performing at some time in the future. These loans remain in a performing status due to a variety
of factors, including payment history, the value of collateral supporting the credits, and/or personal or government guarantees. We consider loans classified as substandard, which continue to
accrue interest, to be potential problem loans. We identified $34.7 million and $29.9 million in loans that continued to accrue interest which were classified as substandard as of September 30,
2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. 65 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA Contractual Loan Maturity Schedule The following table summarizes the



contractual maturities of our loan portfolio at September 30, 2024. Loans, net of deferred loan origination costs, include principal amortization and non-accruing loans. Demand loans having no
stated schedule of repayment or maturity and overdrafts as reported as due in one year or less (in thousands). A A Due in lessthan oneyear A A Due fromone tofive years A A Due fromfive
tofifteen years A A Due afterfifteen years A A Total A Commercial business A $ 137,627 A A $228,247A A $18,743A A $ 269,902 A A $654,519 A Commercial mortgage - construction
A A 222,600A A A 272,866 A A A 37,894 A A A 146 A A A 533,506 A Commercial mortgage - multifamily A A 173,738 A A A 252,778 A A A 40,910 A A A 101 A A A 467,527 A
Commercial mortgage - non-owner occupiedA A 244,768 A A A 424,770A A A 144,360A A A 494A A A 814,392 A Commercial mortgage - owner occupledA A 157,124 A A A
114,961 A A A 18,106 A A A 25A A A 290,216 A Residential real estate loans A A 88,051 A_ A A 253,483A A A 288431A A A 18,276 A A A 648, 241 A Residential real estate lines

A A1496A A A6731AAA26629A A A 41,347A A A 76,203 A Consumer indirect (1) A A 329,627 A A A 545, 024A A A a€"A A A a€”A A A 874,651 A Other consumer A A
10,610A A A 20,884A A A 12,125A A A 115A A A 43,734 A TotalloansA $ 1,365,641 A A $2,119,744 A A $587,198 A A $330,406 A A $4,402980A AAAAAAAAAA
A A A A A Loans maturing after one year: A A A AAAAAAAAAAA A With a predetermined interestrate A A AAAAAAAAAAAAA Commercial businessA A A A
$101,033A A $8,199A A $54A A $109,286 A Commercial mortgage - construction A A A A A 43,240A A A 8484A A A 9A A A 51,733 A Commercial mortgage - multifamily A
AAAA120622A A A 25249A A A 28A A A 154,899 A Commercial mortgage - non-owner occupied A A A A A 250,198 A A A 51,470 A A A 57 A A A 301,725 A Commercial
mortgage - owner occupied A A A A A 90,416 A A A 17,033A A A 19A A A 107,468 A Residential real estate loans A A A A A 181,370 A A A 235396 A A A 14,320A A A
431,086 A Residential real estate linesA A A A A a€”A A A a¢”A A A a¢” A A A 4€” A Consumer indirect (1)A A A A A 545,024 A A A a€”A A A a€” A A A 545,024 A Other
consumer A A A A A 20,884A A A 12,125A A A 115A A A 33,124 A With a floating or adjustable rate A A A AAAAAAAAAAA A Commercial businessA A A A A
127,214 A A A 10,544 A A A 269,848 A A A 407,606 A Commercial mortgage - construction A A A A A 229,626 A A A 29,410A A A 137A A A 259,173 A Commercial mortgage -

3 A A 174,572 A A A 92,890 A A A 437A A A 267,899 A

multifamily A A A A A 123,156 A A A 15,661 A A A 73A A A 138,890 A Commercial mortgage - non-owner occupied A A A A A

Commercial mortgage - owner occupied AAAAAR?24545A A A 1,073A A A 6A A A 25,624 A Residential real estate loansA A A A A 72,113 A A A 53,035A A A 3,956A A A
129,104 A Residential real estate linesA A A A A 6,731 A A A 26,629 A A A 41,347A A A 74,707 A Consumer indirect (1) A A A A A a€”A A A a€”A A A a€” A A A a€” A Other
consumerA A A A A a€"A A A 4€"A A A 4€”A A A a€” A Total loans maturing after one year A A A A $2,119,744 A A $ 587,198 A A $ 330,406 A A $ 3,037,348 A (1)
Amounts include prepayment assumptions based on actual historical experience. 66 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA FUNDING ACTIVITIES Deposits The
following table summarizes the composition of our deposits at the dates indicated (dollars in thousands): A A A Deposit Composition A A A September 30, 2024 A A December 31, 2023 A A
A Amount A A % ofTotal A A Amount A A % ofTotal A Noninterest-bearing demand A $ 978,660 A A A 18.4 %A $ 1,010,614 A A A 19.4 % Interest- bearing demand A A 793,996 A A
A 15A A A 713,158 A A A 13.7 A Savings and money market A A 2,027,181 A A A 38A A A 2,084,444 A A A 40.0 A Time deposits A A 1,506,764 A A A 28 A A A 1,404,696 A A
A 26.9 A Total deposits A $ 5,306,601 A A A 100.0 % A $ 5,212,912 A AA 100.0 %A Asof September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the aggregate amount of estimated uninsured
deposits (deposits in amounts greater than $250 thousand, which is the maximum amount for federal deposit insurance) was $2.09 billion, or 39% of total deposits, and $1.82 billion, or 35% of
total deposits, respectively. The portion of our time deposits by account that were in excess of the FDIC insurance limit was $348.6 million and $302.6 million at September 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively. The maturities of our uninsured time deposits at September 30, 2024 were as follows: $162.7 million in three months or less; $32.5 million between three
months and six months; $93.6 million between six months and one year; and $59.7 million over one year. Approximately $1.12 billion and $956.3 million of reciprocal and public deposits,
characterized as preferred deposits for FDIC call report purposes, were collateralized by government-backed securities as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. As of
September 30, 2024, estimated uninsured nonpublic deposits were approximately 18% of total deposits. We offer a variety of deposit products designed to attract and retain customers, with the
primary focus on building and expanding long-term relationships. At September 30, 2024, total deposits were $5.31 billion, representing an increase of $93.7 million, or 2%, from December 31,
2023. The increase was primarily due to increases in public, and non-public deposits, partially offset by decreases in brokered and reciprocal deposits. While seasonality in our public deposit
portfolio was a contributor, public deposits accounts maintained higher balances during typical outflow cycles while growing deposits with new and existing municipalities. This was
complemented by solid growth of non-public deposits during the nine month period. Time deposits were approximately 28% and 27% of total deposits at September 30, 2024 and December 31,
2023, respectively. Non-public deposits, the largest component of our funding sources, totaled $3.23 billion and $3.12 billion at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, and
represented 61% and 60% of total deposits as of each date, respectively. We have managed this segment of funding through a strategy of competitive pricing that minimizes the number of
customer relationships that have only a single service high-cost deposit account. As an additional source of funding, we offer a variety of public (municipal) deposit products to the towns,
villages, counties and school districts within our market area. Public deposits generally range from 20% to 30% of our total deposits. There is a high degree of seasonality in this component of
funding because the level of deposits varies with the seasonal cash flows for these public customers. We maintain the necessary levels of short-term liquidity to accommodate the seasonality
associated with public deposits. Total public deposits were $1.18 billion and $1.02 billion at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, and represented 22% of total deposits as
of each date. We also participate in reciprocal deposit programs, which enable depositors to receive FDIC insurance coverage for deposits otherwise exceeding the maximum insurable amount.
Through these programs, deposits in excess of the maximum insurable amount are placed with multiple participating financial institutions. Reciprocal deposits totaled $816.1 million at
September 30, 2024, compared to $817.6 million at December 31, 2023, as this product has been an attractive option for customers with more than $250 thousand on deposit desiring FDIC
insurance. Reciprocal deposits represented 15% and 16% of total deposits as of each date, respectively. Brokered deposits totaled $79.4 million and $256.8 million at September 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively, and represented 2% and 5% of total deposits as of each date. As of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, $29.4 million and $206.8 million of interest-
bearing demand deposits and $50.0 million of time deposits were brokered deposit accounts. The Bank reduced the outstanding balance of the brokered sweep deposit portfolio by $180.0
million in April 2024 through the utilization of more cost effective funding sources. 67 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA Borrowings The Company classifies
borrowings as short-term or long-term in accordance with the original terms of the applicable agreement. Outstanding borrowings consisted of the following as of the dates indicated (in
thousands): A A A September 30, A A December 31,A A A 2024 A A 2023 A Short-term borrowings: A AAAAAFHLBA $55000A A $107,000A FRBA A a€”A A A 78,000 A
Total short-term borrowings A A 55,000 A A A 185,000 A Long-term borrowings: A A A A A A FHLBA A 50,000A A A 50,000 A Subordinated notes, net A A 74,765 A A A 74,532 A
Total long-term borrowings A A 124,765 A A A 124,532 A Total borrowings A $ 179,765 A A $ 309,532 A A Short-term Borrowings Short-term Federal Home Loan Bank (4€ceFHLBA€)
borrowings have original maturities of less than one year and include overnight borrowings which we typically utilize to address short term funding needs as they arise. Short-term FHLB
borrowings at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 totaled $55.0 million and $107.0 million, respectively. The FHLB borrowings are collateralized by securities from the Companya€™s
investment portfolio and certain qualifying loans. In May 2023, we borrowed $15.0 million under the Federal Reserve Bank (4€ceFRB4€) Bank Term funding program at a rate of 4.80%, which
matured on May 8, 2024. In December 2023, we borrowed an additional $50 million under the program at an interest rate of 4.89%, which matures on December 13, 2024, and $13.0 million at
an interest rate of 4.88%, which matures on December 20, 2024. Short-term borrowings and brokered deposits have historically been utilized to manage the seasonality of public deposits. We
continue to be proactive in managing funding costs and reduced short-term borrowings in the third quarter. As of September 30, 2024, $50.0 million of the short-term borrowings balance was
designated as a cash-flow hedge, which became effective in April 2022, at a fixed rate of 0.787%, $30.0 million was designated as a cash-flow hedge, which became effective in January 2023, at
a fixed rate of 3.669%, and $25.0 million was designated as a cash-flow hedge, which became effective in May 2023, at a fixed rate of 3.4615%. We have credit capacity with the FHLB and can
borrow through facilities that include amortizing and term advances or repurchase agreements. We had approximately $284.7 million of immediate credit capacity with the FHLB, and
approximately $878.6 million in secured borrowing capacity at the FRB discount window as of September 30, 2024. The FHLB and FRB credit capacity are collateralized by securities from our
investment portfolio and certain qualifying loans. We had $155.0 million of credit available under unsecured federal funds purchased lines with various banks as of September 30, 2024, with no
amounts outstanding. Additionally, we had approximately $133.7 million of unencumbered liquid securities available for pledging at September 30, 2024. The Parent has a revolving line of
credit with a commercial bank allowing borrowings up to $20.0 million in total as an additional source of working capital. At September 30, 2024, no amounts have been drawn on the line of
credit. Long-term Borrowings As of September 30, 2024 we had a long-term advance payable to FHLB of $50.0 million. The advance matures on January 20, 2026 and bears interest at a fixed
rate of 4.05%. FHLB advances are collateralized by securities from our investment portfolio and certain qualifying loans. On October 7, 2020, we completed a private placement of $35.0 million
in aggregate principal amount of fixed-to-floating rate subordinated notes to qualified institutional buyers and accredited institutional investors that were subsequently exchanged for
subordinated notes with substantially the same terms (the &€0e2020 Notesa€) registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The 2020 Notes have a maturity date of October 15,
2030 and bear interest, payable semi-annually, at the rate of 4.375% per annum, until October 15, 2025. Commencing on that date, the interest rate will reset quarterly to an interest rate per
annum equal to the then current three-month SOFR plus 4.265%, payable quarterly until maturity. The 2020 Notes are redeemable by us, in whole or in part, on any interest payment date on or
after October 15, 2025, and we may redeem the Notes in whole at any time upon certain other specified events. We used the net proceeds for general corporate purposes, organic growth and to
support regulatory capital ratios at Five Star Bank. Proceeds, net of debt issuance costs of $740 thousand, were $34.3 million. The 2020 Notes qualify as Tier 2 capital for regulatory purposes.
On April 15, 2015, we issued $40.0 million of subordinated notes (the &€e2015 Notesa€) in a registered public offering. The 2015 Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 6.0% per year, payable
semi-annually, for the first 10 years. From April 15, 2025 to the April 15, 2030 maturity date, the interest rate will reset quarterly to an annual interest rate equal to the then current three-
month CME Term SOFR plus 4.20561%. The 2015 Notes are redeemable by us at any quarterly interest payment date beginning on April 15, 2025 to maturity at par, plus accrued and unpaid
interest. Proceeds, net of debt issuance costs of $1.1 million, were $38.9 million. The 2015 Notes qualify as Tier 2 capital for regulatory purposes. 68 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT Liquidity We continue to actively monitor our liquidity profile and funding concentrations in accordance with our
Board approved Liquidity Policy. Management is actively monitoring customer activity by way of commercial and consumer line of credit utilization, as well as deposit flows. As of September 30,
2024, all structural liquidity ratios and early warning indicators remain in compliance, with what we believe are ample funding sources available in the event of a stress scenario. The objective
of maintaining adequate liquidity is to assure that we meet our financial obligations. These obligations include the withdrawal of deposits on demand or at their contractual maturity, the
repayment of matured borrowings, the ability to fund new and existing loan commitments and the ability to take advantage of new business opportunities. We achieve liquidity by maintaining a
strong base of both core customer funds and maturing short-term assets; we also rely on our ability to sell or pledge securities and lines-of-credit and our overall ability to access to the financial
and capital markets. Liquidity for the Bank is managed through the monitoring of anticipated changes in loans, the investment portfolio, deposits and wholesale funds. The strength of the
Banka€™s liquidity position is a result of its base of core customer deposits. These core deposits are supplemented by wholesale funding sources that include credit lines with other banking
institutions, the FHLB, the FRB Discount Window, and brokered deposit relationships. The primary source of our non-deposit short-term borrowings is FHLB advances, of which $55.0 million
were outstanding at September 30, 2024. In addition to this amount, we have additional collateralized wholesale borrowing capacity of approximately $1.32 billion as of September 30, 2024
from various funding sources which include the FHLB, the FRB and commercial banks that we can use to fund lending activities, liquidity needs, and/or to adjust and manage our asset and
liability position. The Parenta€™s funding requirements consist primarily of dividends to shareholders, debt service, income taxes, operating expenses, funding of non-bank subsidiaries,
repurchases of our stock, and acquisitions. The Parent obtains funding to meet obligations from dividends received from the Bank, net taxes collected from subsidiaries included in the federal
consolidated tax return, and the issuance of debt and equity securities. In addition, the Parent maintains a revolving line of credit with a commercial bank for an aggregate amount of up to
$20.0 million, all of which was available at September 30, 2024. The line of credit has a one-year term and matures in May 2025. Funds drawn would be used for general corporate purposes and
backup liquidity. Cash and cash equivalents were $249.6 million as of September 30, 2024, up $125.1 million from $124.4 million as of December 31, 2023. During the nine months ended
September 30, 2024, net cash provided by operating activities totaled $50.1 million and the principal source of operating activity cash flow was net income adjusted for noncash income and
expense items. Net cash provided by investing activities totaled $126.7 million, which primarily included inflows from a decrease in net loans of $53.2 million, $51.0 million for net proceeds
from investment securities, and $27.0 million for the proceeds from the sale of the assets of SDN, partially offset by outflows of $4.6 million for purchases of premises and equipment. Net cash
used in financing activities of $51.7 million was primarily attributed to a $130.0 million net decrease in short-term borrowings, and $15.0 million in dividend payments, partially offset by a $93.7
million net increase in deposits. Capital Management We actively manage capital, commensurate with our risk profile, to enhance shareholder value. We also seek to maintain capital levels for
the Company and the Bank at amounts in excess of the regulatory d€cewell-capitalizeda€ thresholds. Periodically, we may respond to market conditions by implementing changes to our overall
balance sheet positioning to manage our capital position. Banks and financial holding companies are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by state and federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can result in certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a
direct material impact on our consolidated financial statements. Capital adequacy guidelines and, additionally for banks, prompt corrective action regulations, involve quantitative measures of
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by
regulators about components, risk weighting and other factors. Shareholdersa€™ equity was $500.3 million at September 30, 2024, an increase of $45.5 million from $454.8 million at
December 31, 2023, primarily due to net income in the first nine months of 2024, and a decrease in accumulated other comprehensive loss of $17.9 million during the nine months ended
September 30, 2024 due primarily to a decrease in net unrealized losses on securities available for sale. The FRB and FDIC have adopted a system using risk-based capital guidelines to evaluate
the capital adequacy of banks and bank holding companies on a consolidated basis. As of September 30, 2024, the Companya€™s capital levels remained characterized as &€cewell-capitalizeda€
under the Basel Committee on Banking Supervisiona€™s (4€ceBCBS&€) capital guidelines for U.S. banks. See the &€ceBasel I1I Capital Rulesa€ section below for further discussion. 69 Table of
ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA The following table reflects the ratios and their components (dollars in thousands): AAA September 30, A A December 31, A A
A 2024 A A 2023 A Common shareholdersa€™ equity A $ 485,184 A A $ 441,773 A Less: Goodwill and other intangible assets A A 58,292 A A A 69,594 A Net unrealized loss on
investment securities (1) A A (92,996 ) A A (111,761 ) Hedging derivative instruments A A 2,530 A A A 3,911 A Net periodic pension and postretirement benefits plan adjustments A A
(11,448)A A (11,946 ) Other A A (115 )A A (145 ) Common Equity Tier 1 (a€oeCETla€) Capltal A A 528,921 A A A 492,120 A Plus: Preferred stock A A 17,292 A A A 17,292 A Tier1
Capital A A 546,213 A A A 509,412 A Plus: Quahfymg allowance for credit losses A A 45,581 A A A 48,916 A Subordinated Notes A A 74,765 A A A 74,532 A Total regulatory capital A
$ 666,559 A A $632,860 A Adjusted average total assets (for leverage capital purposes) A $6,082,367 A A $ 6,224,339 A Total risk-weighted assets A $ 5,145,278 A A $ 5,218,724 A A A
AAAAA Regulatory Capital Ratios A A A A A A Tier 1 Leverage (Tier 1 capital to adjusted average assets) A A 8.98% A A 8.18 % CET1 Capital (CET1 capital to total risk-weighted
assets) A A 10.28 % A A 9.43 % Tier 1 Capital (Tier 1 capital to total risk-weighted assets) A A 10.62 % A A 9.76 % Total Risk-Based Capital (Total regulatory capital to total risk-weighted
assets) A A 12.95% A A 12.13 % A (1) Includes unrealized gains and losses related to the Company4€ ™s reclassification of available for sale investment securities to the held to maturity
category. We have elected to apply the 2020 Current Expected Credit Losses (&€ceCECLAa€) transition provision related to the impact of the CECL accounting standard on regulatory capital, as
provided by the US banking agenciesa€™ March 2020 interim final rule. Under the 2020 CECL transition provision, the regulatory capital impact of the Day 1 adjustment to the allowance for
credit losses (after-tax) upon the January 1, 2020 CECL adoption date has been deferred and has begun to phase into regulatory capital at 25% per year commencing January 1, 2022. For the
ongoing impact of CECL, we were allowed to defer the regulatory capital impact of the allowance for credit losses in an amount equal to 25% of the change in the allowance for credit losses



(pre-tax) recognized through earnings for each period between January 1, 2020, and December 31, 2021. The cumulative adjustment to the allowance for credit losses between January 1, 2020,
and December 31, 2021, also began to phase into regulatory capital at 25% per year commencing January 1, 2022. Basel III Capital Rules Under the Basel III Capital Rules, the current
minimum capital ratios, including an additional capital conservation buffer applicable to the Company and the Bank, are: 4€¢7.0% CET1 to risk-weighted assets; &€¢8.5% Tier 1 capital (that is,
CET1 plus Additional Tier 1 capital) to risk-weighted assets; and 4€¢10.5% Total capital (that is, Tier 1 capital plus Tier 2 capital) to risk-weighted assets. Banking institutions with a capital
conservation buffer below the minimum level will face constraints on dividends, equity repurchases, and compensation based on the amount of the shortfall. The Basel III Capital Rules also
provide for a 4€cecountercyclical capital buffera€ that is applicable to only certain covered institutions and does not have any current applicability to the Company or the Bank. Strict eligibility
criteria for regulatory capital instruments were also implemented under the Basel III Capital Rules. As of September 30, 2024, the Company and Banka€™s capital levels remained .
characterized as 4€cewell capitalizeda€ under the Basel III rules, including the additional capital conversion buffer. 70 Table of ContentsMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISA The
following table presents actual and required capital ratios as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 for the Company and the Bank under the Basel III Capital Rules. Capital levels
required to be considered well capitalized are based upon prompt corrective action regulations, under the Basel III Capital Rules (dollars in thousands): AAAAAAAAAAA A Required

tobeA AAAAAAA A Minimum Capital A A Considered Well A A A Actual A A Required 4€” Basel Il A A Capitalized A A A Amount A A Ratio A A AmountA A Ratio A A
AmountAARt A September 30,2024 A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAATerlleverageAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA CompanyA $546213A A A 8.98%
A $243,295A A A 4.00% A $304,118 A A A 5.00 % Bank A A 600,404 A A A 9.89A A A 242,853A A A 4.00A A A 303,567A A A 5.0 ACETlcapltalAAAAAAAAAA
AAAAAAAA CompanyA A 528921 A A A 1028A A A 360,169A A A 7.00A A A 334,443A A A 6.50A BankA A 600,404 A A A 11.70A A A 359,208A A A 7.00A A A
333,551 A A A 6.50A Tier 1 capita: A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA CompanyA A 546,213A A A 10.62A A A 437,349A A A 850A A A 411,622A A A 8.00 A Bank
A A 600,404 A A A 11.70 A A A 436,182A A A 850A A A 410,524 A A A 8.00 A Total capita: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA CompanyA A 666559A A A 12.95A
A A 540,254 A A A 1050 A A A 514,528 A A A 10.00 A Bank A A 645,986 A A A 1259A A A 538,813A A A 10.50A A A 513,155A A A 10.00 A December 31, 2023 A A A A A
AAAAAAAAAAAAATierlleverage:A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA CompanyA $509,412A A A 818% A $248,974A A A 4.00% A $311,217AAA 5.00
% Bank A A 562,775A A A 9.06 A A A 248,385A A A 4.00A A A 310,481 A A A 5.00A CET1capita:A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA CompanyA A 492,120A A A
9.43A A A 365,311 A A A 7.00A A A 339,217A A A 6.50A BankA A 562,775A A A 10.82A A A 364,191 A A A 7.00A A A 338,177A A A 6.50A Tier 1 capital: A A A A A A
AAAAAAAAAAAACmpanyAA509412AAA9.76‘ A A 443,592 A A A 850A A A 417,498 A A A 8.00A BankA A 562,775A A A 10.82 A A A 442232A A A
8.50A A A 416,218 A A A 8.00 A Total capita: AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA CompanyA A 632,860A A A 12.13A A A 547,966 A A A 10.50 A A A 521,872A A A

10.00 A Bank A A 611,691 A A A 11.76 A A A 546,286 A A A 10.50A A A 520,272A A A 10.00 A Dividend Restrictions In the ordinary course of business, the Company is dependent
upon dividends from the Bank to provide funds for the payment of dividends to shareholders and to provide for other cash requirements. Banking regulations may limit the amount of dividends
that may be paid. Approval by regulatory authorities is required if the effect of dividends declared would cause the regulatory capital of the Bank to fall below specified minimum levels.
Approval is also required if dividends declared exceed the net profits for that year combined with the retained net profits for the preceding two years. 71 Table of ContentsA ITEM 3.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk Market risk refers to the potential impact on earnings or capital arising from movements in interest rates. The Banka€™s market
risk management framework has been developed to control both short-term and long-term exposure within Board approved policy limits and is monitored by the Asset-Liability Management
Committee and Board of Directors. Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk were presented at December 31, 2023 in Item 7A of the Companya€™s Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2023, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 13, 2024. The following is an update of the discussion provided therein. Portfolio
Composition There was no material change in the composition of assets, deposit liabilities or borrowings from December 31, 2023 to September 30, 2024. See the section titled &€ceAnalysis of
Financial Conditiona€ in Part I, Item 2, &€ceManagementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsa€ for a discussion of asset, deposit and borrowing
activity during the period. Net Interest Income at Risk A primary tool used to manage interest rate risk is &€cerate shocka€ simulation to measure the rate sensitivity. Rate shock simulation is a
modeling technique used to estimate the impact of changes in rates on net interest income as well as economic value of equity. Net interest income at risk is measured by estimating the
changes in net interest income resulting from instantaneous and sustained parallel shifts in interest rates of different magnitudes over a period of 12 months. The following table sets forth the
estimated changes to net interest income over the 12-month period ending September 30, 2025, assuming instantaneous changes in interest rates for the given rate shock scenarios (dollars in
thousands) AAA Changes in Interest Rate A A A -300 bp A A -200 bp A A -100 bp A A +100 bp A Estimated change in net interest income A $(17,201)A $(11,660)A $(5722)A $
3,649 A % Change A A -9.52% A A -6.45%A A -3.17% A A 2.02 % A In the rising rate scenarios, the static model results indicate that net interest income is modeled to increase
compared to the flat rate scenario over a one-year time frame. This is a combination of an increase across the entire deposit portfolio, which has decreased wholesale borrowings and the higher
cost associated with the borrowings. This simulation does not consider balance sheet growth or a change in the balance sheet mix. As intermediate and longer-term assets continue to mature
and are replaced at higher yields, net interest income should improve over the longer-term time frame. Model results in the declining rate scenario show a decrease in net interest income due
to a combination of increases in the yield curve, as well as increases in higher paying public and nonpublic deposits, which will reprice downward slower due to market deposit competition. In
addition to the changes in interest rate scenarios listed above, other scenarios are typically modeled to measure interest rate risk. These scenarios vary depending on the economic and interest
rate environment. Furthermore, given the static balance sheet approach, retained earnings are considered to be reinvested in a noninterest earning asset. The simulation referenced above is
based on our assumption as to the effect of interest rate changes on assets and liabilities and assumes a parallel shift of the yield curve. It also includes certain assumptions about the future
pricing of loans and deposits in response to changes in interest rates. Further, it assumes that delinquency rates would not change as a result of changes in interest rates, although there can be
no assurance that this will be the case. While this simulation is a useful measure as to net interest income at risk due to a change in interest rates, it is not a forecast of future results, does not
measure the effect of changing interest rates on noninterest income and is based on many assumptions that, if changed, could cause a different outcome. Economic Value of Equity at Risk The
economic (or a€cefaira€) value of financial instruments on our balance sheet will also vary under the interest rate scenarios previously discussed. This variance is measured by simulating
changes in our economic value of equity (&4€0eEVE4€), which is calculated by subtracting the estimated fair value of liabilities from the estimated fair value of assets. Fair values for financial
instruments are estimated by discounting projected cash flows (principal and interest) at current replacement rates for each account type, while fair values of non-financial assets and liabilities
are assumed to equal book value and do not vary with interest rate fluctuations. An economic value simulation is a static measure for balance sheet accounts at a given point in time, but this
measurement can change substantially over time as the characteristics of our balance sheet evolve and as interest rate and yield curve assumptions are updated. The amount of change in
economic value under different interest rate scenarios depends on the characteristics of each class of financial instrument, including the stated interest rate or spread relative to current market
rates or spreads, the likelihood of prepayment, whether the rate is fixed or floating, and the maturity date of the instrument. As a rule, fixed-rate financial assets become more valuable in
declining rate scenarios and less valuable in rising rate scenarios, while fixed-rate financial liabilities gain in value as interest rates rise and lose value as interest rates decline. The longer the
duration of the financial instrument, the greater the impact a rate change will have on its value. In our economic value simulations, estimated prepayments are factored in for financial
instruments with stated maturity dates, and decay rates for non-maturity deposits are projected based on historical data (back-testing). 72 Table of ContentsA The analysis that follows presents
the estimated EVE resulting from market interest rates prevailing at a given quarter-end (a€cePre-Shock Scenariod€), and under other interest rate scenarios (each a &€ceRate Shock
Scenarioa€) represented by immediate, permanent, parallel shifts in interest rates from those observed at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 (dollars in thousands). The analysis
additionally presents a measurement of the interest rate sensitivity at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023. EVE amounts are computed under each respective Pre-Shock Scenario and
Rate Shock Scenario. An increase in the EVE amount is considered favorable, while a decline is considered unfavorable. The following table sets forth the estimated changes to EVE assuming
instantaneous changes in interest rates for the given rate shock scenarios (dollars in thousands): A A September 30, 2024 A A December 31, 2023 A Rate Shock Scenario: A EVE A A
Change A A PercentageChange A A EVEA A Change A A PercentageChange A Pre-Shock Scenario A $ 696,228 A A A A A A AA $627,519A A A A A A A -300Basis Points A A
604,300 A A $(91,928)A A -13.20% A A 584,066 A A $(43,453)A A -6.92 % - 200 Basis Points A A 641,432 A A A (54,796)A A -7.87A A A 603,181 A A A (24,338)A A -3.88A
- 100 Basis Points A A 672,833 A A A (23,395)A A -3.36 A A A 616,940 A A A (10,579)A A -1.69 A + 100 Basis Points A A 710,808 A A A 14,580 A A A 2.09A A A 626,463A A
A (1,056 )A A -0.17 A A The increase in the Pre-Shock Scenario EVE at September 30, 2024 compared to December 31, 2023 is the result of the overall value increase of the loan portfolio,
slightly offset by deposits. The sensitivity in the down Rate Shock Scenarios to EVE grow more negative at September 30, 2024 compared to December 31, 2023. This is a result from
concentrated efforts to grow the deposit portfolio to decrease wholesale borrowings, and a subsequent mix shift from non-maturity deposits to time deposits. As a result, the shift from non-
maturity to time deposits has made the deposit portfolio slightly less valuable in non-public deposits which was slightly offset by the seasonal inflow of non-maturity public deposits. ITEM 4.
Controls and Procedures Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures As of September 30, 2024, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of
the Companya€™s management, including the Companya€™s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Companya€™s
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b), as adopted by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (&€ceExchange Acta€). Based upon that
evaluation, the Companya€™ s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Companya€ ™s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Disclosure controls and procedures are the controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that the
Company files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC4€™s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company files or submits under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Companya€™s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting There were no changes in the Companya€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the quarter ended September 30, 2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Companya€™s internal control over financial reporting. 73 Table of
ContentsA PART II. OTHER INFORMATION ITEM 1. Legal Proceedings From time to time, we are a party to or otherwise involved in legal proceedings arising out of the normal course of
business. Regardless of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on us because of prosecution, defense and settlement costs, unfavorable awards, diversion of management resources
and other factors. We are party to an action filed against us on May 16, 2017 by Matthew L. Chipego, Charlene Mowry, Constance C. Churchill and Joseph W. Ewing in the Court of Common
Pleas in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Plaintiffs sought class certification to represent classes of consumers in New York and Pennsylvania along with statutory damages, interest and declaratory
relief. The plaintiffs sought to represent a putative class of consumers who are alleged to have obtained direct or indirect financing from us for the purchase of vehicles that we later
repossessed. The plaintiffs specifically claim that the notices the Bank sent to defaulting consumers after their vehicles were repossessed did not comply with the relevant portions of the
Uniform Commercial Code in New York and Pennsylvania. We dispute and believe we have meritorious defenses against these claims and plan to vigorously defend ourselves. On September 30,
2021, the Court granted plaintiffsa€™ motion for class certification and certified four different classes (two classes of New York consumers and two classes of Pennsylvania consumers). There
are approximately 5,200 members in the New York classes and 300 members in the Pennsylvania classes. On September 26, 2022, the lower Court denied the plaintiffsd€™ motion for partial
summary judgment for most of the relief they seek and found that there were questions of fact as to whether the members of the class had purchased the subject vehicles for a€ceconsumer
use&€ within the meaning of the relevant statutes. The Court also denied our motion for partial summary judgment seeking an offset in the form of recoupment reducing any liability that may be
imposed against us by the amounts that the borrowers owe for failing to repay their motor vehicle loans, determining that the Court could not enter a judgment on recoupment &€“ which is a set
off from liability a€“ without first determining whether there was liability. During the July 11, 2024 pretrial conference, the Court instructed the parties to engage in further settlement of non-
binding mediation discussions and set a September 11, 2024 deadline to file motions in limine and a bench trial to commence on May 5, 2025. All depositions and document productions have
been completed. Plaintiff did not file a Motion in Limine by September 11, 2024. Plaintiffs however filed a motion for partial judgment on October 8, 2024 asserting that the recoupment claims
were barred because they were too distinct from the underlying claims. We intend to file an opposition against the motion for partial summary judgment with the Court by the November 7, 2024
deadline. The parties continue to discuss potential candidates to serve as a mediator in response to the Courta€™s instruction that they explore further settlement or mediation discussions. We
have not accrued a contingent liability for this matter at this time because, given our defenses, we are unable to conclude whether a liability is probable to occur nor are we able to currently
reasonably estimate the amount of potential loss. If we settle these claims or the action is not resolved in our favor, we may suffer reputational damage and incur legal costs, settlements or
judgments that exceed the amounts covered by our insurer. We can provide no assurances that our insurer will cover the full legal costs, settlements or judgments we incur. If we are
unsuccessful in defending ourselves from these claims or if our insurer does not cover the full amount of legal costs we incur, the result may materially adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition. ITEM 1A. Risk Factors During the quarter ended September 30, 2024, there have been no material changes to the risk factors as previously disclosed in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 as filed with the SEC. Additional risks not presently known to us, or that we currently deem immaterial, may also adversely
affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. 74 Table of ContentsA ITEM 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities, Use of Proceeds, and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities In June 2022, the Companya€™s Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program for up to 766,447 shares of common stock. The program will expire at the earlier of the
completion of all share repurchases or a Board vote to retire the program. The Companya€ ™s repurchases of its common stock during the third quarter of 2024 were as follows: Issuer
Purchases of Equity SecuritiesA A A A A A A AAA A A Period A Total Number of Shares Purchased (1) A A Average Price Paid Per Share A A Total Number of Shares Purchased as
Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs A A Maximum Number of Shares that . May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans or Programs A July 1, 2024 4€“ July 31, 2024 A A a€” A A $ €"
A A A ae”A A A 766,447 A August 1, 2024 4€“ August 31, 2024 A A 1,081A A A 2404A A A a€”A A A 766,447 A September 1, 2024 4€“ September 30, 2024 A A a€” A A A a€”

A A a€” A A A 766,447 A Total A A 1,081 A A $24.04A A A a€” A A A 766,447 A (1) This column reflects shares of common stock deemed surrendered to satisfy tax withholding
obligations in connection with the vesting of employee restricted stock units. ITEM 5. Other Information During the third quarter of 2024, none of our directors or officers adopted or terminated
any contract, instruction or written plan for the purchase or sale of Company securities that was intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c) or any &€cenon-Rule
10b5-1 trading arrangement,a€ as that term is used in SEC regulations. 75 Table of ContentsA ITEM 6. Exhibits (a) The following is a list of all exhibits filed or incorporated by reference as
part of this Report: A ExhibitNumber Description Location 3.1 A Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company A Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 3.1, 3. 2A and

3.3A of the Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, dated March 12, 2009 3.2 A Amended and Restated Bylaws of Financial Institutions, Inc. A Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.1 of the Form 8-K, dated June 25, 2019 31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002